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EINARNCIAL
FIGRLIGRTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts

March 28, 2008| March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006

Revenues $16,500 $14,855 $14,645

Income before taxes® 98 i 606 762

Income from continuing operations® 545 | 397 442

Earnings per share from 3.20 | 2.21 2.35

continuing operations (diluted)* !

Total assets 15775 1 13740 12,964

Stockholders’ equity ! 5,462 E 5,540 6,196

Book value per share | 3614 31.96 33.09
; :

Number of employees . 89,000 | 79,000 79,000

of this annual report.

CSC's fiscal year ends the Friday closest to March 31,

* Operating resuits above include speciat items. A discussion of “Special ltems" is included in the Form 10K
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SHAREROLRERS

Fiscal 2008 was a year of solid performance by CSC. We achieved revenues of
$16.5 billion, up 11%, and delivered free cash filow, consistent with our guidance.
We set a new record for total announced business awards within our North American
Public Sector line of business ot $11.3 billion. Overall, our balance sheet is solid, with
approximately $700 miltion of cash and cash equivalents on hand at year-end,

With an enviable set of world-class customers, 89,000 dedicated employees
and operations in 55 countries, CSC is a formidable global competitor — a
remarkable company with significant long term potentlal. Our 2,500 clients rely
on CSC to deliver, and they tell us that we are second to none in the delivery
of mission critical services and solutions.

Building upon this foundation of delivery
excellence, we inaugurated Project Accelerate,
our global growth initiative designed to
invigorate and position our business for a
new level of success. Project Accelerate is
focused on long-term, sustainable profitable
growth for CSC.

CSC is a global technology and business
services company and going forward, will
be operating in three lines of business: North
American Public Sector, Giobal Qutsourcing
Services, and Business Solutions and Services.

North American Public Sector (NPS) ended
fiscal 2008 as a $5.8 billion business, com-
prising 35% of CSC's revenue. We are fully
dedicated to sustaining and growing our core

U.S. federal government business, invest-
ing in key market segments to achieve higher
growth, and expanding our business in U.S.
state and local governments and Canada.

NPS, with its strong market position and
extensive client foctprint across the U.S. federal
government, provided a record $11.3 billion
in announced new-business in fiscal 2008,

Record new business announcements within
our North American Public Sector this year
demonstrated the wide array of capabilities
and services employed by CSC to support
the U.S. public sector, including awards
with the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency: U.S. General Services Administration;
Internal Revenue Service; and National
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Security Agency. Other awards included Net-
Centric Enterprise Services for the Defense
Information Systems Agency’s Service-
Oriented Architecture foundation program;
the USAF Eastern Range Technical Services
contract; facility support services at the NASA
Johnson Space Center; IT support services
for the U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Citizenship and Immigration Services; and
an agreement to provide IT services for the
U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services.

Global Qutsourcing Services {GOS) is a $6.7
billion business responsible for the delivery of
outsourcing services to our clients, globally.
Overall, GOS comprises 41% of the CSC
portfolio. Applications outsourcing comprises
about 30% of its business base, the remainder
being infrastructure outsourcing.

We created Global Qutsourcing Services
to enable CSC to manage and deliver our
large IT outsourcing engagements through
a single, consistent, globally leveraged
model. Additionally, we expanded our
market focus to include midsize deals
(transactions ranging from $50 to $350
million in total contract value). The midsize
initiative within GOS added significant new
business in its first year, contributing both
revenue and margin growth, while we also
continue to extend our traditional strength in
the large-scale globail cutsourcing market.

In fiscal 2008, we extended our valued rela-
tionship with Sun Microsystems Inc., reaching
a global IT applications management services
agreement under which we will provide

all applicatiohs development and support
services for Sun's business applications
portfolios. Other signings include a five-year,
multimillion-dollar IT services contract with
Eaton Corporation, and an IT outsourcing
contract extension with General Dynamics
Armament and Technica! Products, a business
unit of General Dynamics.

In Europe, we agreed to a five-year IT out-
sourcing contract renewal with TrygVesta,
the second-largest insurance company in the
Nordic region; and a seven-year IT services
contract with CACEIS, one of Europe's lead-
ing financial services providers.

New business awards within the midsize
market include an agreement with the
University of Pennsylvania Health System,
and, in Europe, the UK Network Rail system
and an outsourcing agreement with Det
Berlingske Officin, a major newspaper
publisher in Denmark.

Business Solutions and Services (BS5&S)
comprises 24% of CSC, delivering $4 billion of
revenue. It is our fastest growing and most
profitable sector. We address cur markets
through six industry verticals, providing
industry specific solutions and services,
including industry specific business process
outsourcing as well as intellectual property
(IP)-based software solutions. BS&S offers
customers a full range of consulting and
systems integration services as well as a
broad portfolio of India based solutions
and services.

New services and solutions business awards
included Western & Southern Financial Group




and a 10-year business process outsourcing
{(BPO) contract with Wilton Re. We also
continued our important relationship with
Swiss Re, the world’'s leading reinsurer,
with a seven-year contract extension. In
addition, we signed a three-year [T services
contract with international oil and gas group
Woodside, Australia's largest publicly traded
oil and gas exploration and production
company.

A key component of our business solutions and
services strategy is to bolster our vertical
industry growth potential through acquisition,
and we made two important acquisitions
during the year: Covansys Corporation and
First Consulting Group (FCG).

Approximately 8,000 employees from our
Covansys acquisition augment our strategic
outsourcing and technology solutions in
the healthcare, financial services, retail
and distribution, manufacturing, telecom-
munications and high-tech industries. This
acquisition accomplishes the important
goal of bolstering our offshore resources
in India, while complementing ocur giobal
vertical industry offerings and enhancing
our global footprint.

The acquisition of First Consulting Group
deepens our expertise and intellectual
property associated with the key heaithcare
vertical market and expands our global
delivery capabilities, including important new
capability based in Vietnam. The addition of
FCG to CSC significantly strengthens our
healthcare offerings while expanding our
healthcare presence in the United States,
Europe and Asia.

With its three lines of business, CSC is cne
of the very few companies to successfully
offer a balanced portfolio of solutions and
services across both the public and com-
mercial sectors. We believe this portfolio
positions CSC for sustained long-term growth
and provides CSC and its investors substantial
mitigation of cyclical economic risk. The
performance of our public sector business
is largely independent of global economic
cycles. Qur outsourcing business provides
profitable, long term annuity revenue and,
generally, operates well in economic down-
turns as potential clients then look to lower
their interna) operating costs. Our BS&S
sector enables growth and enhanced
profitability whenever businesses seek
to improve their competitive advantage.
The combination of these three lines of
business provides CSC growth, long-term
stability and competitive advantage.

CSC is a global company — we deliver to the
world from around the world. As such, we
are especially proud of the progress made in
fiscal 2008 to achieve a balanced, globally
diverse workforce. Exiting fiscal 2008,
29% of CSC employees waorked for the
North American Public Sector, 25% worked
in the Americas, 22% of our staff worked
in EMEA, and 24% of our population worked
in Asia/Pacific.

We have chosen to address our markets and
our customers through six industry verticais.
Four of these verticals were launched in
fiscal 2008 and the remaining two will be
launched this fiscal year (2009). Four of
these six verticals have revenues in excess
of $2.5 billion. The remaining two are billion




dollar businesses, providing sufficient scale
to ensure that CSC will be a formidable
competitor in each of our markets. By facing
our customers vertically, we hope to improve
the breadth as well as the depth of the
CSC's value proposition, improving organic
growth.

We created the Global Office of Sales and
Marketing to drive our sales and marketing
culture. Accordingly, fiscal 2009 will see
the launch of a new branding campaign to
reposition and improve CSC's brand equity
across all of our stakeholder communities.

During fiscal 2008 we evaluated and
redesigned the incentive programs of the
company to align with our strategic objec-
tives. Cash flow performance has been more
heavily weighted in our annual incentive
programs. Sales incentives have been revised
to reward the cross-selling collaboration seen
as critical for enhanced revenue growth. The
Senior Executive compensation program
has been revised to include a three-year
program for long term improvements in
revenue growth and return on invested
capital. These changes in our performance
based incentive programs align executive
and shareholider interests over both short-
and long-term horizcns.

Additionally, we announced the relocation
of our corporate headquarters from California
to Falls Church, Virginia which for some years
has been our operational headguarters. This
will improve communications and strengthen
both corporate and operational efficiencies.

During fiscal 2008 we completed the
share repurchase program announced on
June 29, 20086, involving an overall invest-
ment of approximately $2 billion and the
repurchase of 40.7 million shares.

CSC also strengthened its financial position,
in a very difficult credit market, through
the successful placement of $1.7 billion in
long-term debt.

| am honored to represent CSC — a company
with a market reputation for delivery second
to none; a company with a long term strategy
and a well defined set of objectives, and a
company focused on achieving a new level
of performance and a market valuation
commensurate with its long-term potential.

Sincerely,

e

Michael W. Laphen

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

June 13, 2008




FISCAL 2008 REVENUES BY MARKET SEGMENT ($ In billicns)

% of Total

Bl uUS. Commercial $ 4.1 25%
[ Europe 4.8 29
ll Other International 18 1
Giobal Commercial 10.7 65
] Department of Defense 39 23
O civil Agencies 1.9 12
North American Public Sector 58 35

$16.5 100%

FISCAL 2008 REVENUES BY BUSINESS SERVICE" ($ In billions)

% of Total

Outsourcing
@ North American Public Sector ¢ .8 5%
{1 Global Commercial 73 44
Total Outsourcing 81 49
1T& Professional Services
Hl North American Public Sector 5.0 30
O Global Commercial 34 21
Total IT& Professional Services 8.4 51

$16.5 100%

* Based on C5C estimales
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FISCAL 2008 REVENUES BY VERTICAL MARKET" ($ in bllilons)

% of Total

(O Public Sector $65 39%
U.S. DoD 29 23
U.S. Civil Agencies 1.9 12
International o7 4
[] Financia! Services 28 17
B Manufacturing Services 26 16
{T] Technology & Consumer Services 26 16
[l Healthcare 1.0 6
[ Chemical, Energy & Natural 1.0 6

Resources
$16.5 100%

* Based on CSC estimates

FISCAL 2008 REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHY ($ In billions)

% of Total**
] United States % 99 60%
[7] united Kingdom 2.2 13
[l Germany 05 3
[ Remaining European 21 13
Countries )

B Australia 0.9 5
O asia 0.6 4
[ Other International 0.3 2

$16.5 100%

+* Total may not add to 100% due to rounding.
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Corporate Office

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

WWW.CSC.COMm

Americas Commercial Group
3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falis Church, Virginia 22042
7032.876.1000

Russ H. Owen
President

CSC India

36205 West 12 Mile

Suite 250

Farmington Hills, Michigan 48334
248.488.2088

Raj Vattikuti
President

Financial Services Sector
200 W. Cesar Chavez Street
Austin, Texas 78701
512.275.5000

James D. Cook
President

Global Business Solutions
3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

R. Lemuel Lasher
President

Global Outsourcing Services
3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

Richard C. Ricks
President

Healthcare Sector

3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

Deward Watts
President

North American Public Sector
3170 Fairview Park Drive

Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

James W. Sheaffer
President

World Sourcing Services
3170 Fairview Park Drive
Falls Church, Virginia 22042
703.876.1000

Mary Jo Morris
President

Asia Group

139 Cecil Street
#06-00 Cecil House
Singapore 069539
65.6221.9095

Michael M. Shove
President

Australia Group

26 Talavera Road
Macquarie Park NSW 2113
Sydney, Australia :
612.9034.3000

Nick Wilkinson
President

European Group

Royal Pavilion

Wellesley Road

Aldershot, Hampshire GUN 1PZ
United Kingdom
44(0)1252.534000

Guy M. Hains
President
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DIRECTORS

Michael W. Laphen (2007)
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Computer Sciences
Corporation

irving W. Bailey, H (1992)
Senior Advisor

Chrysalis Ventures, LLC
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Providian Corporation?

David J. Barram (2004)
Chairman

Mobibucks Corporation
Former Administrator
U.S. General Services
Administration'

Committee Memberships
1. Audit
2. Compensation

Stephen L. Baum (1999)
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Sempra Energy "

Rodney F. Chase (2001)
Chairman, Petrofac Ltd.
Former Deputy Group
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

BP p.lc.t3

Judith R. Haberkorn (2007)
Former President of
Consumer Sales and
Service, Verizon
Communications?

3. Nominating/Corporate Governance
Date in parentheses indicates year director was first

elected to the Board

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

F. Warren McFarlan (1989)
T. J. Dermot Dunphy Baker
Foundation

Professor of Business
Administration

Aibert H. Gordon Professor
of Business Administration
Emeritus

Harvard University, Graduate
School of Business
Administration **

Chong Sup Park (2007)
Former Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Maxtor Corporation?

Thomas H. Patrick (2004)
Chairman, New Vernon
Capital LLC

Former Executive Vice
Chairman

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc!

Michael W. Laphen
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Donald G. DeBuck
Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and
Controller

William L. Deckelman, Jr.
Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

Hayward D. Fisk
Vice President

Thomas R. Irvin
Vice President and
Treasurer

Michael E. Keane
Vice President

Gawie M. Nienaber
Vice Presldent and Associate
General Counsel

Randy E. Phillips
Vice President
Corporate Development

Nathan (Gus) Siekierka
Vice President
Human Resources

Paul T. Tucker
Vice President
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PART I

Item 1. Business
INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY

General

Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC or the Company) is one of the world leaders in the information
technology (I/T) and professional services industry. Since it was founded in 1959, the Company has helped
clients use I/T more efficiently in order to improve their operations and profitability, achieve business
results and focus on core competencies.

CSC offers a broad array of services to clients in the Global Commercial and government markets and
specializes in the application of complex IfT to achieve its customers’ strategic objectives. Its service
offerings include information technology and business process outsourcing, and I/T and professional
services.

Qutsourcing involves operating all or a portion of a customer’s technology infrastructure, including
systems analysis, applications development, network operations, desktop computing and data center
management. CSC also provides business process outsourcing, managing key functions for clients, such as
procurement and supply chain, call centers and customer relationship management, credit services, claims
processing and logistics.

I/T and professional services include systems integration, consulting and other professional services.
Systems integration encompasses designing, developing, implementing and integrating complete informa-
tion systems. Consulting and professional services includes advising clients on the strategic acquisition and
utilization of I/T and on business strategy, security, modeling, simulation, engineering, operations, change
management and business process reengineering.

The Company also licenses sophisticated software systems for the financial services and other
industry-specific markets and provides a broad array of end-to-end business solutions that meet the needs
of large commercial and government clients. The Company focuses on delivering results by combining
business innovation skills with scasoned delivery expertise to provide flexible and scalable solutions. To do
s0, CSC draws on its vast experience in designing, building and maintaining farge, complex, mission-critical
systems and applies this knowledge to today’s business challenges.

CSC does not have exclusive agreements with hardware or software providers and believes this vendor
neutrality enables it to better identify and manage solutions specifically tailored to each client’s needs.

Major Markets

CSC provides its services to clients in Global Commercial industries and to the U.S. federal and
foreign governments. Segment and geographic information is included in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 28, 2008.

In the Global Commercial market sector, CSC’s service offerings are delivered 1o clients in a wide
array of industries including aerospace/defense, automotive, chemical and resources, consumer goods,
financial services, healthcare, manufacturing, retail/distribution, telecommunications, and technology. The
Company’s Global Commercial market sector also includes foreign government clients.

The Company has provided I/T services to the U.S. federal government since 1961, is a leading federal
contractor and is one of its tap I/T service providers. CSC serves a broad federal customer base, including
most civil departments and branches of the military, as well as the Department of Homeland Security. The
Company provides a broad spectrum of services to the U.S. federal government, ranging from traditional
systems integration and outsourcing to complex project management and technical services. Key offerings




include enterprise modernization, telecommunications and networking, managed services, base and range
operations, and training and simulation.

Geographically, CSC has major operations throughout North America, Europe and the Asia-Pacific
region, including India.

During the last three fiscal years, the Company’s revenue mix by major markets was as follows:

2008 2007 2006

US. Commercial . ..ot e ettt vt e e 25% 25% 27%
EUFOPE .« ittt e 29 28 29
Other International . .. ... ... i it e st __1_1 _10_ _9
Global Commercial . ... ... ittt et 65 63 65
US. Federal GOvernment . . . ..o v n i m e i oo ieeienaesenenan 35 ﬂ 35
Total REVENUES . .o vt oot ettt e an e meaae e nnn 100% 100% @%

Fiscal 2008 Overview

During fiscal 2008, CSC announced awards valued at approximately $13.3 billion, including $2.0 bil-
lion of Global Commercial awards and $11.3 billion with the U.S. federal government. These multi-year
awards represent the estimated value of the Company’s portion at contract signing. They cannot be
considered firm orders, however, due to their variable attributes, including demand-driven usage, modifi-
cations in scope of work due to changing customer requirements, the annual funding constraints and
indefinite deliveryfindefinite quantity characteristics of major portions of the Company’s U.S. federal
activities.

The Company's former Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer, Van B. Honeycutt, entered into a
retirement agreement with the Company pursuant to which Mr. Honeycutt resigned as Chief Executive
Officer effective May 21, 2007, and as Chairman July 30, 2007. Mr. Michael W. Laphen was elected
President and Chief Executive Officer May 22, 2007 and Chairman of the Board of Dircctors July 30, 2007,

On January 30, 2008, Michael E. Keane resigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The
Board of Directors appointed Donald G. DeBuck, Vice President and Controller, to serve as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer effective January 31, 2008.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 the Company completed the restructuring program
announced in April 2006. The program was designed to streamline CSC’s global operations and increase
the use of lower cost resources, and involved workforce reductions during fiscal 2007 and 2008 to address
excess capacity in certain geographies. As a result of the restructuring program the Company reduced its
workforce by 1,400 and 4,400 during fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively, with the majority of these
reductions, 3,900, occurring in Europe. The restructuring plan resulted in savings of approximately
$389 million and $180 million during fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. The restructuring charges consisted
predominantly of severance and related employee payments resulting from termination. The combined
pre-tax restructuring charge incurred as a result of the restructuring plan was $466.8 million, of which
$133.4 million was incurred during fiscal 2008.

Project Accelerate

During fiscal 2008 the Company began the implementation of a comprehensive growth strategy with
the launch of Project Accelerate. Project Accelerate has five key growth initiatives:

» Providing industry-specific offerings including business solutions, consulting services and business
process outsourcing services for the Financial Services, Healthcare, Manufacturing, Public Sector,
Chemical, Energy & Natural Resources and Technology and Consumer Products industries. In




support of this initiative, the Company acquired First Consulting Group during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2008 expanding its offerings to the Healthcare industry.

Growth and utilization of offshore capabilities, particularly in India. As part of this initiative the
Company acquired Covansys Corporation during fiscal 2008. Covansys Corporation provides the
Company with the capability to sell low cost offshore solutions directly to existing and potential
clients. During fiscal 2008, the Company consolidated its existing operations in India with those
acquired from Covansys. The Company’s acquisition of First Consulting Group provided additional
resources in India as well as operational capabilities in Vietnam.

* Further expand the Company’s ability to provide business solutions, consulting services and business
process outsourcing services internationally. To this end the Company has focused on expanding its
capabilities in Asia, Latin America and Eastern Europe.

» Enhance the Company’s ability to deliver outsourcing services 1o its clients throughout their global
organizations on a consistent basis and provide the full range of the Company’s technical service
offerings to its outsourcing clients. The Company has expanded its offerings and its marketing and
sales efforts for mid-size outsourcing deals.

* Expanding and strengthening the service offerings to the public sector and continuing to improve
the Company’s ability to effectively compete for contracts with the U.S. federal government.

To accomplish these goals the Company has realigned the organization of certain of its business units
in order 10 match the structure of the Company’s operations to these stated goals. The Company is also in
the process of realigning the collection and reporting of financial information for internal management

reporting purposes.

Relocation of Corporate Headquarters

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the relocation of the Company’s corporate headquarters
from El Segundo, California to Falls Church, Virginia in January, 2008. The Company's North American
Public Sector and U.S. outsourcing businesses are headquartered in Falls Church, Virginia and the
relocation provides strategic advantages for senior management as well as other corporate functions. The
relocation was effective March 29, 2008.

Acquisitions
During July, 2007 the Company acquired Covansys Corporation, a publicly held U.S. global consulting
and technology services company for approximately $1.3 billion net of acquired cash. The acquisition of

Covansys Corporation has increased the Company’s delivery capabilities in India and expanded the
Company's offshore service offerings.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 the Company acquired First Consulting Group for approxi-
mately $275 million net of cash acquired. The acquisition of First Consulting Group enhances the
Company’s Healthcare industry offerings as well as expands the Company’s offshore capabilities in India
and Vietnam.

For further discussion of these acquisitions, please see Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Global Commercial Market Highlights

The Global Commercial market new contracts awarded during fiscal 2008 totaled $2.0 billion. The
$7.7 billion of comparable awards for fiscal 2007 included a $3.7 billion award for the United Kingdom’s
National Health Services (NHS). The trend in commercial awards reflects trends in the broader industry,
which has experienced a decrease in the scope andfor term of the contracts awarded as some customers
have moved away from single sourcing their information technology needs to employing multiple vendors




to meet their needs for information services. Offshore information technology outsourcing direct sellers
have been awarded an increasing share of awards as they compete directly with domestic suppliers of these
services. The decline in awards for CSC reflects these trends. During fiscal 2008, and related to the Project
Accelerate initiatives, the Company has focused additional effort on its marketing efforts for mid-size
awards and acquired an offshore-direct supplier of IT services.

North American Public Sector Highlights

New business awards for the North American Public Sector were up from the prior year 21.6%. The
growth reflects demand by government for information services, particularly the Department of Defense.
Several of the awards to the North American Public Sector during fiscal 2008 were significant and are
described in the following discussion.

The Company's largest U.S. federal government award during the fiscal year was a five year contract
with a five year option with the U.S. General Services Administration valued by CSC at $300 million. The
company is one of 29 firms that have been selected to provide the agencies with integrated I/T solutions
under the GSA Alliant contract.

CSC signed an $820 million, ten month contract with nine one-year options, with the U.S. Air Force
Space Command to provide technical services at the Air Force’s Eastern Range. Under the agreement
CSC will provide operation and maintenance services for instrumentation, communications and informa-
tion systems.

CSC entered into a $613 million, two year agreement with three one-year options with the Defense
Information Systems Agency. Under the ID/IQ contract CSC will provide network engineering services for
the Defense Information System Network (DISN) Network Management Support Services.

CSC also signed a $597 million, two to eight year contract with the National Aeronautics and Space
Administration (NASA). Under the agreement CSC will provide supercomputing services to the NASA
Advanced Supercomputing Division.

COMPETITION

The I/T and professional services markets in which CSC competes are not dominated by a single
company or a small number of companies. 'A substantial number of companies offer services that overlap
and are competitive with those offered by the Company. Some of these are large industrial firms, including
computer manufacturers and major acrospace firms that may have greater financial resources than CSC
and, in some cases, may have greater capacity to perform services similar to those provided by the
Company. The increased importance of offshore labor centers has brought a number of foreign-based
firms into competition with CSC.

CSC’s ability to obtain business is dependent upon its ability to offer better strategic concepts and
technical solutions, better value, a quicker response, more flexibility or a combination of these factors. In
the opinion of the Company’s management, CSC is positioned to compete effectively in the Global
Commercial and U.S. federal government markets based on its technology and systems expertise and large
project management skills. [t is also management’s opinion that CSC’s competitive position is enhanced by
the full spectrum of /T and professional services it provides, from consulting to software and systems
design, implementation and integration, to information technology and business process outsourcing to
technical services, delivered to a broad commercial and government customer base.

EMPLOYEES

The Company has offices worldwide, and as of March 28, 2008 employed approximately
89,000 persons. The services provided by CSC require proficiency in many fields, such as computer
sciences, programming, mathematics, physics, engineering, astronomy, geology, operations, research,
economics, statistics and business administration.




U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION REPORTS

All of the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports, filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on or after January 19, 1995 are available free of charge through the
Company’s Internet website, www.csc.com, as soon as reasonably practical after the Company has eleciron-
ically filed such material with, or furnished it to, the SEC.

FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

All statements and assumptions contained in this Annual Report and in the documents attached or
incorporated by reference that do not directly and exclusively relate to historical facts constitute “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Safe Harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. These statements represent current expectations and beliefs of CSC, and no
assurance can be given that the results described in such statements will be achieved.

Forward-looking information contained in these statements include, among other things, statements
with respect to CSC’s financial condition, results of operations, cash {lows, business strategies, operating
efficiencies or synergies, competitive posilions, growth opportunities, plans and objectives of management,
and other matters. Such statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, uncertainties and other
factors, many of which are outside of CSC’s control, which could cause actual results to differ materially
from the results described in such statements. These factors include without limitation those listed below
under Item 1A, Risk Factors.

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report speak only as of the date of this Annual Report,
and forward-looking statements in documents attached or incorporated by reference speak only as to the
date of those documents. CSC does not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions to any
forward-looking statement or to report any events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report or
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law.




Item 1A. Risk Factors

Past performance may not be a reliable indicator of future financial performance. Future performance
and historical trends may be adversely affected by the following factors, as well as other variables, and
should not be relied upon to project future period results.

1. Our business may be adversely impacted as a result of changes in demand, both globally and in individual
market segments, for information technology outsourcing, business process outsourcing and consulting and

systems integration services.

Economic and political uncertainty adversely impact our customers’ demand for our services. A
general economic downturn may adversely impact our customers’ demand for consulting and systems
integration services. Our federal government segment generated approximately 35% of our revenue for
fiscal 2008. While the pipeline for government projects continues to be robust, the budget deficit, the cost
of rebuilding infrastructure as a result of natural disasters, the cost of reconstruction in Iraq and the
ongoing conflicts in Iraq and Afghanistan may reduce the federal government’s demand and available
funds for information technology projects, adversely impacting our federal government scgment and our
business.

2. Our ability to continue to develop and expand our service offerings to address emerging business demands and
technological trends will impact our future growth. If we are not successful in meeting these business
challenges, our results of operations and cash flows will be materially and adversely affected.

Our ability to implement solutions for our customers incorporating new developments and improve-
ments in technology which translate into productivity improvements for our customers and to develop
service offerings that meet the current and prospective customers’ needs are critical to our success. The
markets we serve are highly competitive. Our competitors may develop solutions or services which make
our offerings absolete. Our ability to develop and implement up to date solutions utilizing new technolo-
gies which meet evolving customer needs in consulting and systems intcgration and technology outsourcing
markets will impact our future revenue growth and earnings.

3. Our primary markets, technology outsourcing and consulting and systems integration, are highly competitive
markets. If we are unable to compete in these highly competitive markets, our results of operations will be
materially and adversely affected.

Our competitors include large, technically competent and well capitalized companies. As a result, the
markets which we serve are highly competitive. This competition may place downward pressure on
operating margins in our industry, particularly for technology outsourcing contract extensions or renewals.
As a result, we may not be able to maintain our current operating margins for technology outsourcing
contracts, extended or renewed in the future,

Any reductions in margins will require that we effectively manage our cost structure. If we fail to
effectively manage our cost structure during periods with declining margins, our results of operations will
be adversely affected.

4. Our ability 1o consummate and integrate acquisitions may materially and adversely affect our profitability if
we fail to achieve anticipated revenue improvements and cost reductions.

Our ability to successfully integrate the operations we acquirc and leverage these operations to
generate revenue and earnings growth will significantly impact future revenue and earnings as well as
investor returns. Integrating acquired operations is a significant challenge and there is no assurance that
the company will be able to manage the integrations successfully. Failure to successfully integrate acquired
operations may adversely affect our cost structure thereby reducing our margins and return on investment.




5. Our customers may experience financial difficulties and we may not be able to collect our receivables,
materially and adversely affecting our profitability.

Over the course of a long-term contract, our customers’ financial fortunes may change affecting their
ability to pay their obligations and our ability to collect our fees for services rendered. Additionally, we
may perform work for the federal governmen, for which we must file requests for equitable adjustment or
claims with the proper agency to seek recovery in whole or in part for out-of-scope work directed or caused
by the customers in support of their critical missions. While we may resort to other methods to pursue our
claims or collect our receivables, these methods are expensive and time consuming and success is not
guaranteed. Failure to collect our receivables or prevail on our claims would have an adverse affect on our
profitability.

6. If we are unable to accurately estimate the cost of services and the timeline for completion of contracts, the
profitability of our contracts may be materiafly and adversely affected.

Our commercial and federal government contracts are typically awarded on a competitive basis. Our
bids are based upon, among other items, the cost to provide the services. To generale an acceptable return
on our investment in these contracts we must be able to accurately estimate our costs to provide the
services required by the contract and to be able to complete the contracts in a timely manner. If we fail to
accurately estimate our costs or the time required to compiete a contract, the profitability of our contracts
may be materially and adversely affected.

7. We are defendants in pending litigation which may have a material and adverse impact on our profitability.

As noted in Item 3, Lepgal Proceedings, of this Form 10-K we are currently party to a number of
disputes which involve or may involve litigation. We are not able to predici the ultimate outcome of these
disputes or the actual impact of these matiers on our profitability. If we agree to settle these matters or
judgments secured against us, we will incur charges which may have a material and adverse impact on our
liquidity and earnings.

We are engaged in providing services under contracts with the U.S. Government, These contracts are
subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.S.
Government investigate whether our operations are being conducted in accordance with these require-
ments. U.S. Government investigations of us, whether related to the Company’s federal government
contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal liabilities,
including repayments, fines or penallies being imposed upon us, or could lead to suspension or debarment
from future U.S. Government contracting.

8. Our ability to provide our customers with competitive services is dependent on aur ability to attract and retain
qualified personnel.

Our ability to grow and provide our customers with competitive services is partially dependent on our
ability to attract and retain highly motivated people with the skills to serve our customers. As we noted
above, the markets we serve are highly competitive and competition for skilled employees in the
technology outsourcing and consulting and systems integration markets is intense for both on-shore and
offshore locales.

In addition, services for some government clients require personnel with security clearances. Qualifted
personnel with security clearances are in very high demand,




9. Our international operations are exposed to risks, including fluctuations in exchange rates, which may be
beyond our control.

For fiscal 2008, we earned approximately 40% of revenues in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. As
a result, we are exposed to various risks associated with operating in multiple countries including exposure
to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. While this risk is partially mitigated by largely matching costs
with revenues in a given currency, our exposure to fluctuations in other currencies against the U.S, dollar
increases as revenue in currencies other than the U.S. dollar increase and as more of the services we
provide are shifted to lower cost regions of the world. We project that the percentage of our revenue
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar will continue to represent a significant portion of our
revenue. Also, we project that some of our ability to match revenue and expenses in a given currency will
decrease as more work is performed at offshore locations.

We operate in 55 countries and our operations in these countries are subject 10 the local legat and
political environments. Our operations are subject to, among other things, employment, taxation, statutory
reporting, trade restrictions and other regulations. In spite of our best efforts, we may not be in compliance
with all regulations around the world and may be subject to penalties and/or fines as a result. These
penalties or fines may materially and adversely impact our profitability.

10. Our ability to compete in certain markets we serve is dependent on our ability to continue to expand our
capacity in certain offshore locations. However, as our presence in these locations increases, we are exposed (o
risks inherent to these locations which may adversely impact our revenue and profitability.

A significant portion of our application outsourcing and software development activities have been
shifted to India and we plan to continue to expand our presence there. As such, we are exposed to the risks
inherent to operating in India including 1) a highly competitive labor market for skilled workers which may
result in significant increases in labor costs as well as shortages of qualified workers in the future, 2) the tax
holiday granted by certain tax jurisdictions in India to the Company, which currently extends through 2010,
may not be extended or may be revoked resulting in an increase in income ax expense, 3) the possibility
that the U.S. federal government or the European Union may enact legislation which may provide
significant disincentives 10 customers to offshore certain of their operations which would reduce the
demand for the services we provide in India and may adversely impact our cost structure and profitability.

11. In the course of providing services fo customers, we may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual property
rights of others and be exposed to claims for damages.

The solutions we provide to our customers may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual property
rights of third parties resulting in claims for damages against us or our customers. Our contracts generally
indemnify our clients from claims for intellectual property infringement for the services and equipment we
provide under our contracts. The expense and time of defending against these claims may have a material
and adverse impact on our profitability. Additionally, the publicity we may receive as a result of infringing
intellectual property rights may damage our reputation and adversely impact our ability to develop new
business.

12. Generally our contracts contain provisions under which a customer may terminate the contract prior to
completion. Early contract terminations may materially and adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

Our contracts contain provisions by which customers may terminate the contract prior to completion
of the term of the comtract. These contracts generally allow the customer to terminate the contract for
convenience upon providing written notice. In these cases, we seck, either by defined contract schedules or
through negotiations, recovery of our investments in the contracts. There is no assurance we will be able to
fully recover our investments.




We may not be able to replace the revenue and earnings from these contracts in the short-term. In the
long-term, our reputation may be harmed by the publicity generated from contract terminations.

13. We may be exposed to negative publicity and other potential risks if we are unable to maintain effective internal
controls.

We are required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to provide a report from management to our
shareholders on our internal control over financial reporting including an assessment of the effectiveness
of these controls to provide reasonable assurance a material misstatement did not occur in our financial
statements. The failure of our controls to provide reasonable assurance that a material misstatement does
not exist or to detect a material misstatement may cause us 10 be unable to meet our filing requirements
and the resulting negative publicity may adversely affect our busimess, and our stock price may be
materially and adversely affected.

14. We have identified a material weakness related to accounting for income taxes, and concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of March 28, 2008. Inability to maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting could adversely affect our financial results, the market price of our common
stock or our operations, ‘

The Company has identificd a material weakness related to accounting for income taxes and, as a
result, has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as of March 28, 2008 was not
effective, Remediation of the material weaknesses may be costly and time consuming. Inability to maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our financial results, the market
price of our common stock or our operations. See Item 9A, Controls and Procedures Evaluation of
Disclosure Controls and Procedures in this Form 10-K for further discussion.

15, Our largest customer, the U.S. federal government, accounts for a significant portion of our revenue and
earnings. Inherent in the government confracting process are various risks which may materially and adversely
affect our business and profitability.

A significant portion of our revenue, approximately 34%, is derived from contracts with the U.S.
federal government. As a result, our exposure to the risks inherent in the government contracting process
is material, These risks include government audits of billable contract costs and reimbursable expenses,
project funding and requests for equitable adjustment, compliance with government reporting require-
ments as well as the consequences if improper or illegal activities are discovered.

If any of these should occur, our reputation may be adversely impacted and our relationship with the
government agencies we work with may be damaged, resulting in a material and adverse effect on our
profitability.

16. Our abifity to raise additional capital for future needs will impact our ability to compete in the markets we
serve.

We may require additional capital to purchasc assets, complete strategic acquisitions, repurchase
shares on the open market or for general liquidity needs. Declines in our credit rating or limits on our
ability to sell additional shares may adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital or materially
increase our cost of capital. Our inability to raise additional capilal at a reasonable cost may adversely
impact our revenue growth and the price of our stock.




17. As a result of the delayed filing of our Form 10-Q for the quarter ending September 28, 2007, we are currently
ineligible to use Form S-3 to register securities with the SEC in capital-raising transactions, which may
adversely affect our cost of future capital.

As a result of the delayed filing of our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 28, 2007, we are
ineligible 1o use Form S-3 to register securities for sale by us or for resale by other security holders, in
capital raising transactions, until we have timely filed all periodic reports under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 for at least 12 calendar months. In the meantime, for capital raising transactions, we would
need 1o use Form S-1 to register securities with the SEC, or issue such securities in a private placement,
which could increase the costs of raising capital during this period.

18. Our performance on contracts on which we have partnered with third parties may be adversely affected if the
third parties fail to deliver on their commitments.

Our contracts are increasingly complex and require that we partner with parties including software
and hardware vendors to provide the complex solutions required by our customers. Our ability to deliver
the solution and provide the services required by our customers is dependent on the ability of our partners
to meet their delivery schedules. If our partners fail to deliver their services or products on time, our ability
to complete the contract may be adversely affected which may have a material and adverse impact on our
revenue and profitability.

If we are the primary contractor and our partners fail to perform as agreed, we may be liable to our
customers for penalties or tost profits. These penalties or payments for lost profits may have a material and
adverse effect on our profitability.

19. Our inability to protect client information could impair our reputation, and we could suffer significant
Jinancial loss.

As one of the larger companies in the information technology (I/T) and professional services industry,
we are subject to potentially adverse impacts if sensitive client information is unintentionally lost, stolen, or
compromised. We are responsible for substantial amounts of sensitive client information which often
includes confidential private, and financial records. Failure to protect our clients, could result in reparation
costs and loss of business that may negatively impact our reputation, and earnings.

20. Changes in the Company’s tax rates could affect its future results.

The Company’s future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of eamnings in
countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, or
by changes in tax laws or their interpretation. The Company is subject to the continuous examination of its
income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. The Company regularly
assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these cxaminations to detcrmine the adequacy
of its provision for taxes. There can be no assurance that the ouicomes from these examinations will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition and operating results.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
Owned properties as of March 28, 2008

Copenhagen, Denmark . .............
Blythewood, South Carolina . . .........
Falls Church, Virginia ...............
Aldershot, United Kingdom .. .........
El Segundo, California . . . ............
Newark, Delaware . ... ..............
Norwich, Connecticut. . .. ............
Daleville, Alabama . ... .............
Petaling Jaya, Malaysia ..............
Berkeley Heights, New Jersey. .. ... .. ..
Meriden, Connecticut .. .............
Aaurus, Denmark . .................
Moorestown, New Jersey .. ...........
Chesterfield, United Kingdom .........
Maidstone, United Kingdom ..........
Hong Kong, China. .. ...............
Jacksonville, lllinois . . ... ............
Bangalore, India . ..................
Singapore . . ... oo
Turnbridge, United Kingdom .. ........
Sterling, Virginia . . .................
Various other U.S. and foreign locations . . .

Leased properties as of March 28, 2008

Washington, D.C.area . ..............
India.............. .. ... .. ...

England ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ..
Australia & other Pacific Rim locations . .
Germany . . . ... o e
Ohio. ... e e e e
Denmark .......... ...
Georgia ......... .. i
Tennessee . ..o ettt e e
New York . ...... . . i,
Newlersey ....... ... oot
Minois ......_ ........ . .. ...
Conmnecticul. . ... .o e
Delaware .......... ...
California . ........... .. .cc......
Florida ........... .. ... ... .. .. ..

Ilaly . ...
Alabama . ....._........... ... ...
France ....... ... . i,

Various other U.S. and foreign locations . . .

Approximate Square Footage

General Usage

525,000
456,000
401,000
211,000
206,000
176,000
144,000
137,000
126,000
119,000
118,000
101,000
99,000
79,000
79,000
74,000
60,000
50,000
46,000
43,000
41,000
81,000

3,091,000
1,658,000
832,000
617,000
613,000
600,000
539,000
530,000
515,000
443,000
378,000
327,000
282,000
266,000
262,000
247,000
213,000
210,000
208,000
197,000
195,000
177,000
176,000
175,000
1,979,000

Computer and General Office
Computer and General Office
General Office
General Office
General Office
Computer and Genera!l Office
Computer and General Office
General Office
Computer and Genera!l Office
Computer and General Office
Computer and General Office
Computer and General Office
General Office
General Office
Computer and General Office
General Office
General Office
Computer and General Office
General Office
General Oifice
General Office
General Office

Computer and General Office
Warehouse and General Office
Computer and General Office
Computer and General Office
General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General Office

General QOffice

General Office

Gencral Office

General Office
Industrial/Warehouse

General Office

General Office

General Office

General QOffice

General Office

Computer and General Office

Upon expiration of its leases, the Company does not anticipate any difficulty in obtaining renewals or
alternative space. Lease expiration dates range from fiscal 2009 through 2019.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of business, discrepancies or claims may arise as to the use or reliability of various
software products provided by the Company for its customers. During 2005, the Company was named,
along with other vendors to the insurance industry and dozens of insurance companies in Hensley, et al. vs.
Computer Sciences Corporation, €1 al., filed as a putative nationwide class action in state court in Miller
County, Arkansas shortly before President Bush signed the Class Action Fairness Act into law. The
plaintiffs allege the defendants conspired to wrongfully use software products licensed by the Company
and the other software vendors to reduce the amount paid to the licensees’ insured for bodily injury claims.
Plaintiffs also allege wrongful concealment of the manner in which these software programs evaluate
claims and wrongful concealment of information about alleged inherent errors and flaws in the software.
Plaintiffs seek injunctive and monctary relief of less than $75,000 for each class member, as well as
attorney's fees and costs. The Company is vigorously defending itself against the allegations. The case is
currently in the discovery phase and it is expected that discovery will continue at least through the
remainder of fiscal year 2009. The court has not issued a scheduling order for the case. Therefore, there is
no deadline for completion of discovery in the case nor has a date been set for a hearing on class
certification.

Litigation is inherently uncertain and it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of the matters
discussed above. Considering the early stage of the Hensley case, the complicated issues presented by that
matter, and the fact that no class has been certified, it is not possible at this time to make meaningful
estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from this matter. It is possible that the
Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows could be affected by the
resolution of this matter. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulling from this
proceeding could reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results
of operations, or cash flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and
amount of such losses or damages, if any, and the structure and type of any such remedies. Depending on
the ultimate resolution of these matters, some may be material to the Company’s operating results for a
particular period if an unfavorable outcome results, although such a material unfavorable result is not
presently expected, and all other litigation, in the aggregate, is not expected to result in a material adverse
impact to the consolidated condensed financial statements.

As reflected by Form 8-K filings made by Sears Holdings Corporation (SHC) on May 13, 2005
(following merger with K-Mart Holding Corporation), and by the Company on May 16, 2005, SHC's
subsidiary, Sears, Roebuck and Co. (Sears), and the Company were in dispute over amounts due and owing
following Sears’ termination of its Master Services Agreement (Agreement) with the Company on May 11,
2005. The dispute has been settled as reflected in an 8-K filed October 25, 2007. Under the scttlement
Sears paid the Company $75 million, which was received by the Company on January 8, 2008, as scheduled,
and provides for the recovery of the Company’s net assct position, with no material impact to income.

CSC is engaged in providing services under contracts with the US. Government. The contracts are
subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.S.
Government investigate whether the Company’s operations are being conducted in accordance with these
requirements. U.S. Government investigations of the Company, whether related to the Company’s federal
government contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal
liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon the Company, or could lead to
suspension or debarment from future U.S. Government contracting. The Company believes it has
adequately reserved for any losses which may be experienced from these investigations.

The Company has converted the 16 submitted Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) to interest
bearing claims under the Contract Disputes Act (CDA) totaling approximately $900 million on two U.S.
Federal contracts. Included in current assets on the Company’s balance sheet are approximately $449 mil-
lion ($414 million of which is subject to the claims) of unbilled receivables and $408 million of deferred
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costs related to the claims associated with the two contracts, The Company does not record any profit
element when it defers costs associated with such REAs/claims. CSC has requested payment for customer-
caused delays and certain related out-of-scope work directed or caused by the customers in support of their
critical missions. Notwithstanding the Government's breaches and delays, CSC was obligated under
applicable federal acquisition law to continue performance as directed by the Government; otherwise,
refusal 10 perform would have placed CSC at risk for a termination for defauit under the applicable
provisions of the Federal Acquisition Regulations. The Company believes it has valid bases for pursuing
recovery of these REAs/claims supported by outside counsel’s evaluation of the facts and assistance in the
preparation of the claims, The Company remains committed to vigorous pursuit of its claimed entitlements
and associated value, and continues to believe based on review of applicable law and other considerations
that recovery of at least its net balance sheet position is probable. However, the Company's position is
subject to the ongoing evaluation of new facts and information which may come to the Company’s
attention during the discovery phase of the litigation.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the U.S. federal contracting officer for the contract with the
larger set of claims denied the claims and issued a $42.3 million counterclaim. The Company disagrees with
the Government’s denials both factually and contractually. In contrast to the Company’s claims’ submis-
sion, the Government’s counter-claim was submitted with no verifiable evidence, no citation to any
supporting evidence and no explanation of its method for calculating value. Because of these disputes, the
Company initiated litigation at the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (ASBCAY}, one of the two
forums available for litigation of CDA claims, on September 11, 2007, with regard to the larger of the two
sets of claims and the counterclaim. Decisions of the ASBCA may be appealed to the Court of Appeals for
the Federal Circuit and that court’s ruling may be appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court. During the third
quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company and its litigation team undertook a standard review of the value of the
claims associated with this contract. Value is subject to periodic, routine adjustment as new facts are
uncovered, because of contract modifications and funding changes, ordinary rate adjustments, and/or
estimated cost data being replaced with actual costs. On December 21, 2007, as a result of the review, the
Company amended the complaint it filed with the ASBCA on September 11, 2007, and adjusted its value
downward, with such reduction reflected in the approximately $900 million total value for both sets of
claims noted above. This adjustment is solely to the amount of damages claimed and does not affect the
amounts recorded in the Company’s balance sheet. The discovery phase of this litigation is expected to
begin in the first half of fiscal year 2009. Discovery in the litigation could continue for a period of one to
two years.

With respect to the second set of claims, the Government issued its denial on November 15, 2007. As
with the larger set of claims, the Company disagrees with the Government's denial both factually and
contractually and initiated litigation at the Armed Services Board of Coatract Appeals on February 12,
2008. The discovery phase of this litigation will begin in the first half of fiscal year 2009 and could continue
for a year or more.

Interest on the claims is accruing but will only be recognized in the financial statements when paid.
Resolution of the REA claims/amounts depends on individual circumstances, negotiations by the parties
and prosecution of the claims. The Company will pursue appeals as necessary and is unable to predict the
timing of resolution of recovery of these claims; however, resolution of the claims may take years.

Several shareholders of the Company have made demands on the Board of Directors of the Company
or filed purported derivative actions against both the Company, as nominal defendant, as well as certain of
CS5C’s executive officers and directors. These actions generally allege that certain of the individual
defendants breached their fiduciary duty to the Company by purportedly “backdating” stock options
granted to CSC executives, improperly recording and accounting for allegedly backdated stock options,
producing and disseminating disclosures that improperly recorded and accounted for the allegedly
backdated options, engaging in acts of corporate waste, and committing violations of insider trading laws.
They allege that certain of the defendants were unjustly enriched and seck to require them to disgorge
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their profits. These actions have been filed in both federal and state court in Los Angeles. The federal
action was dismissed with prejudice for failure adequately to allege that a pre-suit “demand” on the Board
was excused, and that matter is now on appeal. A similar suit filed in state court was dismissed on the same
grounds, with leave to amend. The plaintiffs thereafter amended the complaint and the motion to dismiss
the amended complaint is pending. The Company and certain directors and other individuals have also
been sued in a class action proceeding alleging violations of the ERISA statute related to claims of alleged
backdating of stock options. That case was initially filed in federal court in New York, but was recently
transferred to Los Angeles at the request of the Company. There have been no substantive proceedings in
that case. At this time it is not possible to make reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could

result from any of these actions.

In addition to the matters noted above, the Company is currently party to a number of disputes which
involve or may involve litigation. The Company consults with legal counsel on those issues related to
litigation and seeks input from other experts and advisors with respect to such matters in the ordinary
course of business. Whether any losscs, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from such matters could
reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation, or
cash Rows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such
losses or damages (if any) and the structure and type of any such remedies. For these reasons, it is not
possible to make reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from these other
matters at this time. Company management does not, however, presently expect any of such other matters
to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Year First
Elected as  Term as Family
Name Age an Officer an Officer Pusltion Held With the Registrant Relavionshlp
Michael W, Laphen* . . .. .. 57 2001 Indefinite  Chairman, President and Chief None
Exccutive Officer
Donald G. DeBuck . . ... .. 50 2001 Indefinite  Vice President, Controller and Chief None
Financial Officer
William L. Deckelman, Jr. .. 50 2008 Indefinite  Vice President, General Counsel and None
Secretary
Hayward D. Fisk ........ 65 1989  Indefinite Vice President and Secretary None
Thomas R. Irvin . ........ 59 2004 Indefinite  Vice President and Treasurer None
Michae! E. Keane . ... .. .. 52 2006 Indefinite  Vice President None
Gawie N, Nienaber....... 50 2006 Indefinite  Vice President and Associate General None
Counsel
Randy E. Phillips . . ...... 49 2008  Indefinite  Vice President, Corporate Development None
Nathan G. Siekierka . . . ... 59 2008 Indefinite  Vice President, Human Resources None
Paul T. Tucker . ......... 59 1997 Indefinite  Vice President None

*  Director of the Company

Business Experience of Officers

Michael W. Laphen joined the Company in 1977. He was elected President and Chief Executive
Officer in May 2007 and became Chairman in July 2007. He was named a Director of the Company in
February 2007. He previously served as President and Chief Operating Officer from April 2003 to May
2007 and was a Vice President from August 2001 to April 2003. Previous positions within the Company
include President of the European Group (August 2000 to March 2003), President of the Federal Sector—
Civil Group (1998-2000), and President of Systems Group—Integrated Systems Division (1992-1998).

Donald G. DeBuck joined the Company in 1979 and was elected Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Controller in January 2008. He has served as Vice President and Controlier since August 2001.
Previous positions within the Company include Assistant Controller (1998-2001) and Vice President of
Finance and Administration, Communications Industry Services (1996-1998).

William L. Deckelman, Jr. joined the Company in January 2008 and was elected Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary in March 2008. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Deckelman scrved as
Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. and served as a
Director from 2000 to 2003, holding various executive positions there since 1989. Previously, he was a
partner at the law firm of Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr, PC. in Austin, Texas and an attorney at MTech
Corporation.,

Hayward D. Fisk joined the Company in 1989 and served as Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary of Computer Sciences Corporation through March 2008. He remains a Vice President until his
retirement later in 2008. Prior to joining CSC, he was Vice President and Associate General Counsel for
Sprint Corporation, where he held various legal and executive positions since 1968.

Thomas R. Irvin joined the Company as Assistant Treasurer in 1987 and was elected Vice President
and Treasurer in November 2004. Prior to joining the Company, he held various financial and engineering
positions with Ni-Cal Development Corporation, Raytheon and Dravo Corporation.
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Michael E. Keane joined the Company in September 2005 as Vice President, Finance and served as
Chief Financial Officer from February 2006 until January 2008. He remains a Vice President. Previously,
he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of UNOVA, Inc. and Western Atlas, Inc.
and held various executive positions at Litton.

Gawie M. Nienaber joined the Company in 1993. Since January 2008, he has served as Associate
General Counsel with responsibility for legal support to all of CSC’s non-U.S. operations. He was Deputy
General Counsel from 1997 to 2007 and Assistant General Counse! from 1993 to 1997. Prior to joining the
Company, he was in a private law practice, had been a consultant to a firm in Luxembourg and in London
and was an associate attorney with Hunton & Williams’ New York and Washington offices.

Randy E. Phillips joined the Company in December 2007 and was elected Vice President, Corporate
Development in May 2008. Prior to joining the Company, he was President of China Corporate Develop-
ment for Alcoa in Beijing and served as Director of Corporate Development with Alcoa in New York.
Previously, he served as Vice President, Corporate Development for TRW Inc.

Nathan (Gus) Siekierka joined the Company in 1973. He has been responsible for all human
resources functions throughout the Company since November 2005. From 2003 to 2005, he served as Vice
President, Human Resources for four of the Company’s business units: Global Infrastructure Services,
Technology Management Group, Global Transformation Solutions and Americas Business Development.
Previous positions within the Company include Vice President, Human Resources of Federal Sector, and
of several of its divisions.

Paul T. Tucker joined the Company in 1996 and served as Vice President of Corporate Development
from August 1997 through May, 2008. From 1990 to 1995 he was President and Chief Executive Officer of
Knight-Ridder Financial, an electronic real-time financial market information company. Previously, he
founded and served as President and Chief Technologist of HAL Communications Corp., a communica-
tions hardware and software company and was an Associate Professor and Senior Research Engineer at
the University of Illinois.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) Holders

Common stock of Computer Sciences Corporation is listed and traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol “CSC.”

As of May 21, 2008 the number of registered shareholders of Computer Sciences Corporation’s
common stock was 8,101. The table shows the high and low intra-day prices of the Company’s common
stock as reported on the composite tape of the New York Stock Exchange for each quarter during the last
two calendar years and through May 21, 2008.

2008 2007 2006
Calendar Quarter High Low High Low High Low
- $49.50 $36.91 $56.25 $50.38 $59.09 $48.01
2nd. . e 48.22* 37.99* 6000 5155 6039 4826
Id .. e 63.76 4695 53.80 46.23
U 60.00 4921 5413 4748

*  Through May 21, 2008

It has been the Company’s policy to invest earnings in the growth of the Company rather than
distribute earnings as dividends. This policy, under which dividends have not been paid since fiscal 1969, is
expected to continue, but is subject to review by the Board of Directors. Under the Company's most
restrictive covenant requirement, $3,801.9 million of retained earnings was available for cash dividends at
March 28, 2008.

(b) Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information on a monthly basis for the fourth quarter ended March 28,
2008 with respect to the Company’s purchases of equity securities.

Maximum Number

Total Number of Shares
of Shares {or approximate
Purchased as dollar value)
Total Part of Publicly that May Yet
Number of Average Aanounced Be Purchased
Shares Price Paid Plans or Under the Plans
Period ] Purchased(1}  Per Share Programs or Program
December 29, 2007 to January 25, 2008 . . . .. 4,942 425 $41.29 4,942 425 $335,784,812
January 26, 2008 to February 22,2008 . ... .. 5,253,445 $43.41 5,253,445 $107,708,864
February 23, 2008 to March 25,2608 . . ... .. 2,420,349  $44.46 2,420,349

(1) Under the Securities Exchange Commission Rule 10b5-1 open market repurchase program, the
Company purchased a total of 12,616,219 shares in the quarter ended March 28, 2008. Such shares of
common stock are stated at cost. These shares were retired and will not be used for general corporate

purposes.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on CSC stock during the last five fiscal
years with the cumulative total return on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the S&P North

American Technology Services Index, formerly the Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index.

CSC Total Shareholder Retumn
{Period Ended March 28, 2008)

FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2008

|:I— C5C »---A----S&P 500 - - —@ - — S&P North American Technotogy Services Index

Indexed Return (2003 = 100)

Return 2004 Retorn 2005  Return 2006  Return 2007  Return 2008 CAGR

CSC Common Stock . . . ....... 24.44% 11.42% 22.30% (616)% (21.713)% 4.49%
S&P 500 Index . ............. 35.12% 6.69% 11.73% 11.83% (5.62)% 11.20%
S&P North American Technology

Services Index............. 36.27% 3.06% 21.75% 7.42% (1133)% 10.25%

Assumes $100 invested on April 1, 2003 in Computer Sciences Corporation Common Stock, the
S&P 500 Index, and the S&P North American Technology Services Index, formerly the Goldman Sachs
Technology Services Index. Indexed amounts and return percentages assume a March 31 fiscal year end.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

Five Year Review
In milliens except per-share amounts March 28, 2008  March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006  April §, 2005 April 2, 2004
Total Assets, . ............. $15,7748 $13,7402 $12963 5 $12,5223  $11,680.7
Debt:
Long-term .............. 2,035.3 1,412.2 1,376.8 1,303.0 2,306.4
Shorttermn ... ... ..o 309.5 519 56.6 78.4 529
Current maturities ... ..... 5289 418 28.7 7.3 7.2
Total ..........0onu.n 3,473.7 1,505.9 1,462.1 1,388.7 2,366.5
Stockholders’ equity......... 5,461.8 5,540.0 6,195.7 6,019.3 5,000.6
Working capital .. .......... 1,3329 1,045.4 1,582.9 11289 1,441.5
Property and equipment:
Atcost ................ 6,260.0 5,612.9 5,367.9 5,520.3 4,988.9
Accumnulated depreciation
and amortization. .. ... .. 34954 30738 30478 3,1549 28189
Property and equipment, net . 2,764.6 2,539.1 2,320.1 2,365.4 2,170.0
Current assets to current
liabilities . .............. 1.21 1.2:1 1.3:1 1.2:1 1.4:1
Debt to total capitalization . . . . 38.9% 21.4% 19.1% 18.7% 321%
Book value per share . . ... .. $ 3614 $ 3196 $ 33.09 $ 3148 § 2661
Stock price range (high) ... .. 63.76 60.39 59.90 58.00 47.00
{low) ...... 3691 46.23 42.31 38.07 26.52
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Five-Year Review (Continued)

Fiscal Year

In millions except per-share amounts 2008 2007 2006 2008 2004
ReVenUeS. . ... vi i i i i i e rannn $16,499.5 $14,8549 $146448 $14,0608 $13,468.5
Costs of services (excludes depreciation and

amortization) . . ......... ... 13,1519 11,8135 11,7245 11,3186 10,8373
Selling, general and administrative ....... 9754 9183 863.8 826.3 826.5
Depreciation and amortization . ......... 1,198.6 1,073.6 1,091.8 1,051.0 966.0
Interest, met. . ........ ... viunnn.. 148.3 168.4 104.3 1574 172.9
Specialitems . .. .................... 155.8 316.1 773 28.6 227
Other (income)/expense ... ............ (48.4) (41.3) 21.3 (21.8) (126.6)
Total costs and expenses . .. ............ 15,581.6 14,2486 13,8830 133601 12,6988
Income beforetaxes ... ............... 917.9 606.3 761.8 700.7 769.7
Taxes ON iNCOME . ... ..v'vrvnnrnnnnns 3733 209.0 3195 2374 276.0
Income from continuing operations . . . . ... $ 5446 $ 3973 § 4423 § 4633 § 4937
Basic earnings per common share,

continuing operations . .............. $ 326 $§ 225 § 238 § 244 § 264
Diluted earnings per common share,

continuing operations .. ............. $ 320 8§ 221 § 235 3 241 § 262
Average common shares outstanding . . . . .. 167.233 176.263 185.693 189.575 187.273
Average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution .................. 170.168 179.733 187.984 191.936 188.648
Notes:

Fiscal 2008 special items represent charges related to the restructuring and to the retirement of the
Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

Fiscal 2007 special items represent charges related to the restructuring and a true-up of an impair-
ment charge related to the termination of the Nortel Networks contract offset by a gain from the
redemption of Dyncorp International preferred stock.

Fiscal 2006 special items represent charges related to the termination, per an agreement made with
Norte] Networks, of the Company’s services for certain information technology outsourcing activities, see
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. Fiscal 2005 special items represent charges related to the
early retirement of debt. Fiscal 2004 special items relate to exit and disposal activities.

No dividends were paid by CSC during the five years presented.

The consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report present the gain on
sale of discontinued operations and the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditlon and Results of Operations

GENERAL

The following discussion and analysis provides information management believes is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of the consolidated results of operations and financial condition of
Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC or the Company). The discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended March 28,
2008. There are three primary objectives of this discussion:

1) to provide a narrative explanation of the consolidated financial statements, as presented through the
eyes of management;

2) to enhance the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and footnotes, providing context
within which the consolidated financial statements should be analyzed; and

3) to provide information 1o assist the reader in ascertaining the predictive value of the reported
financial results.

To achieve these objectives, the discussion is presented in the following sections:

Overview—includes a brief description of the business and how it earns revenue and generates cash,
as well as a discussion of the key business drivers, economic and industry factors, fiscal 2008 highlights and
fiscal 2009 commentary.

Results of Operations—discusses year-over-year changes to operating results for fiscal 2006 to 2008,
describing the factors affecting revenue on a consolidated and reporting segment basis, including new
contracts, acquisitions and currency impacts, and also by describing the factors affecting changes in the
major cost and expense categories.

Financial Condition—discusses causes of changes in cash flows and describes the Company’s liquidity
and available capital resources.

Critical Accounting Estimates—discusses accounting policies that require critical judgments and
estimates.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s primary service offerings are outsourcing and I/T and professional services. Qutsourc-
ing activities include operating ail or a portion of a customer’s technology infrastructure and applications,
and business process outsourcing. I/T and professional services include systems integration, consulting and
other professional services and software systems sales and related services. CSC provides these services to
customers in the Global Commercial and North American Public Sector markets. On a geographic basis,
CSC provides services to Global Commercial customers in the United States, Europe and other interna-
tional locations. Operations in Australia, Asia and Canada generate substantially all revenue within Other
International.

Economic and Industry Factors

Global Commercial markets are affected by various economic and industry factors. The economic
environment in the regions CSC serves will impact customers’ decisions for discretionary spending on
I/T projects. CSC is in a highly competitive industry which exerts downward pressure on pricing and
requires companies to continually seek ways to differentiate themselves through several factors, including
service offerings and flexibility. Management monitors industry factors including relative market shares,
growth rates, billing rates, staff utilization rates and margins as well as macroeconomic indicators such as
interest rates, inflation rates and foreign currency rates.
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The North American Public Sector market is also highly competitive and has unique characteristics.
All US. government contracts and subcontracts may be modified, curtailed or terminated at the conve-
nience of the government if program requirements or budgetary constraints change. In the event that a
contract is terminated for convenience, the Company generally is reimbursed for its allowable costs
through the date of termination and is paid a proportionate amount of the stipulated profit or fee
attributable to the work performed. Shifting prioritics of the U.S. government can also impact the future of
projects. The Company recognized the 1).S. government’s increased priorities on defense and homeland
security programs and has focused business development efforts in these areas. Management monitors
government priorities and industry factors through numerous industry and government publications and
forecasts, legislative activity, budgeting and appropriation processes and by participating in industry
professional associations.
Business Drivers

Revenue is generated by providing services on a variety of contract vehicles lasting from less than six
months to 10 years or more. Factors affecting revenue include:

* the Company’s ability to successfully bid on and win new contract awards,
* the ability to satisfy existing customers and obtain add-on business and win contract re-competes,
+ the ability to compete on price, services offered, technical ability, experience and flexibility,

* the ability to successfully identify and integrate acquisitions and leverage them to generate new
revenues,

= currency fluctuations related to international operations.
Eamnings are driven by the above revenue factors, in addition to the following:

* the ability to control costs, particularly labor costs, subcontractor expenses and overhead costs
including healthcare, pension and general and administrative costs,

* the ability to anticipate headcount needs to avoid staff shortages or excesses,
* the ability to accurately estimate various factors incorporated in contract bids and proposals, and
* the ability to develop offshore capabilitics and migrate compatible service offerings offshore.

Cash flows are impacted by the above earnings factors, in addition to other factors including the
following:

= timely management of receivables and payables,

+ investment opportunities available, particularly related to business acquisitions and dispositions and
large outsourcing contracts, and

* the ability to efficiently manage capital including debt and equity instruments.

Key Performance Indicators

The Company manages and assesses the performance of its business through various means, with the
primary financial measures including new contract wins, revenue growth, margins, cash flow and return on
investment.

New contract wins—In addition to being a primary driver of future revenue, focusing on new contract
wins also provides management an assessment of the Company’s ability to compete. The total level of wins
tends to fluctuate from year to year depending on the timing of new and recompeted contracts as well as
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numerous external factors. CSC employs stringent financial and operational reviews and discipline in the
new contract process to evaluate risks and generate appropriate margins and returns from new contracts.

Revenue growth—Year-over-year revenues tend to vary less than new contract wins, and reflect
performance on both new and existing contracts. With a wide array of services offered, the Company is
able to pursue additional work from existing customers. In addition, incremental increases in revenue will
not necessarily result in linear increases in costs, particularly overhead and other indirect costs, thus
potentially improving profit margins. Foreign currency fluctuations also impact revenue growth.

Margins—Margins reflect the Company's performance on coatracts and ability to control costs. While
the ratios of various cost elements as a percentage of revenue can shift as a result of changes in the mix of
businesses with different cost profiles, a focus on maintaining and improving overall margins leads to
improved efficiencies and profitability. Although the majority of the Company’s costs are denominated in
the same currency as revenues, increased use of offshore support also exposes CSC to additional margin
fluctuations.

Cash flow—Over time the primary drivers of the Company’s cash flow are earnings provided by the
Company’s operations and the use of capital to generate those earnings. Also contributing to short term
cash flow results are mavements in current asset and liability balances. The Company also regularly reviews
the U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) cash flow measurements of operating,
investing and financing cash flows, as well as non-GAAP free cash flow.

Return on investment (ROI}—RO! is an effective indicator combining a focus on margins with
efficient and productive net asset wtilization. A combination of strong margins (measuring how efficiently
profit is generated from revenue) and investment base turnover (measuring how effectively revenue is
generated from investors’ capital) is required to generate sufficient returns on capital. Strong working
capital management also serves to minimize investment capital and increase returns.

Readers should be cautioned that Days Sales Qutstanding (DSQ), free cash flow and ROI are not
GAAP measures, and the Company’s definition of such measures may differ from other companies.
Therefore, such measures may not be comparable (o those of other companies. CSC thinks these
non-GAAP financial measures provide useful information to investors regarding the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations as they provide another measure of the Company’s performance and
ability to service its debt. CSC calculates DSO as follows: Average of the current and 4 prior period
Quarterly DSOs. Quarterly DSOs are calculated as the total receivables at quarter-end divided by the
revenue-per-day. Revenue-per-day equals total revenues for the last twelve months divided by the numbers
of days in the last twelve months. Free cash flow is equal to the sum of 1) operating cash flows, 2) investing
cash flows, excluding business acquisitions and dispositions, purchase or sale of available for sale securities
and 3) capital lease payments. ROl is calculated by multiplying profit margin times investment base
turnover. The profit margin used is profit before interest expense and special items and after tax divided by
revenues. Investment base turnaver equals revenues divided by average debt and equity. The Company’s
management uses ROI, DSO and free cash flow 1o evaluate segment investment returns and cash flow
performance and are some of the measures used to assess management performance.

Fiscal 2008 Highlights
Significant events during fiscal 2008 include:

» Revenues rose 11.1%, and increased 7.5% on a constant currency basis.

» The Company recorded a special pretax restructuring charge of $133.4 million ($94.5 million after
tax or 56 cents per share), and a $22.4 million ($13.6 million after tax or 8 cents per share) special
pretax charge related to the retirement of its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer July 30, 2007.
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» Net income, including special charges, was $544.6 million compared to $397.3 million for the prior
year an increase of 37.1%.

* Earnings per share, after special charges, were up 44.8%, The fiscal 2008 special charge of 64 cents
per share, as compared to the prior year special charge of $1.46 per share, favorably impacted the
comparison of earnings per share by 37.1%, as compared to the prior year.

» The Company announced contract awards of $13.3 billion with new North American Public Sector
awards of $11.3 billion with the remainder of awards to Global Commercial.

+ The Company completed a 10b5-1 share repurchase program during fiscal 2008 and purchased
21.7 million shares on the open market at an average purchase price of $47.49 per share. During the
year the Company also completed two accelerated share repurchase transactions initiated during
fiscal 2007. As final settlement for these transactions the Company received an additional 2.7 mil-
lion shares and $28.7 million in cash.

» In total for these share repurchase programs, the Company spent approximately $2 billion to
acquire 40.7 million shares at an average price per share of $49.12.

* Free cash flow of $175.2 million decreased $496.3 million during fiscal 2008. Fiscal 2008 cash
outflows included approximately $180 million disbursed for restructuring activities, as well as
approximately $496 million for income tax payments.(1)

» DSO was 103 days at year-end versus 98 days at the end of the prior year.

» Debt-to-total capitalization ratio was 38.9% at year-end, an increase of 17.5% points from the prior
year ratio.

* ROI from continuing operations was 8.7% for the year a 2.0% point decrease from prior year.
The Company's significant wins during fiscal 2008 included the following:
North American Public Sector:
« U.S. General Scrvices Administration ($900 miltion)
* U.S. Air Force Space Command ($820 million),
Defense Information Sys Network ($613 million),
» National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) ($597 million), and
* National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) ($544 million).

(1) The following is a reconciliation of free cash flow to the most directly comparable Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) financial measure:

Fiscal Year Ended

(in millions) March 28, 2008  March 30, 2007  March 31, 2006
Freecashflow ... ... ..., $ 1752 $ 6715 $ 4629
Net cash used in investing activities. . . .............. 2,718.7 872.7 1,124.0
Proceeds from redemption of investment in preferred

SOCK . .ot i 126.5
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired . . ................ (1,591.1) {134.3) (44.1)
Business dispositions . ........... ... ... ... 28 5
Capital lease payments . . ....ovveiiviie e 40.1 39.4 8.0
Net cash provided by operating activities . .. .......... $ 1,342.9 $1,578.6 $1,551.3
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Global Commercial:

* The values of Global Commercial segment significant new contracts were not disclosed at
clients’ request.

The North American Public Sector awards represent the estimated value of the Company’s portion at
contract signing. They cannot be considered firm orders, however, due to their variable attributes,
including demand-driven usage, modifications in scope of work due to changing customer requirements,
annual funding constraints and indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity characteristics of major portions of
the Company’s North American Public Sector activities.

Revenue growth, after adjusting for the impact of currency rate fluctuations and acquisitions, was
3.6% in the Global Commercial sector and after adjusting for acquisitions was 4.3% in the North
American Public Sector. New Global Commercial awards were below historical averages during fiscal 2008
and continue to reflect the industry trend, noted last year, toward smaller scope and/or shorter term
outsourcing contracts. The majority of the new awards for the Global Commercial sector was awarded
during the first quarter of the fiscal year. The North American Public Sector continued to win a share of
U.S. federal government contracts as its total contract awards for fiscal 2008 increased by 22% from the
previous fiscal year with contract awards from the Department of Defense continuing to lead the way.
Currency shifts during fiscal 2008 favorably impacted revenue in both Europe and Other International.

The Company has developed a broad, long-term revenue base which includes customers spread across
multiple industries and geographic regions as well as service lines. Approximately 76.5% of CSC'’s revenues
are derived from long-term contracts including Global Commercial outsourcing and U.S. federal govern-
ment engagements. This provides the Company with a relatively stable base of revenue during periods
when contract awards may slow or the market for certain services softens.

The Company’s working capital increased as a result of an increase in accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other assets as well as a decrease in taxes payable. The net effect was a decrease in cash flow
from operations for fiscal 2008. The increase in prepaid expenses and other items includes a bond paid to
the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (IRS) against certain tax liabilities to stop the accrual of additional
interest and an increase in work-in-process primarily related to the NHS contract. Cash outflow for
investing activities increased primarily due to the acquisition of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting
Group for approximately $1.6 billion, net of cash acquired. Cash provided from financing activities reflect
the Company’s issnance of $1.7 billion of long-term notes issued to finance the acquisitions noted above.
Cash used to acquire outstanding common stock during fiscal 2008 of $1.01 billion was approximately the
same as cash expended to acquire outstanding common stock during fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2009 Commentary

As a leading federal contractor and one of the top I/T service providers to the U.S. federal
government, CSC’s North American Public Sector is well-positioned to benefit from continued demand for
I/T services in this market. The U.S. federal government is one of the world’s largest /T services
consumers, and its spending is expected to continue to increase during the upcoming year in order to
improve technologics in the areas of defense, homeland security and civil agency modernization. While the
ultimate distribution of U.S. federal funds and project assignments can vary, the Company expects its
broad /T and outsourcing capabilities to be viewed favorably by the U.S. federal government.

Global Commercial market awards during fiscal 2008 declined compared to prior period amounts.
However, the Company expects revenue in the Global Commercial market 1o increase from fiscal 2008
levels during fiscal 2009. Much of this increase is expected from leveraging current engagements and
expanding the range of services the Company provides to current customers. The Company also expects
the growth initiatives begun under Project Accelerate during fiscal 2008, as discussed below, to begin
yielding positive results during fiscal 2009. The Company has a base of significant outsourcing contracts




which the Company expects to continue to provide a stable revenue stream during fiscal 2009. However,
growth from this revenue stream is expected to be tempered by the continued demand for offshore services
and the resulting pressure on prices. The Company expects the acquisition of Covansys Corporation to
cushion the effect of these pressures on revenue. During fiscal 2008 the Company’s consulting and systems
integration business in Europe reversed the historical trend with growth in revenue in the fourth quarter
and the Company expects this trend to continue on a modest scale during fiscal 2009. During fiscal 2008,
the Company’s Globai Commercial segment’s revenue was favorably impacted by currency fluctuations in
Europe and Other International regions. The Company cannot forecast future movement in currency
exchange rates or its impact on operating resulis.

Other trends the Company expects for fiscal 2009 are as follows:

* Revenue for the North American Public Sector for fiscal 2009 will benefit from its $11.3 billion of
announced awards during fiscal 2008. This represents a $2.0 billion increase in awards over
fiscal 2007. The North American Public Sector is expected to continue to grow at or above the
revenue growth rate for fiscal 2008. The Company expects Global Commercial revenue growth to
be tempered by the previous softness in new contract awards during the later part of fiscal 2007 and
fiscal 2008. The demand for offshore services is expected to continue to increase as customers seek
to tower costs and will present opportunity as well as temper revenue growth in Europe as well as
the U.S. Commercial market. Global Commercial revenue growth will benefit from the acquisitions
of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group during fiscal 2008.

* The Company has identified and expects to pursue $30.3 billion of federal opportunities that will be
awarded in fiscal 2009, plus an additional $20.7 billion during fiscal 2010.

* Cash flow from operations for fiscal 2009 is expected to increase from the $1,342.9 million for
fiscal 2008.

+ Cash outflow from investing activities, excluding acquisitions, is expected to increase from fis-
cal 2008 levels primarily as a result of investment in computers and related equipment in the
U.S. Commercial, Europe and North American Public Sector.

+ Interest expense is expected to increase for fiscal 2009 as a result of interest on debt issued to
acquire Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group. If the Company does not close any
significant acquisitions, the Company’s debt-to-total capitalization ratio is expected 1o decline
during fiscal 2009 as the Company does not intend to refinance the 6.25% term notes due March
2009 and 3.5% term notes due April 2008 on a long-term basis.

* The restructuring plan was completed during fiscal 2008 and as such the Company will not have
restructuring expense for fiscal 2009. The Company has also relocated its Corporate headquarters
from El Segundo, CA. to Falls Church, VA, Costs for this move and transition may be offset by a
gain from the sale of the headquarters building in El Segundo, CA.

» The Company initiated a foreign currency exposure hedging program during fiscal 2008. The
program utilized foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the balance sheet exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations. Beginning in Aprit 2009 the Company will substantially hedge the economic
risk related to costs incurred in the Indian Rupee, utilizing foreign currency option contracts. These
contracts will not be treated as hedges for accounting purposes. As such, marking the options to
market on a quarterly basis may create volatility in other income. The Company expects gains and
losses from foreign currency movements to be significantly reduced from fiscal 2008 levels during
fiscal 2009.

As discussed in previous sections of this document the Company began the implementation of a
comprehensive growth strategy, Project Accelerate, during fiscal 2008. This strategy focused on five (5) key
growth initiatives. The Company has reatigned its business units to support this strategy for fiscal 2009. As
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a result of realigning the business units the reportable segments may change for fiscal 2009 reporting. The
Company achieved significant progress with regard to the five growth initiatives:

* Focus on enhancing industry-specific offerings and value proposition to clients. The Company
realigned its business units and related management for fiscal 2009 to support industry-specific
offerings for current as well as potential clients in the Financial Services; Healthcare; Manufactur-
ing, including Aerospace & Defense; Public Sector; Chemical, Energy & National Resources; and
Technology/Consumer services industry verticals.

* Focus on aggressively growing and leveraging its India capabilities. During fiscal 2008 the Company
acquired Covansys Corporation, an India Direct seller of offshore services. The India operations of
Covansys Corporation and the Company’s previously existing operations in India have been
combined under one operating entity in India. In addition, the Company acquired First Consulting
Group, a Healthcare industry specialized consulting company with an offshore presence in India
and Vietnam. During fiscal 2009 the Company plans to expand its presence in Vietnam.

 Focus on further expanding its global footprint. During fiscal 2008 the Company expanded its
capabilities in Asia, as discussed above, and opened a new service center in Lithuania and expanded
the existing service center in Prague, Czech Republic. The Company plans to open an additional
service center in Eastern Europe during fiscal 2009,

* Focus on commercial outsourcing and further strengthen the Company's ability to deliver the
services its clients require consistently and seamlessly across their global enterprise. For fiscal 2009
the Company has consolidated outsourcing services under one umbrella organization, Global
Outsourcing Services. This organization’s focus will be on managing large, global IT outsourcing
engagements as well as the pursuit of mid-market transactions having total contract values between
$50 and $350 million.

* Focus on the North American Public Sector market. The North American Public Sector was
awarded $11.3 billion in new awards during fiscal 2008, an increase of 21.6% from the prior year.

In addition to Project Accelerate the Company’s short-term financial and operational objectives
include:

1. Successfully integrate the acquisition of First Consulting Group.

2. Effectively manage working capital and improve working capital metrics such as DSO.
3. Effectively manage capital investment with a focus on improving return on investment.
4

Maintain appropriate investment base turnover rates and operating margins, with particular
emphasis on the new business, in order to improve return on investment.

5. Relocate the Corporate Headquarters to Falls Church, VA, with minimal disruption to
operations.
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RESULTS OF QPERATIONS
Revenues

Revenues for the Global Commercial and North American Public Sector segments (see Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements) for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 are as follows:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
Percent Percent
Dollars in millions Amount Change Amount Change Amount
US. Commercial .. ..................... $ 41286 93% $3,776.7 (47)% $ 3,961.8
Europe . ... ... . i 48246 164 4,144.6 (9 4,182.6
Other International .. ................... 1,765.2 18.7 1,487.1 9.3 1,360.5
Global Commercial sector . .. ............... 10,7184 139 9,408.4 (1.0) 9,504.9
North American Public sector . .............. 5,781.1 6.1 5,446.5 6.0 5,139.9
Corporate . .. ......ooiviiiiviinia .
Total .. e e e $16,4995 111 $14,8549 14  $14,6448

The major factors affecting the percent change in revenues are presented as follows:

Approximate
{mpact
of Currency  Net Internal
Fiscal 2008 vs. Fiscal 2007 Acquisitions  Fluctuatlons Growth M
US Commercial .. ..., 10.5% (12)% 93%
Burope ... ... e 03 8.7% 74 16.4
Other International . ........... .t rrnnnses 23 13 5.1 18.7
Giobal Commercial sector . .......civvvve v rneans 4.7 5.6 3.6 139
North American Publicsector .............. ... ... 1.8 4.3 6.4
J U € [ AR 36 36 39 11.1
Approximate
Impact
of Currency  Net Internal
Fiscal 2007 vs. Fiscal 2006 Fluctuations Growth y
US. Commercial ........oivriiii i, @4N% @.N%
BUIODE .. e e e 5.1% 6.0) (9
Other International . ... ......... i isesraneannas 33 6.0 9.3
Global Commercial SECtOF . . ... ..ot vn i e eei i aan 2.7 3.7 (1.0)
North American Public sector _ . ... ... it it tineeannn 6.0 6.0
1 1o 7Y U 1.7 {.3) 1.4

Fiscal 2008 revenue growth was the result of internal organic growth in Europe, Other International
and North American Public Sector operations, the acquisition of Covansys Corporation, Datatrac and First
Consulting Group and the favorable impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. This growth
offset the impact of a decline in commercial awards during fiscal 2007 and 2008 in U.S. Commercial
operations and continued softness in the consulting and systems integration business in North America.
The growth in Global Commercial revenue for fiscal 2008 of 3.6% (excluding acquisitions and the effects
of currency changes) was the result of new engagements and growth on existing engagements as well as
growth in consulting and systems integration operations in Europe and growth in our Other International
operations. Other International operations benefited from growth on existing engagements with additional
project work in Asia and Australia from growth on new and existing engagements and a professional
staffing business. The growth in Europe and Other International operations was offset by limited new
commercial business in North America and the impact of unsuccessful recompete efforts on certain
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engagements as well as continued softness in demand for consulting and systems integration services in
North America. The acquisition of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group contributed 4.7% to
revenue growth in the Global Commercial segment, primarily in U.S. Commercial operations. Currency
contributed 5.6% to Global Commercial revenue growth. The North American Public Sector benefited
from revenue growth on existing programs and contracts awarded during fiscal 2007, as well as the
acquisition of Datatrac at the end of the third quarter in fiscal 2007. These positive factors offset the
effects of programs with reduced scopes.

Fiscal 2007 growth from Department of Defense contracts in the North American Public Sector and
growth in Other International operations helped offset the impact of 1) terminated commercial contracts
with Nortel Networks and Sears, 2) the impact of a decline in commercial awards during fiscal 2006 and
early 2007 in U.S. Commercial and Europe operations and 3) reduced scope on an intelligence agency
program. The decline in Global Commercial revenue for fiscal 2007 of 1.0% (a decline of 3.7% in constant
currency) was the result of terminated engagements in U.S. Commercial operations and reductions in
scope on a number of contracts in Europe offset by growth in our Australian and Asia operations. Other
International operations benefited from growth on existing business as a result of successful recompete
efforts on contracts in Australia and additional project work on contracts in Asia. The North American
Public Sector revenue growth benefited from growth on existing programs, contracts awarded during
fiscal 2007 and from the acquisition, in the third quarter, of Datatrac. These positive factors offset the
effects of programs with reduced scopes as noted above.

Global Commercial

Revenue from Global Commercial increased during fiscal 2008 compared to the prior year with
revenue 13.9% above prior year. Adjusted for impact of foreign currency exchange rates and excluding
revenue from acquisitions revenue was up 3.6% compared to the prior year. The primary sources for the
internal organic growth were Europe with growth from new engagements and consulting and systems
integration activities, Other International with growth from project work on existing contracts in Asia and
Australia and growth in a professional staffing business in Australia. Business acquisitions provided
$442 million of revenue during fiscal 2008 and movement in foreign currency exchange rates accounted for
approximately $530 million of revenue growth during the year. This growth was partially offset by limited
new outsourcing engagements as well as softness in demand for consulting and systems integration services
in the United States.

U.S. Commercial revenues, excluding acquisitions, decreased $44 million for fiscal 2008, or 1.2%. The
decline was attributable to several factors, the most significant of which was the loss on recompete of
contracts with a municipal county government and a hospital company, which combined contributed
$55 million of revenue in the prior year. Other factors contributing to the decline were continued softness
in demand for the Company's consulting and systems integration services, planned rate reductions on
certain outsourcing engagements and reduced project work on outsourcing engagements in the United
States. These declines were partially offset by new engagements with an auto parts supplier, a natural
resources company and a private university which combined for $77 million in revenue for fiscal 2008. The
acquisition of Covansys Corporation, and of First Consulting Group, combined to provide $396 million of
revenue in the United States during fiscal 2008,

During fiscal 2008, European revenues, excluding acquisitions and currency effects, increased
$306 million or 7.4% from the prior year. This growth was from new outsourcing and I/T and professional
services engagements with U.K. National Health Service and other UK public sector customers, an
investment bank and an auto parts manufacturer which combined for $176 million in revenue growth. The
consulting and systems integration regions provided $75 million of revenue growth with increased project
work. The remaining growth was from existing outsourcing engagements. Favorable currency effects
provided $362 million of revenue growth for fiscal 2008.
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Before the effects of currency and acquisitions Other International revenues increased $76 million or
5.1% during fiscal 2008. Australian operations contributed $58 million of revenue growth with the growth
attributable to a professional staffing business 2nd increased project work on outsourcing contracts. Asia
contributed $30 million in revenue growth attributable to additional work on various outsourcing engage-
ments. This growth was offset somewhat by a decline in revenue from Canada operations. Currency effects
and the acquisition of Covansys Corporation contributed $168 million and $34 million, respectively, to
revenue growth in fiscal 2008. ‘

Revenue from Global Commercial declined in fiscal 2007 compared to the prior year with revenue
1.0% below prior year and on a constant currency basis 3.7% below prior year. Declines in new contract
awards during fiscal 2007, the termination of certain U.S. Commercial contracts, declines in revenue from
mature contracts in Europe and continued soft demand for consulting and systems integration offerings
were partially offset by growth in Australia and Asia.

U.S. Commercial revenues decreased $175 million for fiscal 2007, or 4.7%. The decline was primarily
the result of the termination of the Sears, Roebuck & Co and Norte! Networks contracts, which combined
contributed an additionatl $205 million of revenue in the prior year. These declines were partially offset by
revenue growth on existing outsourcing contracts, Revenue in the consulting and systems integration
business was unchanged from the prior ycar as the increase in demand for these services in the prior year
did not carry forward into fiscal 2007. No significant new contracts contributed to growth in
U.S. Commercial business for fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007, European revenues decreased $38 million or 0.9% and on a constant currency
basis decreased $253 million or 6.0% from the prior year. Growth from outsourcing and I/T and
professional services engagements with U.K. National Health Service and Scandinavia public sector
combined for $58 million in revenue growth and favorable currency effects, which contributed $214 mil-
lion, were offset by revenue declines as a result of reductions in the scope of work for certain outsourcing
engagements of $155 million in Northern Europe, the termination of the Nortel Networks contract, a
decline in software license sales and continued softness in demand for the Company’s consulting and
systems integration services in Germany and Italy.

Other International revenues increased $127 million or 9.3%, 6.0% in constant currency, during
fiscal 2007. Australian operations contributed $84 million of revenue growth altributable to a professional
staffing business, a major outsourcing contract and success in winning a number of recompete contracts
during fiscal 2007. This growth was offset somewhat by the expiration of a government contract. Asia
contributed $59 million in revenue growth attributable to additional work on various outsourcing engage-
ments. This growth was offset somewhat by a decline in revenue from Canada operations, primarily as a
resuli of the termination of the Nortel Networks contract.

North American Public Sector

The Company’s North American Public Sector revenues were derived from the following sources:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
Percent Percent
Doltars In millions Amount  Change  Amouni  Change Amount
Department of Defense. . . ................... $3,859.7 71% $3,6033 57% $34103
Civilagencies . ... ... ... ... ... ..cviuinen. 1,734.0 2.8 1,686.8 6.2 1,588.8
Other(1) ........ . i 187.4 19.8 156.4 11.1 140.8
Total North American Public Sector. . ........... $5781.1 6.1 $54465 60  $51399

(1) Other revenues consist of foreign, state and local government work as well as commercial contracts
performed by the North American Public Sector segment.
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North American Public Sector revenue, before acquisitions, was up 4.3% or $236 million to
$5,682.1 million for fiscal 2008, The revenue growth was the result of new business awarded during
fiscal 2008 and 2007, increases on existing Department of Defense contracts and a new contract with an aid
agency in Other. The acquisition at the end of the third quarter of the prior year of an identity
management and credentialing business contributed $99 million to revenue growth for fiscal 2008. This
growth was partially offset by revenue reductions due to the end of a contract and the loss on recompete of
two other programs with the Department of Defense. The North American Public Sector continued to win
significant new business during fiscal 2008 with announced new U.S. federal contract awards of $11.3 bil-
lion versus $9.2 billion for fiscal 2007 and $7.1 billion for fiscal 2006,

Department of Defense revenue increased $256 million or 7.1% to $3,860 million for fiscal 2008.
Growth was the result of continuing demand for equipment procurement and installation services for the
U.S. Army with a new procurement contract, increased scope and task orders on a program to provide
systems integration services to the U.S. Army, a new program to provide systems integration and
equipment installation services to the U.S. Air Force, an increase in task orders on a program 1o provide
programs and software engineering to the Missile Defense Agency, increased task orders on a program to
provide management services for certain intelligence services and additional task orders on a program to
provide IT engineering services to the U.S. Navy. These new programs and tasking provided approximately
$356 million in revenue growth for fiscal 2008. This growth was partially offset by the end of a classified
program and a program to provide system development services to the U.S. Army and the loss of contracts
to provide maintenance and support services which combined provided additional revenue of approxi-
mately $141 million in the prior year. In addition, on certain programs funds were redirected to other
procurement programs and revenue declined on these programs as a consequence.

Civil agencies revenue, excluding acquisitions, decreased $19 million or 1.1% versus fiscal 2007,
primarily as a result of reduced activity and the end of certain programs with NASA. These decreases were
offset by the acquisition at the end of the third quarter of the prior year of an identity management and
credentialing business which contributed $99 million to revenue growih in fiscal 2008.

Work performed by the North American Public Sector for state and local governments as well as
commercial clients was $187 million for fiscal 2008, an increase of $31 million from the prior year. This
increase was primarily the result of a new contract with a non-governmental aid organization which
contributed $31 million of revenue during fiscal 2008.

North American Public Sector revenue growth for fiscal 2007 was 6.0% with revenuc vp $306.6 mil-
lion to $5,446.5 million. The revenue growth was the result of new business awarded during fiscal 2007 and
2006, increases on existing Department of Defense contracts and the acquisition in the third quarter of an
identity management and credentialing business. This growth was partially offset by reductions in funding
for one other significant program as funds were redirected to other Department of Defense programs. The
North American Public Sector continued to win significant new business during fiscal 2007 with announced
new U.S. federal contract awards of $9.2 billion versus $7.1 billion for fiscal 2006.

Department of Defense revenue increased $193 million or 5.7% to $3,603.3 million for fiscal 2007.
Growth was the result of increased demand for equipment procurement and installation services for the
US. Army, a program to provide engineering support services to the U.S. Army's Aviation and Missile
Command, an increase in scope for a program to provide mission support services, a new program to
provide engineering logistics and business operations services to the U.S. Army, management services for
certain intelligence services, a program to provide flight simulation services to the U.S. Army and the
acquisition of an identity management and credentialing business in the third quarter. These new
programs, tasking and acquisition provided approximately $292 million in revenue growth for fiscal 2007.
This growth was partially offset by funding shortfalls on an intelligence services program as funds were
redirected to other programs causing a revenue decline of $70 million.
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Civil agencies revenue increased $98 million or 6.2% versus fiscal 2006, as a result of increased activity
on a contract with the Federal Aviation Administration, and I/T engineering and management services
contract with the EPA as well as growth in consulting services provided to various agencies.

Work performed by the North American Public Sector for state and local governments as well as
commercial clients was $156 million for fiscal 2007, an increase of $16 million from the prior year. This
increase was the result of achievement of milestones on a project with a foreign government to provide
information technology services. This increase was partially offset by a reduction in revenue on a contract
with the New York Department of Health as the contract evolved from system development to run and
maintain and system enhancement work.

Costs and Expenses

The Company’s costs and expenses were as follows:
pany pe

Dollar Amount Percentage of Revenue
Dollars in millions 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 _22_0‘;
Costs of services (excludes depreciation and
amortization) . . .. ... .. ... . i $13,151.9 $11,8135 $11,7245 79.7% 79.5% 80.1%
Selling, general and administrative .. ....... 9754 918.3 8638 59 62 39
Depreciation and amortization . . .......... 1,198.6 1,073.6 1,0918 7.3 7.2 1.5
Interest expense, net ... ...t eene s 1483 168.4 104.3 9 11 N
Specialitems. .......... ... ... . .. 1558 316.1 773 g 21 3
Other (income)/expense. . .. ............. (48.4) (41.3) 213 (3) (2 _ 1
Total . ..o i e $15,581.6 $14,248.6 $13,883.0 94.4% 95.9% 94.8%

The Company substantially matches revenues and costs in the same currency. As such, foreign
currency did not have a material impact on costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue. However, the
Company is increasing its use of offshore support and therefore may be exposed to additional margin
fluctuations. As discussed in the Fiscal 2009 Commentary section the Company is addressing the economic
risks associated with earning revenue and incurring costs in different currencies through foreign currency
options for fiscal 2009.

Costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue for fiscal 2008 decreased 1.5% points to 94.4% from
95.99 for fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of a reduction in costs incurred from restructuring activities
which reduced the total cost ratio 1.2% points. The cost of services ratio increased primarily as a result of
an estimate to complete adjustment on a contract with a U.S. government agency. The selling, general and
administrative (SG&A) expense ratio decreased as a result of 1) the impact of restructuring activities, 2) a
reduction in bid and proposal costs due to a number of contract rencwals in the prior year and 3) the
acquisition of Covansys Corporation which has a lower cost ratio than the Company’s legacy business. The
depreciation and amortization ratio, after adjusting for rounding effects, was essentially unchanged from
the prior year. The interest expense ratio decreased as a result of two offsetting factors: 1) beginning in
fiscal 2008 the classification of income tax related interest expense, as income tax expense as a result of the
adoption of FIN 48 which in fiscal 2007 and 2006 was included in interest expense, and 2) additional
borrowings of $1.7 billion to finance the acquisitions of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group.
Other income increased duc to gains from the sale of nonoperating assets which offset a decline in foreign
currency exchange gains.

Costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue for fiscal 2007 increased 1.1% points to 95.9% from
94.8% for fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of costs incurred from restructuring activities which contributed
2.1% points to the total cost ratio. The cost of services ratio decreased as a result of restructuring activities
during fiscal 2007 and cost management while the depreciation and amortization ratio decreased as a result
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of the termination of the Nortel Networks and Sears contracts both of which were capital intensive contracts.
The selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expense ratio increased as a result of 1) professional fees
and employee taxes to be paid by the Company as a result of the stock option investigation, and 2) the
SG&A portion of additional compensation expense incurred as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
during fiscal 2007, The interest expense ratio increased as a result of financing a repurchase of shares with
commercial paper, an increase in interest expense related to income taxes and an increase in assets under
capital leases. Other income increase is due to foreign currency gains during fiscal 2007.

Costs of Services

Costs of services as a percentage of revenue increased .2% points to 79.7% for fiscal 2008 as a result
of an increase in the North American Public Sector ratio of 0.6% points to 86.7% and a .1% point increase
in the Global Commercial segment to 76.0%. The increasc in the cost of services ratio for the North
American Public Sector, was primarily due to an estimate to complete adjustment in Civil agencies.

The Global Commercial cost of services ratio for fiscal 2008 increased slightly due to increases in the
ratio in Australia where the ratio increased 2.2% points as a result of revenue growth in a lower margin
professional staffing business and an increase in the ratio in U.S. Commercial of .4% points due to various
immaterial charges including a charge to resolve a dispute with customer regarding receivables for
$13 million. These increases in the cost ratio were mostly offset by a decrease in the ratio in Europe of
1.5% paints as a result of the impact of restructuring activities and cost savings initiatives duting the past
year. The ratio for Other International operations increased 1.1% point due to the increase in Australia’s
ratio as noted above partially offset by Asia which benefited from restructuring activities.

The North American Public Scctor ratio for fiscal 2008 increased .6% points primarily as a result of
charges recorded on a fixed price contract with the IRS. As the result of amending a fixed priced contract
with the IRS the Company recorded a forward loss and reduced precontract costs related to the contract to
their estimated recoverabie amount. The combined charge was $42 million. The impact of this charge was
partially offset by the improvement in the margin on a fixed price contract and cost reduction initiatives
undertaken during fiscal 2008.

Costs of services as a percentage of revenue decreased .6% points to 79.5% for fiscal 2007 as a result
of a decrease in the Global Commercial ratio of 1.1% points to 75.9% and a .2% point decrease in the
North American Public Sector ratio to 86.1%. Improvements in the cost of services ratio for the Global
Commercial segment were primarily in the outsourcing business in the United States and Asia, as a result
of cost savings initiatives, restructuring activities and the termination of low margin contracts.

The Global Commercial cost of services ratio for fiscal 2007 benefited from reductions in the ratio in
U.S. Commenrcial operations, where the ratio improved 2.1% points as a result of cost savings initiatives
during the past year, the transfer of certain tasks to lower cost regions for certain contracts, and the
termination of low margin contracts. The ratio for Other International operations improved 1.6% points as
Asia benefited from restructuring activities. These improvements in the cost of services ratio for Other
International were partially offset by significant revenue growth from a low margin professional staffing
business in Australia. Europe, where the ratio decreased .7% points, benefited from reductions in the cost
of services ratio as a result of the transfer of certain tasks to lower cost regions, the impact of restructuring
aclivities on the ratio in the consulting and systems integration activities and a reduction in management
bonuses. These reductions in expense were somewhat offset by higher costs on certain outsourcing
engagements.

The North American Public Sector ratio for fiscal 2007 benefited from the impact of an adverse
estimate to complete incurred on a state project in the prior year and a revenue increase on this contract
during the current year as a result of the client extending the contract. These changes combined for 4%
points favorable impact to the ratio for fiscal 2007. This favorable impact was partially offset by an adverse
cost incurred for contracts with the IRS of .2% points during fiscal 2007. These changes, combined, had a
.2% point favorable impact on the overall cost of services ratio.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expense as a percentage of revenue decreased by 3%
points to 5.9% for fiscal 2008, The improvement in the ratio was attributed 1o three factors: 1) the
restructuring activities in the Global Commercial segment, primarily Europe, where the ratio improved by
6% points 2) Jower bid and proposal costs in Australia which had a aumber of contracts up for re-bid in
the prior year 3) the acquisition of Covansys Corporation during the second quarter which has a lower
selling, general and administrative expense ratio than the Company’s previously existing businesses. The
North American Public Sector ratio was essentially flat to the prior year with a slight increase in the ratio
due 1o increased bid and proposal costs in fiscal 2008. At the Corporate level the Company incurred
professional services costs as a result of the adoption of FIN 48 and the restatement of the prior year
financial statements. However, these costs were approximately the same as costs incurred during fiscal
2007 related to the stock option investigation and did not result in a significant change in the expense ratio.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses as a percentage of revenue increased .3% points
to 6.2% for fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of additional compensation expense due 1o the incremental
impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and the legal expenses related to the investigation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Department of Justice into the Company's stock option
granting practices. These itcms had a .3% point net unfavorable impact on the expense ratio for fiscal
2007. The pretax incremental stock option expense recorded in SG&A as a result of the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) was approximately $14.2 million ($10.0 million net of taxes) and the pre-tax legal and related
expenses related to the stock option investigation, including employee taxes t0 be paid by the company,
were approximately $22.3 million ($15.7 million net of tax). The comparison of the fiscal 2007 ratio to the
prior year ratio benefited from a one-time adverse impact to the prior year ratio for a provision for
doubtful accounts, as noted below, which had a .1% point impact on the expense ratio for fiscal 2006. The
allocation of the SFAS No. 123(R) and legal expenses, noted above, for fiscal 2008 resulted in an increase
in the North American Public Sector expense ratio of 5% points and an increase in the Global
Commercial ratio of .2% points.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense of $1.2 billion for fiscal 2008 represents 7.3% of revenue and
was, before rounding effects, essentially unchanged from the prior year. Depreciation and amortization
cxpense was stable, as a percentage of revenue for both the Global Commercial and North American
Public Sector segments. The North American Public Sector depreciation and amortization expense ratio
was unchanged from the 2007 level as depreciation and amortization expense increased at approximately
the same rate as revenue which increased by 6.1%. The Global Commercial ratio after rounding effects
was flat to the prior year. The flat ratio in Global commercial was the result of significant upfront capital
investment for outsourcing contracts awarded during fiscal 2007 and 2008 in Europe and Asia and capital
refreshes necessary on existing contracts, offset by lower levels of capital investment for U.S. commercial
operations and a favorable mix variance in Australian operation’s with a shift in asset profiles to longer
lived assets.

Depreciation and amortization expense as a percentage of revenue decreased .3% points to 1.2%
during fiscal 2007. The expense ratio improved in both the North American Public Sector and in Global
Commercial. The decrease in the expense ratio was the result of revenue growth and a decline in
depreciation and amortization expense to $1.1 billion for fiscal 2007. This decline was the result of an
approximately $20 million decrease in depreciation expense for fiscal 2007 due primarily to the termination
and disposal of the related assets for the Sears contract and a shift in the mix of the assets in Australia
toward longer lived assets. The North American Public Sector ratio decreased by .2% points as deprecia-
tion and amortization expense was held flat and revenue increased by 5.9%. The Global Commercial ratio
decreased .2% point due to the reduction in expense noted above while revenues were essentially flat to
the prior year,
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Interest Expense and Interest Income

The decrease in interest expense for fiscal 2008 of $32.5 million compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily
due to the election to classify interest on tax related income tax liabilities of $77.8 million on the income
tax expense line upon the adoption of FIN 48 during fiscal 2008. The prior year periods have not been
adjusted to reflect this change in classification and include tax related interest of $75.4 million and
$41.1 million for fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. Partially offsetting this classification change was
interest on $1.7 billion of commercial paper, subsequently converted to senior notes, issued 1o finance the
acquisition of Covansys Corporation and FCG Corporation. The issuance of the commercial paper and the
senior notes resulted in additional interest expense of approximately $40.1 million for fiscal 2008. Interest
income decreased by approximately $12.4 million for fiscal 2008 as a result of a decline in cash balances
and income from securities sold in the prior year.

The increase in interest expense for fiscal 2007 of $72.8 million was the result, primarily, of three
factors: 1) the use of commercial paper to finance the accelerated share repurchase transactions (see
Note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) which increased interest from commercial
paper by $19.7 million for fiscal 2007, 2) an increase in equipment under capital leases, particularly in the
North American Public Sector, resulted in an increase in interest expense of $13.0 million, and 3) an
increase in interest accrued related to income taxes and income tax contingency items of $30.0 million.
Interest income increased approximately $8.7 million for fiscal 2007 as a result of an increase in interest
income from tax refund items, interest income from a partnership and interest on cash balances in Asia
and Canada. These increases offset the loss of dividend income from the DynCorp International 13%
preferred stock which was redeemed during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The result of the increase in
interest expense and interest income was an increase in net interest expense of $64.1 million and an
increase in the interest expense ratio of .4% points.

Special Items

Special items totaling $155.8 million were recorded during the fiscal year ended March 28, 2008 and
consisted of: (1) a $133.4 million restructuring charge (see discussion below), and (2) a $22.4 million
charge related to the retirement of the Company’s chairman and chief executive officer recorded during
the first quarter of fiscal 2008. During fiscal 2007, special items totaling $316.1 miilion were recorded for
the year ended March 30, 2007 and consisted of: (1) a $333.4 million restructuring charge (see discussion
below), (2) a year to date $1.0 million true-up of an estimate related to the fiscal 2006 Nortel impairment
charge and (3) an $18.3 million gain from the redemption of DynCorp International preferred stock
recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2006 Nortel Networks (Nortel) terminated the Company’s services for certain informa-
tion technology outsourcing activities under the outsourcing agreement between Nortel and the Company.
As a result of the termination of these services the Company recorded a non-cash special charge of
$52.0 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2006 to write down outsourcing contract costs and certain
equipment associated with the contract to their estimated fair value. The Company recorded an additional
charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 of $25.3 million to write down the remaining assets to fair value,
recognize a loss on the assets sold to Nortel under the terms of the termination settlement, record
severance costs for those employees who were not hired by Nortel or redeployed within the Company and
record costs associated with terminating the contract for a total charge of $77.3 million ($48.3 million after
tax) or 26 cents per share.

As previously announced in a Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2007, the Company and its former Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, Van B. Honeycutt, entered into a retirement agreement pursuant to which
Mr. Honeycutt resigned as Chief Executive Officer effective May 21, 2007, and as Chairman July 30, 2007,
and received, as a separation benefit, a lump sum cash payment of $11.2 million on January 31, 2008.
Mr. Honeycutt will receive certain other benefits through December 3, 2009. As a result of
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Mr. Honeycutt's retirement, recognition of the expense associated with his unvested stock-based compen-
sation was accelerated resulling in stock based compensation of $12.2 million, of which $10.4 million was
recorded in Special Items and $1.8 million was recorded as additional paid in capital. The total pre-tax
charge recorded in Special Items, including the lump sum cash payment and other benefits and the charge
for accelerated vesting of employee stock-based compensation, was $22.4 million ($13.6 million net of tax
or 8 cents per share),

Restructuring

In April 2006, the Company announced a restructuring plan to be carried out during fiscal 2007 and
2008. The objectives of the plan are to 1) streamline CSC’s worldwide operations and 2) leverage the
increased use of lower cost global resources. Restructuring charges consist predominantly of severance and
related employce payments resulting from terminations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the
Company evaluated facility consolidation opportunities and other areas where operations could be
streamlined and costs reduced consistent with the plan objectives, resulting in additional lease termination,
asset impairment and other charges.

Workforce reductions, including some voluntary terminations, in fiscal 2008 and 2007 were approxi-
mately 1,400 and 4,400, respectively.

Termination-related charges of $110.7 million were in fiscal 2008 compared to termination-related
charges of $294.3 million in fiscal 2007. Other costs, which were primarily related to vacant space, of
$22.7 million were also recorded during fiscal 2008 compared to $39.1 million in 2007. All of the
restructuring charge in fiscal 2008 was incurred in the Global Commercial reporting segment. Restructur-
ing charges of $333.4 million were recorded in fiscal year 2007.

The restructuring plan generated savings of approximately $389 miilion in fiscal 2008 against a plan of
$380 million and compares to savings of approximately $180 million in fiscal 2007. Approximately 92% of
the savings come from reduced cost of services, while the remainder will be predominantly from lower
selling, general and administrative costs, Savings are net of new or increased recurring costs, primarily the
costs anticipated for an increasing offshore workforce. Savings will also be impacted by certain transitional
costs as new offshore staff are trained while outgoing staff are still on the payroll. Such transitional costs
were $.3 and $4.1 mitlion for fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively.

A majority of the planned headcount reductions took place in Europe. For fiscal 2008, European
headcount decreased by approximately 900 compared to 3,000 in fiscal 2007. Approximately 300 reductions
were made in North America in fiscal 2008 compared to 1,100 in the prior year. The balance of the
reductions occurred in Australia and Asia.

Restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $180.4 million were made in fiscal 2008,
compared to restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $207.2 million in 2007. Included
in the restructuring charges are pension benefit augmentations that are due to certain employees in
accordance with legal or contractual obligations, which will be paid out over scveral years as part of normat
pension distributions. Such liabilities are included in the consolidated pension liability account.
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See the following table for a summary of fiscal 2008 (in millions):

Total pre-tax
charges recorded Restructuring
Liability as of year-to-date Less liability as of
March 30, 2007 fiscal 2008 Payments  Other(l) Mar. 28, 2008
Workforce reductions . ........... $ 935 $110.7 $(1509) $8.0 $61.3
Other............coiiuiinn... $ 388 22.7 (295 _ 8 328
Total, .....oveii $132.3 $1334 $(180.4) §§__8 $94.1
(1) Primarily foreign currency translation adjustments.
Other (Income)/Expense
Dollars in millions 2008 2007 2006
Foreign currency (gains)flosses . . . ... ... ... $(31.2) $(45.5) $158
(Gain)/Loss on sale of non-operating assets ............ (17.2) 4.2 55
Total Other (Income)/Expense . . ........ccvuevvuun.. $(48.4) $(41.3) $21.3

The Company reported other (income)fexpensc of $(48.4) million for fiscal 2008 compared with
$(41.3) million in fiscal 2007 and $21.3 million for fiscal 2006. Other (income)/expense is comprised
primarily of foreign currency (gains) and losses on intracompany balances and gains on sale of
non-operating assets. The gain on sale of non-operating assets during fiscal 2008 included the sale of a
building in Austin, TX in March for a gain of approximately $11.2 million pre-tax and the sale of available
for sale securities for a gain of approximately $4.4 million pre-tax. Foreign currency net gains and losses for
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were the result of the effect of currency rate movements, primarily, between the
U.S. dollar and the Euro, British Pound Sterling, and Australian dollar and between the Euro and the
Danish Kroner and British Pound Sterling.

Taxes

The provision for taxes on continuing operations as a percentage of pre-tax earnings was 40.7% for
fiscal 2008 compared to 34.5% and 41.9% for fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The increase in the effective rate as reported for fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily
due to a prior year impact of income tax credits and the current year classification of tax related interest
and penalties in income tax expense as a result of the adoption of FIN 48 on March 31, 2007. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in the foreign effective tax rates during fiscal 2008, the
remeasurement of tax, penalties, and interest for tax matters relating to fiscal years 1995 to 1999, and
changes in accounting methods.

The remeasurement of tax, penalties, and interest for tax matters relating to fiscal years 1995 to 1999
resulted in a decrease of $26.4 ($21.5 net of tax) during fiscal 2008. The fiscal 2008 tax related interest and
penatlties increased by $66.2 ($35.4 net of tax). These amounts are net of reductions of interest and
penalties of $30.7 ($21.1 net of tax) resulting from the filing of applications for changes in accounting
method effective in fiscal year 2008.

The fiscal 2007 provision for taxes on continuing operations as a percentage of pre-tax earnings was
34.5% as compared to 41.9% for fiscal 2006. The decrease in the effective tax rate during fiscal 2007 as
compared to fiscal 2006 was the result of lower state tax and additional income tax credits in fiscal 2007,
partially offset by an increase in the foreign effective tax rates.
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On January 8, 2008, the Company paid a $100 million bond to the IRS rclated to certain tax matters.
As a result, tax related interest for these tax matters stopped accruing as of the date of the bond payment.

See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of income laxes.

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations net of taxes was $57.6 million for fiscal year 2006. Income from
discontinued operations during fiscal 2006 included the gain on sale of Health Plan Solutions of $19.2 mil-
lion and the gain from the working capital adjustment for the sale of DynCorp International of $38.4 mil-
lion. The Company received $65.5 million par value preferred stock for the working capital adjustment and
recorded taxes of $20.7 million and a valuation allowance of approximately $6.5 million against the
preferred stock.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In March 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation
No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 143." During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting
Principle of $5.6 million ($4.3 million after tax) or $0.02 per share as a result of implementing the
Interpretation to account for the Company’s unrecorded legal obligations to restore some of its leased
facilities to their original condition upon lease expiration.

Earnings Per Share and Share Base

Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 increased
$0.99 to $3.20. Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2008 benefited from an increase in
net income as a result of an increase in revenue and an increase in the income before taxes margin of 1.5%
points compared to the prior year. The increase in the margin was primarily due to a decrease in special
charges of $160.3 million from the prior year with an additional 0.3% point increase when special charges
are excluded from the calculation. Eamnings per share also benefited from a reduction in the weighted
average shares outstanding during fiscal 2008. This reduction was due to two factors 1) during fiscal 2008
the Company repurchased 21.7 million outstanding shares of common stock through a 10b5-1 repurchase
plan for approximately $1.03 billion and received an additional 2.7 million shares as final settlement of the
accelerated share repurchase transactions executed during fiscal 2007 and 2) the decrease in the share
price during the last half of fiscal 2008 reduced common stock equivalents by 535,000. These reductions in
the weighted average were partially offset by the exercise of 2.4 million employee stock options during the
year. The net result was a decrease in diluted weighted average shares outstanding of 9.6 million shares
which resulted in a $0.18/share increase in earnings per share. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements for further discussion of the share repurchase transactions.

Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 decrcased
$0.14 to $2.21. Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscat 2007 were adversely impacted by
special charges of $1.46 per share and favorably impacted by a decrease in the average share base of
8.3 million shares from fiscal 2006. This decline in the share base was the result of the Company’s
acquisition and retirement of 16.4 million shares through two accelerated share repurchase transactions
with 9.3 million shares acquired during the first quarter and 7.1 million shares acquired during the second
quarter of fiscal 2007. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of these
transactions. This reduction to the share base was partially offset by option exercises during the past twelve
months and an increase in common stock equivalents of 1.2 million for fiscal 2007.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash Flows
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Dolfars In milllons 2008 2007 1006
Net cash from operations ..............covtiivnneinon v, $1,3429 51,5786 § 1,551.3
Net cash used ininvesting . ... ........ .. it ininann.s (2,7187y  (872.7) (1,124.0)
Net cash from/{used) in financing. . . . ........ ... .. ociun. .. 997.9  (955.5) {150.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ... ... 26.7 9.0 38
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. .. .......... (351.2)  (240.6) 280.4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear . . .. ... .......... 1,050.1  1,290.7 1,010.3
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ................... $ 6989 31,0501 $1,290.7

Operating cash flow declined during fiscal 2008 as increases in working capital offset an increase in
net income and non-cash adjustments. Cash wsed in investing activities increased $1.8 billion primarily as a
result of the acquisition of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group for cash of approximately
$1.6 billion. Net cash provided by financing activities increased approximately $1.9 billion as a result of a
long-term debt offering during the fourth quarter for $1.7 billion as well as the issuance of commercial

paper.

Operating Cash Flow

As discussed above the decline in operating cash flow for fiscal 2008 was primarily due to increases in
working capital. Operating cash flow for fiscal 2007 increased only slightly from fiscal 2006. Working
capital changes were as follows:

+ During fiscal 2008 the operating cash flow impact from changes in the Company’s receivables was a
use of cash of $112 million. The increase in the Company’s accounts receivable, excluding acquired
balances, was primarily in unbilled teceivables which increased approximately $100 million during
fiscal 2008. This increase was primarily in the Global Commercial segment and was related to the
timing of the work performed during the billing cycle and to unbilled amounts on long-term
contracts. The five day increase in DSO was the result of new receivables associated with new
business awards in our European operations, increased receivables associated with NHS unbilled
accounts, and the dilutive nature of mid-year acquisitions on this ratio. These effects were partially
offset by improvements in collections in our North American operations. For fiscal 2007 the use of
cash as a result of increases in receivables was due to increases in billed trade accounts receivables
and unbilled receivables of approximately $206 million and $246 million, respectively. The increase
in trade receivables was across both the North American Public Sector and the Global Commercial
segments. The increase in unbilled receivables related primarily to contracts in Europe and U.S.
federal contracts.

« The cash flow impact of changes in prepaid cxpenses and other assets was a use of cash of
$368 million for fiscal 2008. The increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets was the result
of increases in work-in process balances for fiscal 2008 of $189 million, primarily in Europe and the
payment of a $100 million bond to the IRS to stop the accrual of interest on certain tax lfiabilities.
For fiscal 2007 the use of cash related to prepaid expenses and other current assets was a result of
the Company’s investment in deferred costs and work in progress related to certain contracts which
increased approximately $231 million during fiscai 2007 compared to an increase of $262 million in
the prior year. The majority of the work in process increases relate to the NHS contract.

« Activity in accounts payable and certain accrued expenses resulted in a use of cash of approximately
$110 million. During fiscal 2008 accounts payable and certain accrued expenses decreased $381 mil-
lion from the prior year due to the reversal of income tax related interest and penalties accrued
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under FAS 5 prior to fiscal 2008 and the accrual of the income tax related interest and penalties as a
tax liability as a result of the adoption of FIN 48. The decrease in accounts payable and accrued
expenses was partially offset in cash flow by an increase in accrued payroll of approximately
$155 million primarily due to timing of payments. Accounts payable and accrued expenscs,
combined, increased $473 million for fiscal 2007 compared to a decrease of $21 million for fiscal
2006. The increase in the balance for fiscal 2007 was the result of the timing of payments for
accounts payable, which included an increase of approximately $110 million for capilal expenditure
payables, an increase in accrued expenses for restructuring activities and activity on contracts.

* Activity in deferred income and advanced paymenis provided a cash inflow of approximately
$87 million for fiscal 2008. The increase was related to advanced contract payments in Europe and
the United States as well as sales of software licenses. For fiscal 2007 cash provided was the result of
advanced payments received from customers which increased approximately $270 million during
fiscal 2007, primarily as a result of the achievement of billing milestones on a significant develop-
ment effort for the NHS contract. Such balances partially offset the Company's significant invest-
ment in this project.

« The cash flow impact from changes in income tax liabilities and assets was a cash inflow of
approximately $25 million for fiscal 2008. Additions to taxes payable during fiscal 2008 were
somewhat offset by payments to tax authorities during the year of approximately $496 million. For
fiscal 2007 and 2006 the Company made payments for taxes of $304.8 million and $147.9 million,
respectively. The Company projects cash payments for taxes to remain at fiscal 2008 levels for fiscal
2009; however, resolution of tax contingencics could have a significant impact on such projections
and cash tax payments.

Deferred Costs

The Company has submitted 16 Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) 1otaling approximately
$900 million on two U.S. Federal contracts which were later converted to interest bearing claims filed with
the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (ASBCA). Included in current assets on the Company’s
balance sheet is approximately $820 million of unbilled accounts receivable and deferred costs related to
the claims on the contracts. CSC has requested payment for certain related out-of-scope work directed or
caused by the customers in support of their critical missions. The contractual modification process for
scope changes lagged behind the need for CSC to provide critical on-going operational support. The
Company does not record any profit element when it defers costs associated with such REAs. The
Company believes it has valid bases for pursuing recovery of these REAs/claims supported by outside
counsel’s evaluation of the facts and assistance in preparation of the claims. The Company remains
committed to vigorous pursuit of its claimed entitlements and associated value, and continues to believe
based on review of applicable law and other considerations that recovery of at least its net balance sheet
position is probable. However, the Company’s position is subject to the ongoing evaluation of new facts
and information which may come to the Company's attention during the discovery phase of the litigation.

Investing Cash Flow

The Company’s capital investments principally relate to purchases of computer equipment and
purchases and development of software, and deferred outsourcing contract costs that have supported the
Company's expanding Global Commercial operations in prior years. Investments include computer
equipment purchased at the inception of outsourcing contracts as well as for subsequent upgrades,
expansion or replacement of these client-supporting assets. For cash flow presentation purposes, the
Outsourcing Contracts line includes amounts paid to clients for assets purchased from the clients that are
categorized as property and equipment on the balance sheet. Outsourcing contract costs are also
comprised of incremental external costs as well as certain internal costs that directly relate to a contract’s
acquisition or start-up, including payments to clients for amounts in excess of the fair market value of
acquired assets (premium).
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Investing cash out flows increased approximately $1.8 billion during fiscal 2008. This increase in cash
used for investing during fiscal 2008 was primarily due to the acquisition of Covansys Corporation and
First Consulting Group for cash. See Note 3 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Cash
paid, net of cash acquired, for these acquisitions was $1.6 billion. The remaining increase was, primarily,
from purchases of computer equipment and deferred outsourcing contracts costs which increased $191 mil-
lion and $53 million, respectively, during fiscal 2008. The increase in equipment was as a result of
equipment replacements on contracts in Europe and the United States while the increase in deferred
outsourcing costs was as a result of new contracts in Euvrope and in the North American Public Sector.

For fiscal 2007 the absence of significant new outsourcing contract awards during the latter part of
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 resulted in a reduction in investing cash outflows for computer equipment and
related facilities costs and for outsourcing contract costs. These reductions in cash outflows were partially
offset by cash outflows for the acquisition of an identity management and credentialing business (sce
Note 3 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and an increase in cash outflows for purchase and
development of software as a result of sofiware purchases in Europe, primarily for the National Health
Service contract.

While increasing new business will typically require higher overall capital investments, the mix of the
new business will also impact the level of capital. The growth in U.S. federal awards and the limited growth
in commercial awards during fiscal 2008 are expected to limit the growth in overall capital investment in
fiscal 2009 as U.S. federal contracts typically require lower levels of initial invesiment when compared with
similar commercial outsourcing contracts.

Financing Cash Flow

Cash provided by financing activities was $997.9 million for fiscal 2008, an increase of $1.9 billion from
the prior year. The inflow was primarily from the issuance of approximately $2.0 billion of commercial
paper, $1.7 billion of which was refinanced with issuance of the $700 million 5.5% Senior Notes due 2013
and $1.0 billion 6.5% Senior Notes due 2018. This inflow was partially offset by an increase in outflows to
acquire outstanding common stock (See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements) and a decrease
in proceeds fram the exercise of stock options.

During fiscal 2007 the Company increased its use of capital leases to finance certain equipment
purchases related to long term contracts with total capital Jease obligations of $152 million as of March 30,
2007. In addition, the Company funded the acquisition and retirement of outstanding shares from two
accelerated share repurchase transactions during fiscal 2007 with approximately $600 million of commer-
cial paper and cash on hand. The commercial paper was redeemed during fiscal 2007 using cash generated
from operating activities. During fiscal 2006 the Company financed its capital investments primarily with
cash generated from operations. Partially offsetting the financing cash outflows were cash proceeds from
the exercise of employee stock options during fiscat 2007 and 2006 of $94.8 million and $101.1 million,
respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The balance of cash and cash equivalents was $698.9 million at March 28, 2008, $1,050.1 million at
March 30, 2007, and $1,290.7 million at March 31, 2006. During fiscal 2008, shareholders’ equity decreased
$78.2 million as a result of the Company's repurchase of outstanding shares through a 10b5-1 share
repurchase plan approved by the Company’s board of directors during fiscal 2007 and the impact of the
adoption of FIN 48 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. The share repurchase reduced sharcholders’ equity
by $1.03 billion and the adoption of FIN 48 which reduced retained earnings $171.4 million and additional
paid in capital approximately $1.5 miltion. This reduction in shareholders’ equity was largely offset by;
1) net income of $544.6 million, 2) an increase in the cumulative translation adjustment account of
$225.8 million due to the weak U.S. Dollar, 3) an increase in the unfunded pension adjustment of
$180.8 million and 4) the final settlement of the accelerated share repurchase transaction initiated during
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fiscal 2007 with the receipt of $28.7 million in cash. Exercises of employee stock options declined during
fiscal 2008 as a result of the decline in the Company's share price during the last half of fiscal 2008.

At the end of fiscal 2008, CSC’s ratio of debt to total capitalization was 38.9%, up from the ratio at the
end of fiscal 2007 of 21.4%, and from 19.1% at the end of fiscal 2006. The increase in the debt ratio was the
result of 1) the issuance of $1.7 billion of commercial paper which was converted into long-term notes during
fiscal 2008 to fund the acquisitions of Covansys Corporation and First Consulting Group, 2) the issuance of
approximately $263 million of commercial paper during the fourth quarter to fund the completion of the
10b5-1 share repurchase plan, and 3) the decrease in shareholders’ equity discussed above.

Doltars in miltions 2008 2007 2006
Dbt it e e i s $3.473.7 $1,5059 $1,462.1
EQUILY o ovivti it 54618 55400 6,195.7
Total capitalization ........ .. ... ... oot $8,9355 £7,0459 §$7,657.8
Debt to total capitalization ................... 89% 214% 19.1%

The Company purchased and retired approximately 21.7 million outstanding common shares through
a 10bS-1 share repurchase plan approved by the Company’s Board of Dircctors during fiscal 2007 at a cost
of approximately $1.03 billion. This transaction was financed through available cash on hand and the
issuance of approximately $263 miflion of commercial paper which is currently outstanding.

The Company's sources of liquidity include cash, commercial paper and committed and uncommitted
lines of credit. Short-term borrowings are principally used to supplement operating cash flow in funding
working capital requirements.

On July 12, 2007 the Company entered into a new committed line of credit providing $1.5 billion of
long-term commercial paper backup. The line of credit expires on July 12, 2012. In addition the Company
entered into a short-term $1.0 billion line of credit to pravide additional commercial paper backup on
June 25, 2007. This line of credit expired upon the issuance of the $700 million 5.5% Senior Notes due 2013
and $1.0 billion 6.5% Senior Notes due 2018. If the Company was unable to sell its commercial paper,
borrow under its uncommitted lines of credit, or determines it is too costly 1o do cither of the aforemen-
tioned, the Company has the ability to borrow under the committed line of credit. The line of credit provides
the option of being drawn at a Base Rate or a Eurodollar Rate. This line requires the Compaay to 1) limit
liens placed on our assets to $100 million and to liens incurred in the ordinary course of business; 2) maintain
a minimum interest coverage ratio of consolidated Eamings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) to consolidated interest expense for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters
ending on or immediately prior to such period not to be less than 3.00 to 1.00; and 3) not permit at the end of
any quarterly financial reporting period the ratio of consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA for the
period of four consecutive fiscal quarters ending on or immediately prior to such date, to exceed 3.00 to 1.00.
For further details on this agreement please see Exhibit 10.32, which is incorporated by reference to this
Annual Report. As of March 28, 2008 the Company’s total liquidity was approximately $1.9 billion which
included cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities of $698.9 million and availability under the
syndicated backstop credit facility of $1.237 billion. As of March 28, 2008, the Company had no borrowings
under these credit facilities and was in compliance with all terms of the agreements.

At March 28, 2008, the Company had $309.5 million of short-term borrowings, $528.9 million of
current maturities of long-term debt and $2.635 billion of long-term debt. As further described in Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements, commercial paper is classified as short-term borrowings. The current
maturities of long-term debt include the Company’s 3.5% term notes with a face value of $300 million due
April 2008 and the 6.25% term notes with a face value of $200 million due March 2009. The Company
plans to redeem these notes with the cash on hand and the issuance of commercial paper during fiscal
2009. The Company had $262.9 million of outstanding commercial paper as of March 28, 2008.
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Liquidity Risk
The Company is exposed to liquidity risk from operations and from the Company’s ability to access
the commercial paper and debt markets,

The Company’s exposure to operational liquidity risk is primarily from long-term contracts which
require significant upfront investment. Recovery of this investment is over the life of the contract and is
dependent upon the Company’s performance as well as customer acceptance. An example is the contract
with the United Kingdom’s National Health Service to deliver an integrated electronic patient records
system with an announced value of £2.9 billion. This is a large and complex contract. As of March 28, 2008,
the Company had a net investment in the contract of approximately $567 million. Contract assets were
$1.2 billion, principally contract work in progress and unbilled receivables but also equipment, softwarc
and other assets. These are partially offset by liabilities for deferred revenue and advanced payments. The
contract is profitable and the Company expects to recover its investment; however, unforeseen future
events 10 the extent they add costs beyond the current estimates, including contingencies the Company has
provided for in its estimated costs to complete, could potentially adversely impact such recovery and the
Company’s liquidity.

The Company’s ability to access the commercial paper and debt markets at reasonable rates is
dependent on liquidity in the credit markets as well as the Company’s financial position. The Company was
successful in issuing $1.7 billion of long-term debt as a private placement under rule 144A during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

in the opinion of management, CSC will be able to meet its liquidity and cash needs for the
foresecable future through the combination of cash flows from operating activities, cash balances, and
unused short-term borrowing capacity. If these resources need to be augmented, major additional cash
requirements would likely be financed by the issuance of debt and/or equity securities and/or the exercise
of the put option as described in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. During fiscal 2002, the
Company filed a shelf registration statement for up to $1.5 billion of debt and/or equity securities. The
Company has previously issued $600 million worth of term debt from the shelf registration, leaving
$900 million of shelf available for additional securities. As a result of the delay in filing its first and second
quarter Form 10-Q’s during fiscal 2008, the Company will not be able to utilize the available shelf
registration to issue additional securities until 12 calendar months following the date which the fiscal 2008
second quarter Form 10-Q was filed, which was January 11, 2008. The Company was able to access the
debt capital markets utilizing a Rule 144A offering, as noted above. However, there can be no assurances
the Company will be able to issue debt with acceptable terms in the future.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the expiration of the Company's financial guarantecs outstanding as
of March 28, 2008:

Fiscal 2011
Dotlars in milliens Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 20010 & thereafter Tatal
Performance guarantees:
Suretybonds. . ... .. ... . ... $ 295 $ 3.1 $ 326
Lettersofcredit ........... ... ... ... ... ... 5327 11.1 $2.6 5464
Standby letters of credit . ... ... ... L L L 73.0 73.0
Foreign subsidiary debt guarantees . ............... 670.3 3.0 . 673.3
Total . . .. .. e $1,305.5 $17.2 $2.6 $1,325.3

See Note 9 in the notes to consolidated financial statements for further discussion.
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The following table summarizes the Company's payments on contractual obligations by period as of
March 28, 2008:

Less than More than

Dollars in miltions(l) 1 year 1-3 years 3.5 years 5 years Totel
Long-termdebt ......................... $ 5000 $1,4036 $ 9958 $2,989.4
Intereston fixedratedebt . . . .. ............. 168.7 $3108 245.0 3250 1,0495
Capital lease obligations . .. ................ 249 474 21.7 59.8 153.8
Bankdebt ....... ... ... .. e 46.6 46.6
Operatingleases . . ..........coveinvnanen. 2686  360.8 191.5 134.5 955.4
Minimum purchase obligations .............. 330.9 95.3 5.7 431.9
Other long-term liabilities . . . ............... 40 7.7 5.3 4.0 21.0

Total. ..o e e $1,343.7 $822.0 $1,962.8 $1,519.1 $5647.6

(1) The Company adopted FIN 48 on March 31, 2007. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements. The liability related to unrecognized tax benefits has been excluded from the contractual
obligations table because a reasonable estimate of the timing and amount of cash out flows from
future tax settlements cannot be determined.

Regarding minimum purchase obligations included above, the Company has signed long-term pur-
chase agreements with certain software, hardware, telecommunication and other service providers to
obtain favorable pricing, committed service levels and terms for services necessary for the operation of
business activities. The Company is contractually committed to purchase specified service minimums over
remaining periods ranging generally from one to five years. If the Company does not meet the specified
service minimums, the Company may have an obligation to pay the service provider a portion or all of the
shortfall.

The above excludes estimated minimum funding requirements for retiree benefit plans as set forth by
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). The Company has numerous plans, both inside
and outside of the U.S., and determines expected funding requirements on a per-plan basis. The minimum
funding requirement can vary significantly from year to year based on a variety of factors, and can be zero
in some years. Funding is determined based on a review of bencfit obligations and plan assets as well as
various regulatory requirements including ERISA and Cost Accounting Standards (CAS) applied to U.S.
government coniracts. While there are certain minimum contribution requirements, CSC may elect to
increase the level of funding of contributions based on a number of factors including performance of
pension investments, changes in workforce composition and the ability to recover costs on cost reimburs-
able contracts. During fiscal 2009, the Company expects to make contributions of approximately $207 mil-
lion to pension and postretirement benefit plans. The Company has not quantified expected contributions
beyond fiscal 2009 because it is not possible to predict future timing or direction of the capital markets,
which can have a significant impact on future minimum funding obligations. Refer to the Critical
Accounting Estimates section later in this MD&A and to Note 11 in the notes to consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

Fiscal 2008 Company contributions amounted to $233.6 million. See Note 11 in the notes to
consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Dividends and Redemption

It has been the Company’s policy to invest carnings in the growth of the Company rather than
distribute carnings as dividends. This policy, under which dividends have not been paid since fiscal 1969, is
expected to continue, but is subject to review by the Board of Directors.




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). Our significant accounting policies are described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements under “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” The
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us 10 make
cstimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, as
well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabililies. We base our estimates and judgments on
historical experience and other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Many of the
types of estimates made are for contract-specific issues. Changes to estimates or assumptions on a specific
contract could result in a material adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

We have identified several critical accounting estimates, An accounting estimate is constdered critical
if both: (a) the nature of the estimates or assumptions is material du¢ to the levels of subjectivity and
judgment involved, and (b} the impact of changes in the estimates and assumptions would have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements. Qur critical accounting estimates relate to: revenue
recognition and cost estimation and recoverability on long-term, fixed-price contracts; revenue recognition
on software license sales that require significant customization; capitalization of outsourcing contract costs
and software development costs; estimates used to determine deferred income taxes; assumptions related
to purchase accounting and goodwill; assumptions to determine retirement benefits costs and liabilities;
and assumptions and estimates used to analyze contingencies and litigation. For ali of these estimates, we
caution that future events rarely develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require
adjustment.

Revenue recognition

The majority of our revenue is recognized based on objective criteria and does not require significant
estimates. Revenue from our fixed unit price contracts, time and materials contracts and cost plus contracts
is recognized based on objective criteria and is not subject to estimates that may change over time.
However, for our fixed-price contracts that use percentage-of-completion accounting, which is less than
cight percent of the Company’s revenues, the determination of revenues and costs requires significant
judgment and estimation. Under this method we recognize revenuc on a constant margin as contract
milestones or other output based measures are achieved. Costs arc deferred until contractual milestones or
other output based or cost based measures are achieved. The method requires estimates of costs and
profits over the entire term of the contract, including estimates of resources and costs necessary to
complete performance. Such estimates are particularly difficult on activities involving state-of-the-art
technologies such as system development projects. The cost estimation process is based upon the
professional knowledge and experience of our software and systems engineers, program managers and
financial professionals. Key factors that are considered in estimating the work to be completed and
ultimate contract profitability include the availability and productivity of labor and the nature and
complexity of the work to be performed. A significant change in an estimate on one or more contracts
could have a material effect on our results of operations. Our management regularly reviews project
profitability and the underlying estimates.

Modifications to contract scope, schedule, and price may be required on development contracts
accounted for on a percentage-of-complction basis. Accounting for such changes prior to formal contract
modification requires evalvation of the characteristics and circumstances of the effort completed and
assessment of probability of recovery. If recovery is deemed probable, we may, as appropriate, either defer
the costs until the parties have agreed on the contract change or recognize the costs and related revenue as
current period contract performance. We routinely negotiate such contract modifications in both the U.S.
Federal and Global Commercial segments.
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Many of our contracts call for us to provide a range of services or elements to our customers. The
total estimated revenue for these contracts is allocated to the various services or elements based on relative
fair value. These relative fair values are determined based on objective evidence of fair value. Once the
total estimated revenue has been allocated to the various contract elements, revenue for each element is
recognized based on the relevant revenue recognition method for the services performed or elements
delivered.

Estimates of total revenue at contract inception often differ materially from actual revenue due to
volume difference, changes in technology or other factors which may not be foreseen at inception.

Revenue recognition on sofiware license sales that require significant customization

If significant customization is required in the delivery of a proprietary software product, revenue is
recognized as the software customization services are performed in accordance with the percent-
age-of-completion method described above. Thus, cost and profit estimates are required over the life of
the project, and changes in such estimates can have a material effect on results.

Capitalization of outsourcing contract costs

Certain costs incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are deferred and amortized over the
contract life. These costs consist of contract acquisition and transition/set-up cosis, and include the cost of
due diligence activities after competitive selection, costs associated with installation of systems and
processes, and amounts paid to clients in excess of the fair market value of acquired assets (premiums).
Finance staff, working with program management, review costs to determine appropriateness for deferral
in accordance with relevant accounting guidance,

Key estimates and assumptions that we must make include assessing the fair value of acquired assets
in order to calculate the premium and projecting future cash flows in order to assess the recoverability of
deferred costs. We utilize the experience and knowledge of our professional staff in program management,
operations, procurement and finance areas, as well as third partics on occasion, to determine fair values of
assets acquired. To assess recoverability, undiscounted estimated cash flows of the contract are projected
over its remaining life and compared to the unamortized deferred cost balance. Such estimates require
judgment and assumptions, which are based upon the professional knowledge and experience of our
personnel. Key factors that are considered in estimating the undiscounted cash flows include projected
labor costs and productivity efficiencies. A significant change in an estimate or assumption on one or more
contracts could have a material effect on our results of operations. Amortization of such premiums is
recorded as a reduction to revenues.

Capitalization of software development costs

We capitalize certain costs incurred to develop commercial software products and to develop or
purchase internal-use software. Significant estimates and assumptions include: determining the appropri-
ate period over which to amortize the capitalized costs based on the estimated useful lives, estimating the
marketability of the commercial software products and related future revenues, and assessing the unamor-
tized cost balances for impairment. For commercial software products, determining the appropriate
amortization period is based on estimates of future revenues from sales of the products. We consider
various factors to project marketability and future revenues, including an assessment of alternative
solutions or products, current and historical demand for the product, and anticipated changes in technol-
ogy that may make the product obsolete. For internal-use software, the appropriate amortization period is
based on estimates of our ability to utilize the software on an ongoing basis. To assess the realizability or
recoverability of capitalized software costs, we must estimate future revenue, costs and cash flows. Such
estimates require assumptions about future cash inflows and outflows, and are based on the experience and




knowledge of professional staff. A significant change in an estimate related to one or more software
products could result in a material change to our results of operations.

Estimates used to determine income tax expense

We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement
purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which
principally arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial
statement purposes. We also must analyze income tax reserves, as well as determine the likelihood of
recoverability of deferred tax assets, and adjust any valuation allowances accordingly. Considerations with
respect to the recoverability of deferred tax assets include the period of expiration of the tax asset, planned
use of the 1ax asset, and historical and projected taxable income as well as tax liabilities for the tax
jurisdiction to which the tax asset relates. Valuation allowances are evaluated periodically and will be
subject to change in each future reporting period as a result of changes in one or more of these factors.
The calculation of our tax liabilities also involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex
tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for uncertain income tax positions based on our estimate of
whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be required.

Assumptions related to purchase accounting and goodwill

We account for our acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting. This method requires
estimates to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired, including judgments to determine
any acquired intangible assets such as customer-related intangibles, as well as assessments of the fair value
of existing assets such as property and equipment. Liabilities acquired can include balances for acquiree
integration liabilities as well as litigation and other contingency reserves established prior to or at the time
of acquisition, and require judgment in ascertaining a reasonable value. Independent appraisals may be
used to assist in the determination of the fair value of certain assets and liabilities, but even those
determinations would be based on significant estimates provided by us, such as forecasted revenues or
profits on contract-related intangibles. Numerous factors are typically considered in the purchase account-
ing assessments, which are conducted by Company professionals from legal, finance, human resources,
information systems, program management and other disciplines. Changes in assumptions and estimates of
the acquired assets and liabilities would result in changes to the fair values, resulting in an offsetting
change to the goodwill balance associated with the business acquired. Significant changes in assumptions
and estimates subsequent to completing the allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired, as well as differences in actual results versus estimates, could result in material impacts to
earnings.

As goodwill is not amortized, goodwill balances are regularly assessed for potential impairment. Such
assessments require an analysis of future cash flow projections as well as a determination of an appropriate
discount rate to calculate present values. Cash flow projections are based on management-approved
estimates, which involve the input of numerous Company professionals from finance, operations and
program management. Key factors used in estimating future cash flows include assessments of labor and
other direct costs on existing contracts, estimates of overhead costs and other indirect costs, and
assessments of new business prospects and projected win rates. Significant changes in the estimates and
assumptions used in purchase accounting and goodwill impairment testing can have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

Assumptions to determine retirement benefits costs and liabilities

We offer a number of pension and postretirement benefit and life insurance benefit plans. CSC
utilizes actuarial methods required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 87, as
amended by SFAS No. 158 for fiscal 2008 and 2007, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postrctirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to account for
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pension and postretirement benefit plans, respectively. The actuarial methods require numerous assump-
tions 1o calculate the net periodic pension benefit expense and the related pension benefit obligation for
our defined benefit pension plans. Two of the most significant assumptions are the expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets and discount rates. In making these assumptions, we are required to consider
current market conditions, including changes in interest rates. Changes in the related net periodic pension
costs may occur in the future due to changes in these and other assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets should, over time, approximate the actual
long-term returns on pension plan assets. The assumption for the expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets is selected by taking into account the expected duration of the projected benefit obligation for
each plan, the asset mix of the plan, historic plan asset returns as well as current market conditions and
other factors. The weighted-average of the expected long-term rates of return, for all plans, on plan assets
utilized for the fiscal 2008 pension plan valuations was 7.9% compared to 7.7% used in fiscal 2007. Holding
all other assumptions constant, a onc-half percent increase or decrease in each of the assumed rates of
return on plan assets would have decreased or increased, respectively, the net periodic pension cost by
approximately $19 million.

An assumed discount rate is required 1o be used in each pension plan actuarial valuation. The
discount rate assumption reflects the market rate for high-quality, fixed income debt instruments based on
the expected duration of the benefit payments for each of our pension plans as of the annual measurement
date and is subject to change each year. The weighted-average of the discount rates utilized for the fiscal
2008 pension plan valuations was 5.5% compared to 5.3% used for fiscal 2007. Holding all other
assumptions constant, a one-half percent increase or decrease in each of the assumed discount rates would
have decreased the net periodic pension cost by approximately $48 million, or increased it by approxi-
mately $54 million, respectively. Some portion of the increase or decrease would be moderated by cost
reimbursable contracts.

The accounting guidance includes mechanisms that serve to limit the volatility in earnings which
would otherwise result from recording changes in the value of plan assets and benefit obligations in the
consolidated financial statements in the periods in which such changes occur, For example, while the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets should, over time, approximate the actual long-term
returns, differences between the expected and actual returns may occur in any given year. Such differences
contribute to the deferred actuarial gains or losses which are then amortized over time. For CSC, market
returns caused actual pension plan asset returns to lag and exceed those expected in fiscal 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Rising discount rates in fiscal 2008, which resulted in lower benefit obligation growth, served
to enhance the positive impact of the asset returns for fiscal 2008. Declining discount rates in fiscal 2007
and 2006, which resulted in higher calculated benefit obligations, served to partially offset or more than
offset the positive impact of the asset returns in fiscal 2007 and 2006.

For fiscal 2008 and 2007, SFAS No. 158 requires recognition of a pension obligation if the fair value of
plan assets is less than the projected benefit obligation (PBO) at the end of the year. At the end of fiscal
2008, a number of our pension plans had PBOs in excess of the fair value of their respective plan assets,
but due mostly to higher discount rates, lower pension obligations were recognized in 2008 than in 2007.
The effect of this adjustment and the annual measurement in fiscal 2008 was to decrease pension liability
by $291.2 million, increase non-current asset by $14.6 million, and decrease accumulated comprehensive
loss by $236.6 million ($171.7 million net of taxes). For fiscal 2007, a number of our pension plans had
PBOs in excess of their plan assets’ fair value, thus requiring adjustments to increase pension liability by
$403.5 million, decrease intangible assets by $16 million, decrease non-current asset by $87.4 million, and
increase accumulated comprehensive loss by $539.7 million ($376.0 million net of taxes). Based on future
plan asset performance and interest rates, additional charges to equity might be required.
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Assumptions and estimates used to analyze contingencies and litigation

We are subject to various claims and contingencies associated with lawsuits, insurance, tax and other
issues arising out of the normal course of business. The consolidated financial statements reflect the
treatment of claims and contingencies based on management's view of the expected outcome. CSC
consults with legal counsel on issues related to litigation and seeks input from other experts and advisors
with respect to matters in the ordinary course of business. If the likelihood of an adverse outcome is
probable and the amount is estimable, we accrue a liability in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies.” Significant changes in the estimates or assumptions used in assessing the likelihood of an
adverse outcome could have a material effect on the consolidated financial results.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk Interest Rates

The Company utilizes fixed-rate long-term debt obligations, short-term commercial paper and other
borrowings subject to market risk from changes in interest rates. Sensitivity analysis is one technique used
to measure the impact of changes in interest rates on the value of market-risk sensitive financial
instruments. A hypothetical 10% movement in interest rates would not have a material impact on the
Company’s future earnings or cash flows and fair value of fixed rate debt.

Foreign Currency

As a large global organization the Company faces exposure to adverse movements in the foreign
currency exchange rates. During the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into certain contracts
denominated in foreign currency. Potential foreign currency exposures arising from these contracts are
analyzed during the contract bidding process. The Company generally manages these transactions by
incurring costs to service contracts in the same currency in which revenue is received. Short-term contract
financing requirements are met by borrowing in the same currency. By generally matching revenues, costs
and borrowings to the same currency, the Company has been able to substantially mitigate foreign
currency risk to earnings. However, as business practices evolve the Company is increasing its use of
offshore support and is therefore becoming more exposed to currency fluctuations.

The Company established policies and procedures to manage the exposure 1o fluctuations in foreign
currency by using foreign currency forwards to hedge intercompany loans denominated in non-functional
currencies and certain foreign currency assets and liabilitics. These financial instruments are generally
short term in nature with typical maturities of less than one year. In addition, the Company uses these
instruments as economic hedges and not for speculative or trading purposes. For accounting purposes,
these foreign currency contracts do not qualify as cash flow hedges and all changes in fair value are
reported in net earnings as part of other income and expenses. In fiscal year 2009, the Company also
entered into foreign currency options to manage their exposure to the economic risk from movements in
the Rupee against the U.S. Dollar from the Company’s offshore support base in India.

During fiscal 2008, 40.2% of the Company's revenue was generated outside of the United States. In
order to provide an assessment of the Company’s foreign currency exchange rate risk, the Company uses
sensitivity analysis to determine the effects on the fair value of our hedge portfolio. Given a hypothetical
10% increase in the value of the U.S. dollar against all currencies, the Company would decrease revenue
by 4.02% or $662.8 million, while a hypothetical 10% decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar against all
currencies would increase revenue by 4.02% or $662.8 million. In the opinion of management, a substantial
portion of this fluctuation would be offset by expenses incurred in local currency. As a result, a
hypothetical 10% movement of the value of the U.S. dollar against all currencies in either direction would
impact the Company’s earnings before interest and taxes by $53.6 million. This amount would be offset, in
part, from the impacts of local income taxes and local currency interest expense.

At March 28, 2008, the Company had approximately $628.7 million of non-U.S. dollar denominated
cash and cash equivalents, and approximately $46.6 million of non-U.S. dollar borrowings.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. .. ... ... oo oo 53
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2007 and March 31, 2006 . .. ... . e e e 60
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Schedules other than that listed above have been omitted since they are either not required, are not
applicable, or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or related notes.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Computer Sciences Corporation (the Company) is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policics and procedures pertaining
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and
dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurance transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
All internal controls, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even where
internal control over financial reporting is determined to be effective, it can provide only reasonable
assurance. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

As of the end of the Company’s 2008 fiscal year, management conducted an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework estab-
lished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficien-
cies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement to the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

In the course of the Company’s assessment, it has identified the following material weakness in
internal control over financial reporting: there are insufficient knowledgeable and competent personnel in
certain key positions within the 1ax function and processes and procedures over accounting for income
taxes are not adequate for the Company’s size and complexity. Accordingly, management has determined
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 28, 2008 was not effective.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of March 28, 2008 has been audited by the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page 54.

Date: May 23, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Sciences Corporation
El Segundo, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Computer Sciences Corporation
(the Company) as of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 28,
2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These
financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and the financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Computer Sciences Corporation as of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 28, 2008,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1, Note 7, Note 11 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment
on April 1, 2006, SFAS No. 158, Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R on March 30, 2007 and FASB
Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for Uncentainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109" on March 31, 2007.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
March 28, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Controi—integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 23, 2008
expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

{s/Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
May 23, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Sciences Corporation
E!l Segundo, California

We have audited Computer Sciences Corporation’s (the Company) internal control over financial
reporting as of March 28, 2008, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effcctive internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to abtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibil-
ity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness
of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material
weakness has been identified and included in management’s assessment. There are insufficient knowledge-
able and competent tax personnel and the Company’s processes and procedures for accounting for income
taxes are inadequate for the Company’s size and complexity. This deficiency results in a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement to the Company’s income tax expense and related liabilities and
deferred tax asset accounts in the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis.
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This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applicd in our audit of the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for
the year ended March 28, 2008 of the Company and this report does not affect our report on such financial
statements and financial statement schedule.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of
the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of March 28, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for
the year ended March 28, 2008 of the Company and our report dated May 23, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule, and includes an
explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment on April 1, 2006, SFAS No. 158, Employer’s Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106
and 132R on March 30, 2007 and FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
an interpretation of FASB Statememt No. 109" on March 31, 2007.

[s/Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
May 23, 2008
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
In millions March 28, 2008  March 30, 2007
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . . . ...... ... .. . oo iiiiiiaion.n $ 6989 $ 1,050.1
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $43.1 (2008)
and $58.0(2007) .. ... ot e 4,459.8 4,187.4
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. ................... 1,764.5 1,464.0
Total CUTTENt ASSEES . . . . v i ittt ve v emr st enea e nnans 6,923.2 6,701.5
Investments and other assets:
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $1,005.2 (2008) and
$830.3 (2007) ...t e s 5274 5133
Outsourcing contract costs, net of accumulated amortization of
$1,219.0 (2008) and $1,167.9{2007) ....... .. .. ...l 9254 1,029.5
Goodwill ... ... e e 3,975.2 2,500.1
(00T o o O 659.0 456.7
Total investments and other assets . ......... ... viuvernnn 6,087.0 4,499.6
Property and equipment—at cost:
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements ................... 1,208.5 1,001.0
Computers and related equipment . .. ... ... . . e 4,546.9 4,189.7
Furniture and other equipment . .......... ... 504.6 4222
6,260.0 5,612.9
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. .. .............. 3,495.4 3,073.8
Property and equipment, net . ... ... ..ol 2,764.6 2,53%.1
$15,774.8 $13,740.2

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

In millions (except share amounts)

March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007

Current liabilities:

| Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt .. .. ...... $ 8384 $ 937
Accounts payable .. ... .. ... e 798.1 855.7
Accrued payroll and related costs. . . . ... ... .. .. et 926.6 7325
Other accrued expenses. . .. ... ... .ttt e i 1,638.7 20141
Deferred revenue . . ............ . 00ttt ainnaa 1,078.5 1,025.5
Income taxes payable and deferred income taxes . ............... 3100 934.6

Total current Habilities . ... ... ... .. .o i i 5,590.3 5,656.1
Long-term debt, net of current maturities . .......... ... .. .un. 2,635.3 1,4122
Income tax liabilities and deferred income taxes. .................. 1,235.6
Other long-term liabilities . . ... . ... ... ... ... o i i, 851.8 1,131.9
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock par value $1 per share; authorized 1,000,000 shares;

none isswed . .. ... ..
Common stock, par value $1 per share; authorized 750,000,000 shares;

issued 159,218,613 (2008) and 181,105,129 (2007) .............. 159.2 181.1
Additional paid-incapital .......... ... . ... . . i 1,770.9 1,876.3
Eamings retained for use inbusiness .. ....... ... ... . 0. 38019 4,140.9
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ................ 100.6 (304.3)

5,832.6 5,804.0

Less common stock in treasury, at cost, 8,101,652 (2008) and

7,787,140 shares (2007) . .. oottt i s (370.8) (354.0)

Stockholders’ equity, net .. ........ ... . e 5,461.8 5,540.0

$15,774 8 $13,740.2

(See notes 1o consolidaied financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended

In millions (except per-share emounts) March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007  March 31, 2006
REVEMUES . . . vttt it e ee e e nttn e eaaaaaneennn $16,499.5 $14,854.9 $14,644.8
Costs of services (excludes depreciation and amortization) . 13,1519 11,813.5 11,724.5
Selling, general and administrative ................. 975.4 918.3 863.8
Depreciation and amortization . ................... 1,198.6 1,073.6 1,091.8
INLEreSt EXPENSE . .. o oo vt i ee s e 1854 217.9 1451
INterest iNCOME . ... ... ...t vnnnsineennn (37.1) (49.5) (40.8)
Special ftems . ... ... ... i 155.8 316.1 713
Other (incOME)eXPENSe .. ..o ovvv i iarvnne (48.4) (41.3) 213
Total costs and expenses ... . ... ivv i 15,581.6 14,248.6 13,883.0
Income from continuing operations before taxes ....... 917.9 606.3 761.8
Taxesonincome .............outiiiiininiaaan 3733 2090 319.5
Income from continuing operations . . ............... 544.6 397.3 4423
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes . . .. 576
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ............... 516
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net

Of tAXES . v oot e e (4.3)
NetintoOme . ..ottt s eteae e e nian v nenn $ 5446 $ 3973 $ 4956
Earnings per common share:

Continuing Operations. . . ....ovvvvernenenrnnen. $ 326 $ 235 $ 238

Discontinued operations . .. ........ ... .00 0.31

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . (0.02)

Basic .. ... e e $§ 326 $ 225 § 267

Continuing operations. ... .......o.vvvvuvenrnns $ 32 $ 221 $§ 235

Discontinued operations ..................ut.nn 0.31

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. (0.02)

Diluted . ... ... $ 32 $ 22 § 264

(Sce notes to consolidated financial statemcnis)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended
In millions (except per-share amoonts) March 28, 2008 Merch 39, 2007  March 31, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEtineome ... ...ttt i ecanraaans $ 5446 $ 3973 § 4956

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities;

Depreciation and amortization . ................... 1,286.4 1,162.0 1,187.5
Stock based compensation . .......... ... . 0o, 60.3 58.7 329
. Cumulative cffect of change in accounting principle . . . . .. 4.3
Deferredtaxes . ........ ..ot (65.3) (207.8) (45.8)
Specfalitems . ........ ... ... ... . oLl 23 77.3
Loss/(Gain) on dispositions, netof tax . . ... .......... 25 (23.2) (60.9)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable . . ... ... ... kR 55 28.7
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation . ... ... (10.7) (12.1)
Forcign currency exchange (gain)loss ............... 273) (45.5) 15.8
Impairment losses and contract write-offs . . .. ... ...... 38.7
Cash surrender value in excess of premiums paid. . ... ... 3.9)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and dispositions:

Increase inreceivables .. ........ ... ... ... ... (111.8) (2389) (261.6)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . (367.6) (324.1) (193.9)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals. . . . (110.2) 395.1 (23.7)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable. . ........ 254 70.9 2389
Increase in deferred revenue ... ..., ... ... ... .., 86.6 340.1 735
Qther operating activities, net . . . ................ (1.9) (1.7 (17.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities . .............. 13429 1,578.6 15513
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment . ................ (876.6) (685.9) {826.9)
QUtSOUICING COMITACS . . . . .\ v v iv e r e inmne e e {165.3) (112.7) (2425)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired . . .. .......... .., {1,591.1) {134.3) {44.1)
Business dispositions. . . ... .. ... i i 28 5
Software . . .. ..o s (17L.7) (154.2) (I5L1)
Other investing activities, met . . ... .................. 86.0 2116 140.1
Net cash used in investing activities . . ................ (2,718.7) B8R (1,124.0)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowing of commercial paper . ................. 255.2
Borrowings under linesof credit . . . . ............. ... 304.7 542.9 4549
Repayment of borrowings under lines of credit . .. ... .. ... (317.0) (564.4) {477.3)
Proceeds from debt issuance ... ....... ... .. ... ... 3,100.0
Principal payments on long-termdebt . .. .............. (1,440.3) (40.8) (8.5)
Proceeds from stock options, and other common stock
ransactions . .. . ...t i e e 86.0 94.8 1011
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation. . . . ... .. 10.7 12.1
Repurchase of common stock and acquisition of Treasury
SIOK + v v v et et e e e e e e (1,013.2) {1,000.0) (227.7)
Other financing activities, net. . .. ... ....... ... ...t 118 (1) 6.8
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities. . ... ., .. 997.9 (955.5) (150.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . . 26,7 9.0 38
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ....... (351.2) (240.6) 280.4
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year . ........... 1,050.1 1,290.7 1,010.3
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ............._. $ 6989 $ 1,050.1 $1,290.7

{See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Enarnings

Addittons! l;‘emllljud Accumulated Com "
_Common Stock_ AQCIIE! RO U5 rehensive Stk ln Revricted

In millions except shares in thousands Shares Amount Capltal Bosiness Income (Loss) Treasury Stock Totsl
Balance at of Apnil 1, 2005. . . ... ... 191,662.2 $191.7 $1,7329 $4,079.0 $ 459 $ (193) $(10.7) 56,0195
Comprehensive income:
Netincome . ........cvicrvans 495.6 495.6
Currency translation adjustment .. ... (152.1} (152.1}
Unfunded pension obligation .. ... .. 14.2 14.2
Unrealized loss on available for salc

SBCUTIES . . - . v vt i vne e e 13 73
Comprehensive income . . . ... ..... 365.0
Acquisition of treasury stock . . . ... .. (327.8) (327.8)
Stock based compensation expensc and

option exercises .. ... ... 3,242.1 32 149.1 (13.3) 139.0
Balance at March 31,2006 . ........ 1949043 1949 18820 45746 (84.7) (347.1} (4.0) 61957
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ............ ... 3973 7.3
Currency translation adjustment . . ... 2040 2040
Unfunded pension obligation .. ... .. 58.8 58.8
Unrealized gain on available for sale

SECUNES . . o v v v vinme e onee s 1.0 1.0
Reclassification adjustment for gains

realized in net income . ... ...... (6.9) (6.9)
Comprehensive income - . .. ....... 654.2
Acquisition of treasury stock . . ... ... (6.9) (6.9}
Stock based compensation expense and

option exercises ... ... ..o 2,603.0 26 146.9 149.5
Amortization and forfeitures of

restricted stock . .. ... ... ... 24.0 240
Repurchasc commaon stock . .. . ... .. (16,402.2) (164) (1526) (831.0) (1,000.0)
Adjustment to initially apply FASB

Statement No. 158, net of taxes . . .. (476.5) (476.5)
Balance at March 30,2007 . .. .. .. .. 181,105.1 1811 18763  4,140.9 (304.3) (354.0) 5,540.0
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .. ........ccocnn-nn 544.6 544.6
Currency translation adjustment . .. .. 2258 2258
Unfunded pension obligation . ...... 180.8 180.8
Unrealized gain on available for sale

secunities. . . ... .o S5 35
Reclassification adjustment for gains

realized in net income ... ... ... (2.2) (2.2)
Comprehensive income . .......... 9495
Acquisition of treasury stock . . . ... .. (16.8) (16.8)
Stock based compensation expense and

oplion exercises . ... ... .. ... 2,425.0 24 159.4 161.8
Amortization and forfeiturcs of

restricted stock . ... Lo
Repurchase common stock . . ....... (243115) (24.3) (263.3) (7122) (999.8)
Adjustment to initially apply FASB

Interprelation No. 48, net of taxes. . . {15) (171.4) (172.9)
Balance a1 March 28, 2008 . . ... .... 159,218.6 $159.2 $1,770.9 $3,801.9 $ 100.6 $(370.8) 554618

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of Computer Sciences Corpora-
tion, its subsidiaries and those joint ventures and partnerships over which it exercises control, hereafter
collectively referred to as “CSC” or “the Company.” Investments in business entities in which the
Company does not have control, but has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and
financial policies, generally 20 - 50 percent ownership, are accounted for by the equity method. Other
investments are accounted for by the cost method. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
climinated,

Prior Period Adjustments

The Company sponsors a retirement plan in Australia that has two elements—a defined benefit
clement and a defined contribution element. Both elements of this plan were included in the Company’s
defined benefit pension plan disclosures for fiscal 2007 and 2006 (see Note t1- Pension and Other Benefit
Plans). However, accounting guidance provides that each of the two elements should be disclosed in
accordance with the accounting guidance applicable to that element. Therefore, the following changes to
2007 and 2006 amounts in Note 11 have been made to conform to the fiscal 2008 disclosures. In the
“Pension Plan” section of Note 11, the following changes have been made. The 2007 beginning projected
benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets of the Non-U.S. plans have each been reduced by $130.9
while the ending amounts of those same items were reduced by $165.8 (such amounts reflecting the net
asscts and obligation of the defined contribution element of the Australia plan). In the 2007 Reconciliation
of Benefit Obligation table for Non-U.S. Plans, service cost, plan participants’ contributions, actuarial
(gain)/loss and foreign currency exchange rate changes have been decreased by $17.0, $13.6, $21.9 and
$10.7, respectively, while benefits paid has been decreased by $28.3. In the 2007 Reconciliation of Fair
Value of Plan Assets table for Non-U.S. Plans, actual return on plan assets, employer contribution, plan
participant contributions, and foreign currency exchange rate changes have been decreased by $21.9, $17.0,
$13.6, and $10.7, respectively, while benefits paid has been decreased by $28.3. In addition, the Non-U.S.
Plan service cost for fiscal 2007 and 2006 has been reduced by $17.0 and $16.1 for fiscal 2007 and fiscal
2006, respectively. In the “Other Benefit Plans” section of Note 11 the following changes have been made,
the Company contributions to defined contribution plans have been increased by $17.0 and $16.1 for fiscal
2007 and fiscal 2006, respectively. The foregoing changes had no impact to the Company's income
statements for fiscal 2007 and 2006 or balance sheet at March 30, 2007. The Company does not believe
these changes to be material.

Accounting Changes

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. (“FIN) 48,
“Accounting For Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" effective
March 31, 2007. See Note 7, Income Taxes, for additional information on the adoption of FIN 48,

The Company adopted FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158,
“Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R,” effective March 30, 2007. This Statement requires
recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of single-employer defined benefit postretirement
plans as assets or liabilities, respectively, on the balance sheet. Changes to the funded status of the defined
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORFORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

benefit plans are recognized in comprehensive income in the year in which the change occurs. Changes in
the funded status are measured based on the projected benefit obligation for pension plans and the
accumulated benefit obligation for other postretirement plans.

SEAS No. 158 further requires that the funded status of a defined benefit plan be measured as of the
Company’s fiscal year end balance sheet date. This provision is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008. The Company has not yet determined the impact of this change to its financial
statements.

The provisions of SFAS No. 158 were applied prospectively as of March 30, 2007 with the exception of
the measurement date provision which will be applied in fiscal 2009.

The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of
March 30, 2007 was as follows:

Refore Adaption After Adoption
of SFAS No. 158  Adjustments  of SFAS No. 158
Otherassets .. .......cvvvvenneenn $ 6032 $(146.5) $ 4567
Total @sSELS . . ..o v vvvr v enneneonns 13,886.7 (146.5) 13,740.2
Other accrued expense . ............ 1,998.1 16.0 20141
Income taxes payable and deferred
iNCOME taXes . . ......covuvenuuens 1,163.2 - (228.6) 934.6
Total current liabilities. . .. .......... 5,868.7 (212.6) 5,656.1
Other long-term liabilities . .......... 589.3 542.6 1,131.9
Accumulated other comprehensive
MEOME . ..o iiieanns 172.2 (476.5) (304.3)
Total stockholders’ equity ........... 6,016.5 (476.5) 5,540.0
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . 13,886.7 (146.5) 13,740.2

On April 1, 2006 the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” The Company has
adopted the modified prospective transition method and therefore has not restated the results of prior
periods. Under this method, the Company is required to recognize compensation expense equal to the fair
value of partially vested share-based awards at April 1, 2006 over the remaining period of service, as well as
the compensation expense for those share-based awards granted or modified on or after April 1, 2006. The
total stock-based compensation expense for awards issued on or after April 1, 2006 is recorded on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the grant-date fair values. For those awards granted
prior to the date of adoption, compensation expense is recognized on an accelerated basis based on the
grant-date fair value amount as calculated for pro forma purposes under SFAS No. 123. The fair values are
estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as discussed further below. With respect
to the income tax benefits associated with exercises of share-based payments, the Company has elected to
adopt the alternative transition method as permitted by Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff
Position (FSP) No. FAS 123(R)-3: Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-
Based Paymeat Awards.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation
expense under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to
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(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employees” and related interpretations. The Company disclosed in its prior financial statements certain
pro forma net income and earnings per share information under SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure.”

In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense for
fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 as follows:

Fiscal Year Eaded
March 28, March 30,

2008 2007
Costof services .. .. ... .. i i e $14.0 $13.8
Selling, general and administrative ..................... 359 44.6
Special @IS . .. ... . e 10.4
Total . . ..o e $60.3 $58.4
Total net of 1aX .. .. ..t e e $37.7 $41.8

The charge 10 special items of $10.4 ($6.3 net of tax) for fiscal 2008 retates to accelerated expense
associated with the Company’s former CEO whose retirement was effective July 30, 2007. See Note 6,
Special Itemns,

The following pro forma table illustraies the impact on net income and earnings per share had the
Company applied the fair value expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 for the year ended
March 31, 2006:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2006
Net iNCOME .. ... ..ttt ittt $495.6
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects. . ............. 238
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of
related taxeffects . . ... ... ... L il (34.3)
Proformanetincome .. ....... ... ..ot $485.1
Eamings per share:
Basic—asreported. .. ..., il 2.67
Basic—proforma .......... ... .. .. o i, 2.61
Diluted—asreported . .. ........ ... ... i 2.64
Diluted—proforma .. . ....... .. ... .. L 2.58

As indicated, the Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton model in determining the fair value of
options granted. In applying this model, the expected term was calculated based on the Company’s
historical experience with respect to its stock plan activity and is representative of the period of time that
the stock-bascd awards are expected to be outstanding. Beginning April 1, 2006, the Company determined
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)

separate assumptions for the expected term of options granted based on three separate job tier classifica-
tions which had distinct historical exercise behavior. This resulted in separate fair value calculations by job
tier. The risk-free interest rate was based on the zero coupon interest rate of U.S. Government issued
Treasury strips with a period commensurate with the expected term of the options. In determining the
overall risk-free interest rate, a range of interest rates from 2.17% to 5.17% was applied depending on the
expected life of the grant. Expected volatility was based on a blended approach using an equal weighting of
implied volatility and historical volatility. Historical volatility was based on the Company’s 10-year
historical daily closing price. Implied volatility was based on option trading behavior for those options
traded on certain exchange markets that have maturities of nine months and longer. The range of volatility
used for fiscal 2008 was 31% to 39%. Forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006
were $17.76, $16.67, and $15.59 per share, respectively. In calculating the actual and pro forma compensa-
tion expense for its stock incentive plans, the Company used the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Risk-free interest rate . . .........oiv .ot 4.58% 4.84% 3.73%
Expected volatility . .. .............. ... .. 12% 28% 41%
Expected lives. . ...........oo v 4.15 years 4.09 years 3.87 years

The Company implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. (FIN) 47,
“Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations-an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143"
at December 31, 2005. The Company’s asset retirement obligation relates to leases which require the
teased facilities be restored to their original condition upon expiration of the lease. As a result of adopting
FIN 47, the Company recorded a liability for the asset retirement obligation of approximately $8.5 and
recorded a charge to a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for $5.6 ($4.3 after tax). Pro
forma effects of implementing FIN 47 were not disclosed as they were not material.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Amounts subject to significant judgments and estimates include,
but are not limited to, costs to complete fixed price contracts, cash flows used in the evaluation of
impairment of intangible assets and certain deferred costs, collectibility of receivables, reserves for
uncertain tax benefits, loss accruals for litigation and pension related liabilities.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s primary service offerings are information technology (I/T) outsourcing and /T and
other professional services. The Company provides these services under time and materials,
cost-reimbursable, unit-price and fixed price contracts. The form of contract, rather than the type of
service offering, is the primary determinant of revenue recognition. Except as described below for certain
fixed price contracts, revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

or products have been provided to the client, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
reasonably assured,

For time and materials contracts, revenue is recorded at agreed-upon billing rates at the time services
are provided.

For cost-reimbursable contracts, revenue is recorded at the time costs are incurred and associated fees
are recognized when probable and estimable by applying an estimated factor to costs as incurred, such
factor being determined by the contract provisions and prior experience.

Revenue is recognized on unit-price contracts based on unit metrics times the agreed upon contract
unit price,

Revenue on eligible fixed price contracts is recognized on the basis of the estimated percent-
age-of-completion. Eligible contracts include certain software development projects and fixed price
arrangements with the U.S. Federal government. Currently, less than cight percent of the Company’s
revenues are recognized under this method. Progress towards completion is typically measured based on
achievement of specified contract milestones, or other measures of progress when available, or based on
costs incurred as a proportion of estimated total costs. Profit in a given period is reported at the expected
profit margin to be achieved on the overall contract. This method can result in the recognition of unbilled
receivables or the deferral of costs or profit on these contracts. Deferred costs may include costs related to
customer change orders subject to negotiation with the customer. These deferred costs are recorded as
prepaid expenses on the Company’s balance sheet. Management regularly reviews project profitability and
underlying estimates. Revisions to the estimates at completion are reflected in results of operations as a
change in accounting estimate in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known
by management. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which the ioss
becomes evident. The provision includes estimated costs in excess of estimated revenue and any profit
margin previously recognized.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company amended a contract with the IRS in
connection with a long-term systems modernization effort resulting in a forward loss of approximately $8.1.
In addition, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $33.9, to reduce precontract costs by
approximately half to an amount which is probable of recovery for a combined charge of $42 which is
included in cost of services.

The sale of proprictary software licenses typically includes multiple deliverables such as a license to
use the software, post contract customer support, and services. Revenue is allocated to the undelivered
elements equal to their vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value with the remainder allocated to the
delivered software license element. Vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value for the undelivered
elements is determined based on the price charged where each deliverable is sold separately. Revenue
allocated to each element is recognized when 1) a written contract is executed, 2) the element has been
delivered, 3) the fec is fixed and determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonably assured. If significant
customization is required, software licensing revenue is recognized as the related software customization
services are performed in accordance with the percentage-of-completion method, utilizing the output
method to measure progress to completion. Costs incurred in connection with sales of proprietary software
arc expensed as incurred.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Client contracts may include the provision of more than one of CSC’s services. Accordingly, for
applicable arrangements, revenue recognition includes the proper identification of separate units of
accounting and the allocation of revenue across all elements based on relative fair values, with proper
consideration given to the guidance provided by authoritative literature.

Depreciation and Amortization

The Company's depreciation and amortization policies are as follows:
pany P p

Property and Equipment:

Buildings ............. ... ... 10 to 40 years

Computers and related equipment . ......... 3 to 5 years

Furniture and other equipment . ........... 2 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements . ................ Shorter of lease term or useful life
Software ... .. ... ... 2 to 10 years
Credit information files .. . . ............. ... 10 to 20 years
Acquired contract related intangibles .. ........ Contract life and first contract renewal
Outsourcing contract Costs. .. .. ........0 0ot Contract life, excluding option years

For financial reporting purposes, the cost of property and equipment, less applicable residual values,
is depreciated using predominately the straight-line method. Depreciation commences when the specific
asset is complete, installed and ready for normal use. Qutsourcing contract costs and credit information
files are amortized on a straight-line basis. Acquired intangible assets are amortized based on estimated
undiscounted cash flow over the estimated life of the asset or on a straight line basis if cash flow cannot be
reliably estimated.

Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes costs incurred to develop commercial software products after technological
feasibility has been established. Costs incurred to establish technological feasibility are charged to expense
as incurred. Enhancements to software products are capitalized where such enhancements extend the life
or significantly expand the marketability of the products. Amortization of capitalized software develop-
ment costs is determined separately for each software product. Annual amortization expense is calculated
based on the greater of (a) the ratio of current gross revenues for each product to the total of current
anticipated future gross revenues for the product or (b) the straight-line method over the estimated
economic life of the product.

Unamortized capitalized software costs associated with commercial software products are regularly
evaluated for impairment on a product-by-product basis by a comparison of the unamortized balance to
the product’s net realizable value. The net realizable value is the estimated future gross revenues from that
product reduced by the related estimated future costs. When indications exist of a possible impairment in
software, the Company assesses recoverability by reviewing undiscounted estimated cash flows associated
with the software product or its related asset group and compares the total to the unamortized balance.

The Company capitalizes costs incurred to develop internal-use computer software. Internal and
external costs incurred in connection with development of upgrades or enhancements that result in
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additional functionality are also capitalized. These capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the software. Purchased software is capitalized and amortized over the
estimated useful life of the software.

Qutsourcing Contract Costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts, including costs incurred for bid and proposal activities, are generally
expensed as incurred. However, certain costs incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are
deferred and expensed over the contract life. These costs represent incremental external costs or certain
specific internal costs that are directly related to the contract acquisition or transition activities, Such
capitalized costs can be separated into two principal categorics: contract acquisition costs and transition/
set-up costs. The primary types of costs that may be capitalized include labor and related fringe benefits,
subcontractor costs, travel costs, and asset premiums.

The first principal category, contract acquisition costs, consists mainly of due diligence activities after
competitive selection as well as premiums paid. Premiums are amounts paid to clients in excess of the fair
market value of acquired assets. Fixed assets acquired in connection with outsourcing transactions are
capitalized at fair value and depreciated consistent with fixed asset policies described above. Premiums are
capitalized as outsourcing contract costs and amortized over the contract life. The amortization of
outsourcing contract cost premiums is accounted for as a reduction in revenue, The second principal
category of capitalized outsourcing costs is transition/set-up costs. Such costs are primarily associated with
installation of systems and processes.

In the event indications exist that an cutsourcing contract cost balance related to a particular contract
may be impaired, undiscounted estimated cash flows of the contract are projected over its remaining term,
and compared to the unamortized outsourcing contract cost balance. If the projected cash flows are not
adequate to recover the unamortized cost balance, the balance would be adjusted to equal the contract’s
fair value in the period such a determination is made. The primary indicator used to determine when
impairment testing should be performed is when a contract is materially underperforming, or is expected
to materially underperform in the future, as compared to the original bid model or subsequent annual
budgets.

Terminations of outsourcing contracts, including transfers either back to the client or 1o another I/T
provider, prior (o the end of their committed contract terms are infrequent due to the complex transition
of personnel, assets, methodologies, and processes involved with outsourcing transactions. In the event of
an early termination, the Company and the client, pursuant to certain contractual provisions, engage in
discussions to determine the recovery of unamortized contract costs, lost profits, transfer of personnel,
rights to implemented systems and processes, as well as other matters.

Acquisition Accounting and Goodwill

Under acquisition accounting, the purchase price is allocated to the underlying tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair market values, with the excess
recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually for each reporting unit. See
Notes 3 and 4 for further discussion.
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Marketable Securities

The Company classifies its investments in marketable securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Based on criteria set forth in SFAS
No. 115 the Company has detcrmined all of its investment securities are to be classified as avail-
able-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. During fiscal 2008 the Company sold its
remaining available-for-sale security and reclassified $2.9 ($2.2 after taxes) of unrealized gains reported as
a component of sharcholders’ equity as gains realized in net income. During fiscal 2007 and 2006 the
Company recorded $2.3 ($1.7 after taxes) and $12.1 ($7.3 after tax) of unrealized gains related to
available-for-sale securities. Available-for-sale securities are included in Prepaid expenses and other
current assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged
to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in other (income)/expense.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2006 the Company redeemed the preferred stock received from the
sale of DynCorp International for $168.6, $23.8 representing dividends receivable, resulting in a gain of
$11.2 net of taxes of $7.1,

Income Taxes

Accounting for income taxes requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the
cxpected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. The Company maintains valuation allowances when,
based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not all or a portion of a deferred tax asset
will not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are inciuded in the Company's
tax provision in the period of change. In determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, the
Company takes into account such factors as prior earnings history, expected future earnings, carryback and
carryforward periods, and tax strategies that could potentially enhance the likelihood of realization of a
deferred tax assct.

The Company recognizes uncertain tax positions in the financial statements when it is more likely than
not the tax position will be sustained upon examination. Uncertain tax positions are measured based on the
probabilities the uncertain tax position will be realized upon final settlement. See Note 7—Income Taxes.

Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents, the Company considers all investments with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company’s investments consist of high
quality securities issued by a number of institutions having high credit ratings, thereby limiting the
Company’s exposure 10 concentrations of credit risk. With respect to financial instruments, the Company’s
carrying amounts of its other current assets and liabilities were deemed to approximate their market values
due to their short maturity. At March 28, 2008 the Company had foreign currency forward contracts with a
notional value of $983 outstanding. Previous year amounts were not material.

Capital expenditurcs acquired through capital lease obligations were $40.1 for the year ended
March 28, 2008 and capital expenditurcs in accounts payable were $73.6 for the year ended March 28,
2008,
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Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows includes
amortization of outsourcing contract premiums of $87.8, $88.4, and $95.7 for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and
20086, respectively, which is reported as a reduction of revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Cash payments for interest on indebtedness and cash payments for taxes on income arc as follows:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Interest ... ... ... e e $176.0 $1444 $ 95.1
Taxes on income, netofrefunds ... ................ 4958 3048 1478

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used, other than
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, when events and circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of a long-lived asset is considered impaired when the anticipated
undiscounted cash flow from such asset is separately idemifiable and is less than its carrying value. In that
case, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the
long-lived asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the expected present vatue, in which multiple cash
flow scenarios that reflect the range of possible outcomes and a risk free rale are used to estimate fair
value. Losses on long-lived assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar manner, except that fair
values are reduced for the cost of disposal. Changes in estimates of future cash flows could result in a
write-down of the asset in a future period.

Foreign Currency

The Company has determined local currencics are the functional currencies of the foreign operations.
Accordingly, these foreign entities translate assets and liabilities from their local currencies to U.S. dollars
using year-end exchange rates while income and expense accounts are translated at the average rates in
effect during the year. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as part of accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI). As of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007 the balance of currency
translation adjustment included in AOCI was a deferred gain of $418.4 (net of taxes of $19.7) and $192.6
(net of taxes of $17.8), respectively.

The Company offsets, to the extent possible, remeasurement gains and losses on certain non-functional
currency monetary assets and liabilities, with forward contracts, with durations generally of 30 days or less,
denominated in the same currency as the exposure from the asset or liability. The Company does not enter
into forward contracts for speculative or trading purposes. Gains and losses from settlement and remeasure-
ment of the forward contracts are recorded in other income and were a net loss of $4.9 for the fiscal year
ended March 28, 2008. As of March 28, 2008, the notional amount of forward contracts outstanding was
approximately $983 and the net balance was $1.1. Previous year amounts were not material.
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Financial Instruments

Following is a summary of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s significant financial
instruments at March 28, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

2008 2007

Notional  Carrying  Estimated Fair  Carrying  Estimated Fair
Amount Amount Volue Amount Amount Value Amount

Long-term debt (Note 9) ............. — $2989.4  $30554  $14540  $1,4745
Foreign currency forward contracls, net
BSSEl. v e e n i e $982.8 1.1 1.1 -— -

$982.8 $2,990.5  $3,056.5 $1,4540 314745

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on the current interest rates offered to the
Company for instruments with similar terms and remaining maturities. The fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts represents the estimated amount required to settle the contracts using current market
exchange rates.
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the incremental shares issvable
upon the assumed exercise of stock options.

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006

Income from continuing operations ..............c...cciian. $ 5446 $ 3973 3 4423
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes ............ 57.6
Discontinued operations, net of taxes . .. .......... ... ... ... 57.6
Cumulative cffect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes . . . . (4.3)

Netincome . ... ... ... i $ 5446 $ 3973 $ 4956
Common share information (in millions):

Average common shares outstanding for basic EPS .. .......... 167.233 176,263  185.693

Dilutive effect of stock options . . .. ..., ..ot 2,935 3.470 2.291
Shares for dilwted EPS . . ... ... ... .. ... oo 170.168  179.733  187.984
Income from continuing operations . .............. ... ... ... $ 326 § 225 § 238
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, netof taxes ............ 0.31
Discontinued operations, netof faxes . .. ............. ... .. ... 0.31
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes . . . . (0.02)

Basic EPS . ... . e e $ 326 $ 225 § 267
Income from continuing operations . ........................ $ 320 §$ 221 § 235
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes . ........... 0.31
Discontinued operations, netof taxes . . . ........... .. ........ 031
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes . . .. (0.02)

Diluted EPS ... .. .. .. . e $ 320 $ 221 § 2.64

The computation of diluted EPS did not include stock options which were antidilutive, as their
exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Company's common stock during the year.
The number of such options was 7,577,441, 5,214,576 and 2,865,076 for the years ended March 28, 2008,
March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” The Statement
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. The Statement
does not require any new fair value measurements. The Statement is effective for CSC’s fiscal 2009. At this
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time the Company does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on the
Company's results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Asscts and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This Statement permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified
election dates. If the fair value option is elected, a business entity shall report unrealized gains and losses
on elected items in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. Upon initial adoption of this Statement an
entity is permitted to elect the fair value option for available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities
previously accounted for under Statement 115. The effect of reclassifying those securities into the trading
category should be included in a cumulative-effect adjustment of retained earnings and not in current-
period earnings and should be separately disclosed. This Statement is effective for CSC’s fiscal 2009. The
Company does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a material impact on the Company’s
resuits of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), “Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS 160 affects entities that have
an outstanding noncontrolling interest in onc or more subsidiaries. The significant provisions of SFAS 160
are summarized below.

*» SFAS 160 requires that minority interests be reported as part of the equity section in the
consolidated financial statements versus the current presentation as a liability or in the mezzanine
section between liabilities and equity.

« SFAS 160 also requires that the consolidated income statement include net income of both the
parent and the noncontrolling interest and that the net income amounts related to both the parent
and the noncontrolling interest be disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement.
Currently noncontrolling interest net income is reported as an expense or other deduction to arrive
at consolidated net income. SFAS No. 128, “Eamings per Share,” will be amended to clarify that
carnings-per-share data will continue to be calculated based on amounts attributable to the parent.

» SFAS 160 establishes a single method of accounting for changes in a parent’s ownership interest by
clarifying that the following transactions are equity transactions if the parent’s controlling interest is
maintained: the parent purchases additional ownership interests in its subsidiary; the parent sells
ownership interests in its subsidiary; the subsidiary reacquires some of its ownership interests; and if
the subsidiary issues additional ownership interests. Previous practice allowed parent ownership
changes to be either accounted for as equity transactions or as transactions with gain or loss
recognition in the income statement.

* SFAS 160 eliminates the requirement to apply purchase accounting to a parent’s acquisition of
noncontrolling interests.

» When a parent deconsolidates a subsidiary due to loss of controlling financial interest SFAS 160
requires that the parent recognize a gain or loss in nel income. Additionally, if a parent retains a
noncontrolling equity investment, that investment is measured at fair market value and used in the
calculation of the gain or loss. Previous to this Statement any retained investments were not
remeasured before use in calculating the gain or loss.

72




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or
after December 15, 2008. The Company has not yet evaluated the impact, if any, the adoption of this
Statement will have on the Company's consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (SFAS 141R) (revised 2007), “Business Combina-
tions.” This Statement applies to all transactions in which an entity obtains control of one or more
businesses, including true mergers/mergers of equals and combinations achieved without the transfer of
consideration. The previous SFAS No. 141 was narrower in its application in that it only applied to business
combinations in which control was obtained by transferring consideration.

The significant provisions of SFAS 141R are summarized below:

» SFAS 141R defines the acquirer as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the
business combination and establishes the acquisition date as the date the acquirer obtains control.

» SFAS 141R requires the recognition of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any noncontrol-
ling interests in the acquiree at the acquisition date, be measured at their fair values, replacing the
cost allocation process under the previous SFAS No. 141 whereby the cost of the acquisition was
allocated to the assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair market values.

» Acquisition related costs which were once included in the purchase price of the combination and
included in the cost allocation mentioned above will now under SFAS No. 141(R) be recognized
separately from the business combination.

= Restructuring costs will also be required to be recognized separately from the business combination,
versus the old method of recording them as a liability at the time of the acquisition.

* SFAS 141R requires assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interests acquired in stages (step acquisi-
tion) to be recognized at the full amounts of the fair market values. Under the old method the
acquirer identified the cost of each investment, the fair value of the underlying identifiable net
assets acquired, and the goodwill on each step which resulied in measuring the assets and liabilities
at a blend of historical costs and fair values which provided less relevant and comparable
information.

*+ SFAS 141R requires an acquirer lo recognize assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising from
contractual contingencies as of the acquisition date, measured at their acquisition date fair values.
SFAS No. 141 permitted deferred recognition of preacquisition contingencies under the recognition
criteria for SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”

* Noncontractual contingencies should be treated the same way only if it is more likely than not that
they meet the definition of an asset or liability in FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, “Elements of
Financial Statements.” If this criterion is not met at the acquisition date, the acquirer would account
for the contingency using other applicable GAAP.

* Subsequent accounting for assets and liabilities arising from contingencies acquired includes
keeping that asset or liability at the acquisition date fair market value until new information
becomes available, at which time the new information wifl be evaluated and the liability will be
measured at the higher of its acquisition date fair value or the amount that would be recognized if
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applying SFAS No. 5 and the asser would be measured at the lower of its acquisition date fair value
or the best estimate of its future settlement amount.

+ Goodwill will be measured as a residual and recognized as of the acquisition date. Goodwill will
usually equal the excess of the consideration transferred plus the fair value of the noncontrolling
interest less the fair values allocated to the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

» SFAS 141R improves the measurement of goodwill in that it requires the recognition of contingent
consideration at the acquisition date, measured at fair value versus the old method of recognizing
contingent consideration when the contingency was resolved and consideration was issued or
became issuable.

* SFAS 141R requires the excess of the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired over the
consideration transferred plus noncontrolling interest in the acquiree to be recognized in earnings
as a gain. Currently, negative goodwill is allocated as a pro rata reduction of the amounts that
otherwise would have been assigned to particular assets acquired.

This Statement makes numerous other changes to existing accounting pronouncements.

SFAS 141R is effective for all acquisitions dated on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company will adopt this Statement for all
acquisitions dated within fiscal year 2010.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This Statement changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and
hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about {a) how and why an entity
uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for
under Statement 133 and its related interpretations, and (¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged
items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. The Statement is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008,
carly adoption is allowed. This Statement does not require comparative disclosures for earlier periods at
initial adoption. The Company will adopt this Statement and provide the necessary enhanced disclosure
information by the effective date.

During September, 2006, the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission released Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 requires a registrant to quantify all misstatements that
could be material to financial statement users under both the “rollover” and “iron curtain” approaches. If
either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material the registrant must adjust its financial
statements. SAB No. 108 is applicable for CSC’s fiscal 2007. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Note 2—Discontinued Operations

The Company exchanged its CSC Health Plan Solutions (HPS) business, which was previously
included in the Global Commercial segment, for approximately 7.13 million of CSC commeon shares held
by a subsidiary of DST Systems Inc., which shares were valued at $324.6 and included in treasury stock, on
April 29, 2005. The transaction was structured in accordance with Section 355 of the Internal Revenue
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Code. The Company realized a gain of $19.2 on the transaction. The revenue and expenses of HPS have
been classified as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.”

The Company sald its equity interest in the international and other sclect operations of DynCorp on
February 11, 2005. The transaction included the sale of the stock of a wholly owned subsidiary which had a
tax basis in excess of its carrying value for financial statement purposes. The gain from the sale was subject
to working capital adjustments. During fiscal 2006, the Company finalized the working capital adjustments,
payable in preferred stock, for the salc of DynCorp International. As a result the Company recorded the
receipt of $65.5 of 13% preferred stock, issued as of February 11, 2005 and an additional gain on sale for
DI of $38.4 net of taxes of $20.7. Also during fiscal 2006, the Company recognized $20.2 of preferred stock
dividend income which is included in interest income in the consolidated statements of income.

The following discloses the results of the discontinued operations:

Fiscal Year
2006
REVEIILE . .. ittt it e e it tea e e $8.0
Income before taxes ... ... ....u.uiinnrenreinaranneenansann (1

Income from discontinued operations . . . ....... ... it

Note 3—Acquisilions

On January 11, 2008, CSC acquired all outstanding shares of First Consulting Group (FCG), a
publicly-held U.S. corporation, in an all-cash transaction for $13.00 per share, or approximately $275 net of
acquired cash. FCG is a professional services firm focused on healthcare and technology. FCG clients
include healthcare providers, health plans, government healthcare, pharmaceutical companies, life sciences
organizations, independent software vendors and other clients both within healthcarc and in other
industries. The acquisition of FCG will increase the Company’s healthcare capabilities, offerings, and
presence in the United States, Europe and Asia.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method and, accordingly, FCG’s results of
operations have been included with the Company’s from the date of acquisition. The purchase price of the
acquisition was allocated to the net assets acquired based on preliminary estimates of fair values at the
date of acquisition and are subject to future adjustments. The preliminary value estimates will be finalized
no later than the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2009. Based on the preliminary estimates of fair value,
approximately $27 was allocated to identifiable intangible assets and approximately $220 was allocated to
goodwill. Of the $27 allocated to identifiable intangible assets, $3 was assigned to internally developed
software (estimated useful life of 5 years), and $24 allocated to customer related intangibles (estimated
useful life of 3 years). The amount of goodwill is primarily attributable to the increased delivery
capabilities and penetration of certain industry segments, particularly healthcare, anticipated to be
provided by the acquisition as described above. The goodwill recognized of $220 was assigned to the
Global Commercial segment, none of which is currently expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The following table summarized the ¢stimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of the acquisition. The purchase price allocation herein is based on management’s
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preliminary assessment of the fair value of both the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The
Company is in the process of finalizing the valuation of certain intangible assets and continues to evaluate
fair values of other assets and liabilities; thus, the allocation of the purchase price is subject to refinement:

Esthnated Fair

Values

Accounts receivable ... ... . ... .. e $39
Prepaids and other current assets . .......... .o iinvnnn. - 10
Otherassets . . .. ..ottt i it ie it 29
Net property, plant and equipment .. ........ ... ... ....... 7
Identifiable intangible assets .. ... ... i i 27
Goodwill ... . e e s 220
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . ... ... .. il (31)
Other liabilities .. ..... ... . i (26)
Net assets acquired and goodwill .. .......... ... .. ... ..... $275
PUrchase Price ... ..o\ vt ie it e e it e $369
Lesscashacquired ... ...... ... ..ttty (94)
Purchase price net of cashacquired . .. ....... ... .. ... ... ..., $275

The following unaudited pro forma information presents consolidated results of operations as if the
FCG acquisition occurred at the beginning of each period presented. Pro forma results include adjust-
ments related to interest and depreciation and amortization resulting from the acquisition. FCG’s
proforma results for the first ten months of the twelve months ended March 28, 2008 include a $6.3
one-time tax benefit and nonrecurring costs of $3.7 related to acquisition activities. Results for both years
include costs of being a standalone public company prior to the acquisition by CSC. The pro forma
information may not necessarily be indicative of the results of operations had the FCG acquisition actually
taken place at the beginning of each period presented. Further, the pro forma information may not be
indicative of future performance.

As Reported Pro forma
Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007 March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007
Revenue . ..........oviveennnnn... $16,499.5 $14,854.9 $16,721.2 $15,136.2
Netlncome.........covviinnrenn.. $ 5446 $ 3973 $ 5440 $ 3984
Basic Earnings Per Share .. ........... $ 326 $ 225 $ 326 $ 226
Diluted Earnings Per Share .. ... ...... $ 320 $ 221 $ 32 $ 22

As a result of the FCG acquisition on January 11, 2008, the Company has incurred and will incur
future costs to consolidate facilities, involuntarily terminate employees and other costs to integrate FCG
into the Company. Generally accepted accounting principles require that these costs, which are not
associated with the generation of future revenues and have no future economic benefit, be reflected as
assumed liabilities in the allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired. The facility
consolidations relate to the rationalization of FCG office and data center space in the U.S. where space
will be vacated and subleased if possible. Involuntary terminations relate to approximately 66 FCG
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employees. As of March 28, 2008, 25 employces were terminated. Consolidation and integration plans are
still being finalized in the various geographies where FCG operates; therefore, the estimated integration
liabilities are subject to change as ptans become finalized. The components of the estimated acquisition
integration liabilities included in the purchase price allocation for FCG are presented in the following

table,

Acquisition Balance
Integration Paid as of Remaining at
Linbilities  March 28, 2008  March 28, 2008
Facility consalidations . . .............. $3.1 — $3.1
Severance payments .. ............... 4.6 $28 1.8
Other ...t e i e i ee e i - =
Total ... ... it §7.7 $2.8 $4.9

The Company is currently reviewing the preliminary fair value estimates of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, including valuations associated with identified intangible assets and fixed assets, exit
and facility consolidation activities, assets and liabilities related to taxes and long-term contracts, and other
matters unresolved at the time of acquisition. Included in fair value matters to be resolved is a
pre-acquisition contingency related to an earn-out provision resulting from a prior FCG acquisition. The
Company is awaiting additional information regarding the carn-out provision and estimates of future
operating results. Adjustments to the purchase price allocation are expected to be finalized no later than
the third quarter of fiscal 2009. There can be no assurance that such adjustments wilt not be material.

On July 2, 2007, CSC acquired all the outstanding shares of Covansys Corporation (Covansys), a
publicly hetd U.S. global consulting and technology services company headquartered in Farmington Hills,
Michigan, for a cash purchase price of approximately $34.00 per share, or approximately $1.3 billion net of
acquired cash. The acquisition extends CSC’s ability to offer strategic outsourcing and technology solutions
in the healthcare, financial services, retail and distribution, manufacturing, telecommunications and
high-tech industries. The acquisition of Covansys will increase the Company's delivery capabilities in [ndia
and accelerate development of strategic offshore offerings.

The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and accordingly, Covansys’ results of
operations have been included with the Company’s from the date of acquisition. The purchase price of the
acquisition was allocated to the net assets acquired based on preliminary estimates of fair values at the
date of acquisition and are subject 10 future adjustments. The preliminary value estimates for intangible
and fixed assets will be finalized no later than the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2009. Based on the
preliminary estimates of fair value, approximately $176 was allocated to the following identifiable intangi-
ble assets including customer relationships at $148, contract backlog $26, internally developed software $1
and trademark/tradename $1, with estimated uscful lives of 16, 10, 5 and .5 years, respectively. Approxi-
mately $1.1 billion was allocated to goodwill. The amount of goodwill is primarily attributable to the
increased delivery capabilities and penetration of certain industry segments anticipated to be provided by
the acquisition as described above. The goodwill recognized of $1.1 billion was assigned to the Global
Commercial segment, none of which is currently expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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The following table presents the preliminary allocation of the acquisition and other related cost, to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their fair values:

Estimated Fair

 Valves

Accounts receivable ... ..... ... .. .. i i i $ 117
Prepaids and othercurrent assets ................. ... ....... 18
Other assets .. . ...ttt e i e 5
Net property, plant and equipment . .............. ... ... .. .. 35
Identifiable intangible assets ... ............. ... ... ... ..., 176
Goodwill ... .. ... e e 1,099
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . ... ... .. ... L, (LY))
Other liabilities . ........ ... .0, (87)

Net assets acquired and goodwill . ......................... $1,316
Purchase price . .........iuviiinni ot ii e $1,437

Lesscashacquired ....... ... ... i {121)
Purchase price netof cashacquired . . ............... ... .. ... $1,316

The following unaudited pro forma information presents consolidated results of operations as if the
Covansys acquisition occurred at the beginning of each period presented. Pro forma results include
adjustments related to interest expense and depreciation and amortization resulting from the acquisition.
Covansys’ proforma results for the first three months of the twelve months ended March 28, 2008 include
nonrecurring costs of $4.0 related to acquisition activities and results for both years include costs of being a
standalone public company prior to the acquisition by CSC. The pro forma information may mot
necessarily be indicative of the results of operations had the Covansys acquisition actually taken place at
the beginning of each period presented. Further, the pro forma information may not be indicative of future
performance.

As Reported Pro forma
Twelve Months Ended Torelve Months Ended
Moarch 28, 2008  March 30, 2007 March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007
Revenue ..........civiiinnninns. $16,499.5 $14,8549 $16,619.1 $15,318.5
Netlncome....................... $ 5446 $ 3973 $ 5315 $ 3720
Basic Earnings Per Share . ............ $ 326 $ 235 $ 318 $ an
Diluted Earnings Per Share .. ... ...... $ 32 $§ 221 $ Inr $ 207

As a result of the Covansys acquisition on July 2, 2007, the Company has incurred and will incur future
costs to consolidate facitities, involuntarily terminate employees and other costs to integrate Covansys into
the Company. Generally accepted accounting principles require that these costs, which are not associated
with the generation of future sevenues and have npo future economic benefit, be reflected as assumed
liabilities in the allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired. The facility consolidations relate
to the rationalization of Covansys office space in the U.S. and internationaily where space will be vacated and
subleased if possible. Involuntary terminations relate to approximately 29 Covansys employees. As of
March 28, 2008, 26 employees had been terminated. Consolidation and integration plans were finalized in all
geographies where Covansys operates except India, where plans 1o integrate with existing CSC operations
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are still being developed. Therefore, the estimated integration fiabilities are subject to change as plans
become finalized. The components of the estimated acquisition integration liabilities included in the
purchase price allocation for Covansys are presented in the following table.

Acquisition Balance

Integration Paid s of Remalning at
Linbilities  March 28, 2008 Other March 28, 2008
Facility consolidations . . . ..................... $4.4 $(1.2) $3.2
Severance payments ... .......ociiiniiann o 49 (3.3) 03 19
Other ...t e | L 01
Total ... e e e $9.4 $(4.5) $0.3 $5.2

The Company is currently reviewing the preliminary fair value estimates of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, including valuations associated with identified intangible assets, exit and facility
consolidation activities, assets and liabilities related to taxes and long-term contracts, and other matters
unresolved at the time of acquisition. Adjustments to the purchase price allocation are expected to be
finalized no later than the first quarter of fiscal 2009. There can be no assurance that such adjustments will
not be material.

As a result of the Datatrac acquisition on December 22, 2006, the Company incurred costs to
consolidate facilities and other costs to integrate Datatrac into the Company. The facility consolidations
related to the abandonment and sublease of Datatrac facilities some of which the Company subsequently
determined would not be abandoned or subleased. As a result, the Company had to reduce the reserve and
goodwill by $4.7 in fiscal 2008. The components of the fina} acquisition integration liabilities included in
the purchase price allocation for Datatrac are presented in the following table.

Acquisition Balance

Integration Peid as of Remaining at

Liabilities  March 28, 2008  Other  March 28, 2008
Facility consolidations . . . ..................... $5.9 $4.7 $1.2
Olher ... e e .l L . .1
Total . ..o e e $6.0 - $4.7 $1.3

As a result of the DynCorp acquisition on March 7, 2003, the Company incurred costs 1o exit and
consolidate activities, involuntarily terminate employees, and other costs to integrate DynCorp into the
Company. The facility consolidations related to the abandonment and sublease of DynCorp facilities. The
components of the final acquisition integration liabilities included in the purchase price allocation for
DynCorp are presented in the following table.

Acquisition Balance
Integration Paid as of Remaining at
Liabilitles  Morch 28, 2008  March 28, 2008
Severance payments .. ............... $71 $71
Facility consolidations . . .. ............ 66.7 59.7 $7.0
Other ......... ... ... ... ... .. 6.1 3.5 26
Total .. ... $79.9 $70.3 $9.6
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Note 4—Goodwill

During the second quarter ended September 28, 2007, the Company completed its annual goodwill
impairment test. Based on the results of these tests, no impairment losses were identified and performance

of step two was not required.

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the
years ended March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007:

Global North American
Commercial Public Sector

Segment Segment Total
Balance as of March 31,2006............. $1,7474 553.6 $2,301.0
Additions ......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 16.4 16.4
Acquisitions . ............ ... ... ...... 922 92.2
Dispositions . ......... ..o, (:2) (2)
Foreign currency translation. .. ........... 90.7 90.7
Balance as of March 30, 2007. . . .......... 1,8543 645.8 2,500.1
Additions (Adjustments) ................ 1,321.3 4.7 1,316.6
Foreign currency translation . .. ........... ] 158.5 158.5
Transfers. . .......... .ot iiiiiinn (337 33.7
Balance as of March 28,2008. . ........... $3,300.4 $674.8 $3,975.2

The Global Commercial additions to goodwil! during fiscal 2008 relate to the acquisitions of Covansys
Corporation and First Consulting Group. The North American Public Sector adjustments during fiscal
2008 are primarily related to the reversed Datatrac accruals for certain properties which the company
determined will continue to be used. See Note 3—Acquisitions for further details on the additions and
adjustments to goodwill. The foreign currency translation amount relates to the impact of foreign currency
adjustments in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.” The above transfer refates
to the reporting structure change for certain consulting system and integration reporting units transferred
from Global Commercial to North American Public Sector.

The Global Commercial additions to goodwill during fiscal 2007 relate to the acquisition of the
remaining interest of a majority owned joint venture. The North American Public Sector additions to
goodwill during fiscal 2007 relate 1o the Datatrac Information Services acquisition on December 22, 2006.
See Note 3 for further details. The Global Commercial disposals relate to the divestment of Insurer (1/90)
Software Product Business in South Africa. The foreign currency translation amount relates to the impact
of foreign currency adjustments in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”

8O



COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in milliens except per-share amounts)

Note 5—Other Intangible Assets
A summary of amortizable intangible assets as of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007 is as follows:

March 28, 2008
Gross Accumulated
Carrylng Value  Amortization Net
SOftWArE . ... i e $1,532.6 $1,0052 § 5274
Qutsourcing contract costs . . ............. 2,1444 1,219.0 0925.4
Customer and other intangible assets ... .... 3875 147.9 239.6
Total intangible assets . . . .............. $4,064.5 $2,372.1  §$1,6924
March 30, 2007
Gruss Accumulated
Carrying Value  Amortization Net
SOftWATE . . o ottt e e $1,343.6 $ 8303 § 5133
Qutsourcing contract costs . .. ....... ..... 2,1974 1,167.9 1,020.5
Customer and other intangible assets ....... 189.1 108.0 81.1
Total intangible assets ... .............. $3,730.1 $2,106.2 31,6219

Amortization (including reduction of revenues as described in Note 1) related to intangible assets was
$474.5, $430.8 and $435.6 for the years ended March 28, 2008, March 30, 2007 and March 31, 20086,
respectively. Estimated amortization related to intangible assets at March 28, 2008 for each of the
subsequent five years, fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2013, is as follows: $362.3, $323.5, $245.9, $194.0 and
$146.5, respectively.

Capitalized and purchased software, net of accumulated amortization, consisted of the following:
March 28, 2008  March 30, 2007

Commercial software products . ................. $181.2 $188.2
Internal-use software _ . . . ... ... . 26.1 26.0
Purchased software ... ...... ..o iiiiienrnnns 320.1 299.1

Total .. . e e e e $5274 $513.3

Amortization of capitalized software development costs and purchased software included in deprecia-
tion and amortization of $1,198.6, $1,073.6 and $1,091.8 for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006,
respectively, consisted of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 28, 2008 March 30, 2067 March 31, 2006

Commercial software products . . .. ... $ 440 $ 50.3 $ 534
internal-use software _ . . ... ... ..... 7.8 12.6 15.9
Purchased software . .............. 115.1 87.2 715

Total ... .ot $166.9 $150.1 $146.8
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Nate 6—Special Items

Special items totaling $155.8 were recorded during the fiscal year ended March 28, 2008 and consisted
of: (1) a $133.4 restructuring charge (see discussion below), and (2) a $22.4 charge related to the
retirement of the Company's chairman and chief executive officer recorded during the first quarter of
fiscal 2008. During fiscal 2007, special items totaling $316.1 were recorded for the year ended March 30,
2007 and consisted of: (1) a $333.4 restructuring charge (see discussion below), (2) a year to date $1.0
true-up of an estimate related to the fiscal 2006 Nortel impairment charge and (3) an $18.3 gain from the
redemption of DynCorp International preferred stock recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

As previously announced in a Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2007, the Company and its former Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, Van B. Honeycutt, entered into a retirement agreement pursuant to which
Mr. Honeycutt resigned as Chief Executive Officer effective May 21, 2007, and as Chairman July 30, 2007,
and received, as a separation benefit, a lump sum cash payment of $11.2 on Januvary 31, 2008.
Mr. Honeycutt will receive certain other benefits through December 3, 2009. As a result of
Mr. Honeycutt’s retirement, recognition of the expense associated with his unvested stock-based compen-
sation was accelerated resulting in stock based compensation of $12.2, of which $10.4 was recorded in
Special lItems and $1.8 was recorded as additional paid in capital. The total pre-tax charge recorded in
Special Items, including the lump sum cash payment and other benefits and the charge for accelerated
vesting of employee stock-based compensation, was $22.4 ($13.6 net of tax).

Effective February 28, 2006, Nortel Networks (Nortel) terminated the Company’s services for certain
information technology outsourcing activities covered by the agreement between Nortel and the Company.
As a result, the Company recorded a non-cash special item charge of $77.3 ($48.3 after tax). The charge
relates to the write down of outsourcing contract costs and certain equipment associated with the Nortel
contract to estimated fair value, the loss on sale of equipment to Nortel, severance costs and costs
associated with terminating the contract. The Nortel contract is included in the Global Commercial
reporting segment.

Restructuring

In April 2006, the Company announced a restructuring plan to be carried out during fiscal 2007 and
2008. The objectives of the plan are to 1) streamline CSC’s worldwide operations and 2) leverage the
increased use of lower cost global resources. Restructuring charges consist predominantly of severance and
related employee payments resulting from terminations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the
Company evaluated facility consolidation opportunities and other areas where operations could be
streamlined and costs reduced consistent with the plan objectives, resulting in additional lease termination,
asset impairment and other charges.

Workforce reductions, including some voluntary terminations, in fiscal 2008 and 2007 were approxi-
mately 1,400 and 4,400, respectively.

‘Termination-related charges were $110.7 in fiscal 2008 compared to termination-related charges of
$294.3 in fiscal 2007. Other costs, which were primarily related to vacant space, of $22.7 were also recorded
during fiscal 2008 compared to $39.1 in 2007. All of the restructuring charge in fiscal 2008 was incurred in
the Global Commercial reporting segment. Restructuring charges of $333.4 were recorded in fiscal year
2007.

82




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 6—Special Items (Continued)

A majority of the planned headcount reductions took place in Europe. For fiscal 2008, European
headcount decreased by approximately 900 compared to 3,000 in fiscal 2007. Approximately 300 reductions
were made in North America in fiscal 2008 compared to 1,100 in the prior year. The balance of the
reductions occurred in Australia and Asia.

Restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $180.4 were made in fiscal 2008,
compared to restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $207.2 in 2007. Included in the
restructuring charges are pension benefit augmentations that are due to certain employees in accordance
with legal or contractual obligations, which will be paid out over several years as part of normal pension
distributions. Such liabilities are included in the consolidated pension liability account.

See the following table for a summary of fiscal 2008:
Total pre-tax

charges recorded Restructorin
Liability as of year-to-dale Less liability as o
March 30, 2007 fiscnl 2008 Poyments Other{l) Mar. 28, 2008
Workforce reductions ............ $ 935 $110.7 $(1509) $8.0 $61.3
OMhEr ...t $ 38.8 27 (295) 08 328
TOtal. e $132.3 $1334  $(1804) $8.8 $94.1

(1) Primarily foreign currency translation adjustments.

See the following table for a summary of fiscal 2007 activity:
Total pre-tax Less charges

charges recorded  not affecting Restructu.
year-to-date restructuring Less liability as o
fisca) 2007 Iiabillry(1) Poyments(2) Other() March 10, 2007
Workforce reductions .. ......... $294.3 $(6.8) $(201.7)  $7.7 $ 935
Other ... ...ovvivainn... 39.1 4.2 65 1.0 38.8
Total ..o $333.4 $(2.6) $(2072)  $8.7 $1323

(1) Charges primarily consist of pension benefit augmentations offset by gains on sale of restructured
assels.

(2) Excludes $25.8 cash proceeds received from the sale of a data center facility.

(3) Foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Note 7—Income Thxes

Total income tax expense was ailocated as follows:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006

Income from continuing operations . ................ $373.3  $209.0 $§319.5
Income from discontinued operations ............... 26,0
Cumulative effect on prior years of changes in accounting

principles . .. ... ... . e {1.3)

$373.3 $209.0 $3442

The sources of income before taxes from continuing operations, classified between domestic entities
and those entities domiciled outside of the United States are as follows:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Domestic entities . ... ...ttt i $578.3 $6406 $526.2
Entities outside the United States . ................. 339.6  (343) 2356
1 -1 $9179 $6063 $761.8

The provision for income tax expense on income from continuing operations is classified between
current and deferred and by taxing jurisdiction in the following manner:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Current
Federal ......... ... ittt $339.3 $2714 §$ 3595
State ... ... e 335 26.3 (39.7)
Foreign ...... ... ... ... ... . ...l 65.8 119.1 45.5
4386 4168 365.3
Deferred
Federal ........... .0 iuiieiiiiinnnnn, (85.5) (88.9) (1305)
State ... ... e e i (18.3)  (20.9) 47.3
FOTEign .. .. i i e e s 38.5 (98.0) 374
(65.3) (207.8) (45.8)
Total provision for income taxes ................ $373.3 $209.0 § 3195

The current provision includes interest and penalties of $66.2 for uncertain tax positions for fiscal year
2008.
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The major elements contributing to the difference between the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of

35.0% and the effective tax rate are as follows:

Fiscal Year

o8 2007 2006
SLAtUIONY TA1E . . . . vt ettt it e s 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal tax . ..................... 06 06 06
Change in uncertain tax positions . ...................... 34 12 41
Foreign rate differential .. ............................ 1.0 54 02
Incometaxcredits ............... ... .. ... ... L. 0.7y (1.8) (0.2)
44T 14 01 22
Effective tax rate ... ... . .. o i 40.7% 34.5% 41.9%

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that comprise deferred tax balances are as follows:

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Employee benefits . .. ... ... ... . .. ... .. ... ... $3678 §4563
Tax loss/credit carryforwards ... ..................... 260.9 358.9
Depreciation and amortization. .. . ......... ... ....... (348.5)  (308.8)
Contract accounting . ... ........c.ouuuvinannonnennnn (373.8) (313.7)
Investment basis differences . ....................... (51.3) (6.5)
Accrued Interest . .. ... ... ... e 1149 75.9
Foreign Currency .. ...... ... ot (79.8) (100.7)
State Taxes . . .. ... ... e e 79.8 729
Other Assets ... ... ...ttt 216.8 203.5
Other Liabilities . .. .. ... ... ... o oo, (133.6) (136.8)
Subtotal. . . ... e 53.2 301.0
Valuation allowance .............. ... ociieineinnnn (129.5)  (234.0)
Total deferred tax assets (liabilities) . . . .. ................ $(76.3) § 610

After netting the results of each tax jurisdiction, the above deferred tax amounts resulted in a net
$202.7 liability and a net $75.3 asset that are classified as current in the Company’s balance sheet at
March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, respectively. All net long-term deferred tax assets are included in
other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The decrease to the valuation allowance for the fiscal year ended March 28, 2008 of $104.5 relates
primarily to deferred tax asscls for net operating losses in certain forcign and state tax jurisdictions
released in connection with the FIN 48 adoption. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the
Company considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized and adjusts the valuation allowance accordingly. In determining whether the deferred
tax assets are realizable the Company considers available positive and negative evidence including the
period of expiration of the tax asset, planned use of the asset, and historical and projected taxable income

March 28, March 30,
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as well as tax liabilities for the tax jurisdiction in which the tax asset relates. Valuation allowances are
evatuated periodically and will be subject to change in each future reporting period as a result of changes
in one or more of these factors.

At March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, the Company has available unused foreign net operating loss
(NOL) carryforwards of $1,612.2 and $1,369.7 and state NOL carryforwards of $837.1 and $948.2 and
other state credit carryforwards of $47.4 and $29.5. As of March 28, 2008, the foreign NOL carryforwards
can be carried over indefinitely, except for $298.2 which expire at various dates through 2018. As of
March 28, 2008, the state NOL and credit carryforwards expire at various dates through 2028.

The Company is currently the beneficiary of tax holiday incentives in India which expire in fiscal year
2010. As a result of the tax holiday incentives, the Company’s tax expense was reduced by approximately
$15.6, $7.2 and $5.3 during fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries were approximately
$1,147.2 as of March 28, 2008. As th¢ Company intends to permanently reinvest all such earnings, no
provision has been made for income taxes that may become payable upon the distribution of such eamnings,
and it is not practicabie to determine the amount of the related unrecognized deferred income tax liability.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” effective March 31, 2007.
FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected 1o be taken in a tax return. Benefits from
tax positions should be recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would have full
knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that
threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which
that threshold is no longer met. FIN 48 also provides guidance on the accounting for and disclosure of
liabilities for uncertain tax positions, interest and penalties.

As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company adjusted the estimated value of its
vncertain tax positions by recognizing additional lizbilities totaling $171.4 as a reduction to earnings
retained for use in business and $1.5 as an adjustment to additional paid-in-capital. Upon the adoption of
FIN 48, the estimated value of the Company’s uncertain tax positions was a liability of $1,414.8 resulting
from unrecognized net tax benefits including interest and penalties of $370.2 and is net of $249.1 of related
tax carryforwards. The balance of the gross liability for uncertain tax positions and the related tax
carryforwards at March 31, 2007 have been increased from the amounts disclosed upon adoption by $123.1
representing foreign net operating loss carryforwards which were netted against the related liability for
foreign uncertain tax positions at the adoption of FIN 48. The change had no effect upon the Company’s
financial statements as the amounts are presented net in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Of
the $1,414.8 liability for uncertain tax posilions, $344.7 was recorded in current liabilities as income taxes
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payable and deferred income taxes, and approximately $1,070.1 was recorded in non-current liabilities as
income tax liabilities in the consolidated condensed balance sheet.

As of March 28, 2008, the estimated value of the Company’s uncertain tax positions was a liability of
$1,437.4 resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits including interest and penalties of $436.4 and is net
of $349.3 of related tax carryforwards. Of the $1,4374 liability for uncertain tax positions, $201.8 was
recorded in current liabilities as income taxes payable and deferred income taxes, and approximately
$1,235.6 was recorded in non-current liabilities as income tax liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits
(excluding interest and penalties and related tax carryforwards):

Total
Balance at March 31, 2007 . ... oottt i i e $1,293.7
Gross increases related to prior year tax positions . ................. 60.3
Gross decreases related to prior year tax positions . ................. (229.0)
Gross increases related to current year tax positions . . . . ............. 162.2
Settlements/Lapse in statute of limitation. ... ..................... 4.7
Foreign exchange andothers. . ........ ... ... ... ... ... it 67.8
Balance at March 28, 2008 . .. ... ... . ... ... . . e $1,350.3

If the Company's positions are sustained by the taxing authority in favor of the Company, approxi-
mately $627.0 (excluding interest and penalties) of uncertain tax position liabilities would favorably impact
the Company’s effective tax rate.

Prior to the adoption of FIN 48, the Company’s policy was to classify penalties as an operating
expense, and interest on tax overpayments and underpayments as interest in arriving atl pretax income,
Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company elected to change its accounting policy and classify interest
expense on overpayments and underpayments and uncertain tax positions and penalties in the income tax
provision. As of the date of adoption of FIN 48, the Company had accrued $211.0 of interest and $159.2 of
penalties related to income tax matters. During the year ended March 28, 2008, the Company accrued
interest of $77.8 ($47.0 net of tax) and had a net release of penalties of $11.6, and as of March 28, 2008 has
recognized a liability for interest of $288.8 ($174.6 net of tax) and penalties of $147.6.

Tax Examination Status

During the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible the Company’s liability for uncertain tax positions
may change by a significant amount as a result of the following:

* The Company completed its settlement discussions with the IRS subject to an additional adminis-
trative review with respect to the examination of fiscal years 1995 through 1999. This administrative
review was completed subsequent to fiscal year 2008 and the changes to uncertain tax positions
subsequent to year end are not significant. The statute of limitations will close on these years in the
second quarter of fiscal 2009. The nature of the significant items examined includes bad debt
deductions, property transactions, and research credits.
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+ The Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2000 and beyond remain subject to
examination by the IRS. The IRS commenced an examination of fiscal years 2000 through 2004
federal income tax returns beginning in fiscal year 2007, and the Company expects to reach a
settlement by December 31, 2008. Accordingly, the Company has agreed to extend the statute of
limitations for these tax years through December 31, 2008. The nature of the significant items
subject to examination includes depreciation and amortization, research credits, and international
tax issucs.

* In the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 the Company filed several applications for changes in
accounting methods with the IRS associated with certain unrecognized tax benefits. The nature of
the accounting method changes includes deferred rent, reserves, and property tax.

+ The Company is under exam in various states and it is reasonably possible that during the next
12 months the Company may settle certain state tax examinations or voluntarily settle state income
tax positions in a negotiated settlement in other states.

Conclusion of the above matters could result in settlements for different amounts than the Company
has accrued as uncertain tax benefits, If a position for which the Company concluded was more likely than
not and was subsequently not upheld, then the Company would need to accrue and ultimately pay an
additional amount. Conversely, the Company could settle positions with the tax authorities for amounts
lower than have been accrued or extinguish a position through payment. The Company believes the
outcomes which are reasonably possible within the next 12 months may result in a reduction of the liability
for unrecognized tax benefits ranging from approximately $72.1 to $885.1, excluding penalties and interest.

The Company’s significant foreign jurisdictions including the United Kingdom, Australia, Germany,
and Canada are subject to examination for various years beginning in fiscal year 2001. The Company is
currently under examination in Canada, UK, and Germany.

Note 8—Receivables

Receivables consist of the following:
March 28, March 3¢,

2008 2007
Billed trade accounts . ... .o oo r o e $2,516.2 $2,383.5
Unbilled recoverable amounts under contracts in progress .... 1,799.8  1,665.6
Otherreceivables . . . ... .o oottt et 143.8 138.3
TOtAL & ot e e e e e e e e $4,4598 $4,1874

As of March 28, 2008, there were no billed trade accounts receivable for long-term contracts that are
unpaid by customers under retainage provisions.

Unbilled recoverable amounts under contracts in progress generally become billable upon completion
of a specified contract, negotiation of contract modifications, completion of government audit activities,
achievement of project milestones or upon acceptance by the customer. Unbilled recoverable amounts
under contracis in progress include amounts for long-term contracts of $1,016.7, including $586.0 which is
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expected to be collected during fiscal 2009 and $430.7 which is expected to be collected within fiscal 2010
and thereafter.

Note 9—Debt
Short-term

The Company’s commercial paper program is backed by a multi-year facility which expires on July 12,
2012. Ouistanding commercial paper is classified as short term obligations on the balance sheet. At
March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, the Company had $262.9 and no commercial paper outstanding,
respectively. The weighted average interest rate on the Company’s commercial paper borrowings was 5.1%
and 5.4% for the years ended March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, respectively.

The Company had $46.6 and $51.9 of borrowings outstanding under its uncommitted lines of credit
with certain foreign banks, as of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, respectively, CSC has provided
parent guarantees for these short-term lines of credit which carry no commitment fees or significant
covenants. The weighted average interest rate on borrowings under these shori-term lines of credit was
3.9% at March 28, 2008 and 3.7% at March 30, 2007.

Long-term

The following is a summary of long-term debt:
March 28, 2008 March 30, 2007  Effective Rate

6.25% term notes, due March 2009 . ... $ 2000 $ 200.0 6.32%
7.375% term notes, due June 2011 . . ... 498.8 498.5 7.48
5.00% term notes, due February 2013 . .. 298.2 20978 5.16
3.50% term notes, due April 2008 ... .. 3000 299.4 377
6.50% term notes, due 2018 . ......... 995.8 6.56
5.50% term notes, due 2013 ., ........ 696.6 5.61
Capitalized lease liabilities . . .. ....... 1538 151.8
Notespayable . ................... 21.0 6.5
Total long-termdebt . .............. 3,164.2 1,454.0
Less current maturities ............. 5289 418

Total .. ... $2,635.3 $1,4122

On March 3, 2008, the Company issued $700 principal 5.5% Senior Notes due 2013, and $1,000
principal 6.5% Senior Notes due 2018 through a Section 144A private offering with Banc of America
Securities LLC, Barclays Capital Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated. The
deferred issuance cost related to the $700 and $1,000 senior notes were $.4 and $.5, respectively, at
March 28, 2008. The Company expects to complete an exchange offer for the notes during fiscal 2009.

Capitalized lease liabilities shown above represent amounts due under leases for the usc of computers
and other equipment. Included in property and equipment are related assets of $289.1 (2008) and $325.8
(2007), less accumulated amortization of $79.1 and $88.2, respectively.
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Note 9%—Debt (Continued)

Certain of the Company’s borrowing arrangements contain covenants that require the Company to
maintain certain financial ratios and limit the amount of dividend payments. Under the most restrictive
requirement, $3,801.9 of retained earnings was available for cash dividends at March 28, 2008. The
Company was in compliance with all covenants at March 28, 2008.

Expected maturities of long-term debt for years subsequent to March 28, 2008 are as follows (in
millions):

1,0, $ 5289
1) U0 N 283
(1) 1 UG 26.8
7. ¢ 1 1 5164
.1 T 1,004.2
TRETCa T « . ittt e e e 1,059.6

Ot . . e e e e e e $3,164.2

In the normal course of business, the Company may provide certain customers and potential
customers with financial performance guarantees, which are generally backed by standby letters of credit
or surety bonds. In general, the Company would only be liable for the amount of these guarantees in the
event of default in the performance of our obligations, the probability of which is remote in management’s
opinion. The Company is in compliance with the performance obligations under all service contracts for
which there is a performance guarantee, and any liability incurred in connection with these guarantees
would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
position. In addition, the Company has other guarantees that represent parent guarantees in support of
working capital credit lines established with local financial institutions for its foreign business units.

The following table summarizes the expiration of the Company's financial guarantees outstanding as
of March 28, 2008.

Fiscal 2011
Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010 and thereafter Total

Performance guarantecs:

Suretybonds . ....... ... i $ 295 $ 31 $ 326
Lettersof credit ... ......... ... ... ...... 5327 11.1 $2.6 546.4
Standby lettersof credit ... ............ ... ... . 73.0 73.0
Foreign subsidiary debt guarantees . .............. 670.3 3.0 . 673.3
3] Y $1,305.5 $17.2 $2.6 $1,325.3
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Note 10—Share Repurchase Program

On June 29, 2006 the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to
$2,000. The share repurchase program included two accelerated share repurchase transactions, an acceler-
ated share repurchase transaction and a collared accelerated share repurchase transaction, as well as a
10b5-1 share repurchase plan. In connection with the 10b5-1 share repurchase plan the Company entered
into a purchase agreement with Goldman, Sachs & Co. to acquire up to an additional $1.03 biilion in
market value of outstanding common stock through open market repurchase transactions. The share
repurchase plan was completed during fiscal 2008. Under the plan the Company acquired approximately
21.7 million shares for $1.03 billion for an average price per share of $47.49 during fiscal 2008, The
acquired shares were retired with common stock, paid-in capital and retained earnings reduced by $21.6,
$235.1 and $771.8, respectively.

In connection with the accelerated share repurchase transactions portion of the share repurchase
program, the Company entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement and a collared accelerated
share repurchase agreement with Goldman, Sachs & Co on June 29, 2006. Under the accelerated share
repurchase agreement, which was effective as of June 29, 2006, the Company acquired 9.3 million shares of
common stock on June 29, 2006 from Goldman, Sachs & Co for $500. Under the collared accelerated
share repurchase transaction, which was effective July 5, 2006, the Company received an initial minimum
delivery of common stock outstanding of 7.1 million shares for a payment of $500. The transactions were
accounted for as a share retirement with common stock, paid-in capital and retained earnings reduced by
$16.4, $152.6 and $831.0, respectively. The accelerated share repurchase agreement was settted on July 6,
2007 and the Company received $28.7 in final settlement. The collared accelerated share repurchase
agreement was settled during July, 2007 and the Company received an additional 2.7 million shares as final
settlement of the transaction. The final seitlement of these transactions reduced common stock $2.7,
reduced paid-in capital $28.1, and increased retained earnings $59.5.

Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries offer a number of pension and postretirement benefit, life
insurance benefit, deferred compensation, and other plans, as described below.

A contributory, defined benefit pension plan is generally available to U.S. employees. Certain
non-U.S. employees are enrolled in defined benefit pension plans in the country of domicile. In addition,
the Company has two supplemental executive retirement plans (SERP), which are nonqualified, noncon-
tributory pension plans. The Company provides subsidized healthcare and life insurance retirement
benefits for certain U.S. employees, generally for those employed prior to August 1992, as well as dental
and prescription drug benefits for certain Canadian employces. Most employees outside the U.S. are
covered by government sponsored programs at no direct cost to the Company other than related payroll
taxes.

CSC utilizes actuarial methods required by SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”, and
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to recognize
the expense for pension and other postretirement benefit plans, respectively. CSC has implemented SFAS
No. 132(R) {as modified by SFAS No. 158), “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans”, for financial statement disclosures. Inherent in the application of these
actuarial methods are key assumptions, including, but not limited to, discount rates and expected
long-term rates of return on plan assets. Changes in the related pension and other postretirement benefit
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

costs may occur in the future due to changes in the underlying assumptions, changes in the number and
composition of plan participants and changes in the level of benefits provided.

CSC uses a measurement date of December 31 for the majority of its pension and other postretire-
ment benefit plans.

Pension Plans

The following tables provide reconciliations of the changes in the plans’ projected benefit obligations
and assets, and a statement of their funded status:

U.S. Plans Noo-ULS. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ......... $2,202.9 $1961.6 $2,346.3 $1,9569
SEIVICE COSE . o v v vt e e in e ceen i 119.6 128.2 5719 64.2
Interest COSt .. ..o vivn i e 130.0 115.4 120.7 102.2
Plan participants’ contributions . . . ........ ... oot 415 447 9.6 221
Amendments . .. ... oottt e i 13.6 (20.3) 9 (1.0)
Business (dispositions)/contract acquisitions . .. .......... (184.5) 1.4
Settlement/curtailment ......... ...l (2.9) (.5) {32.3) (11.4)
Actuarial (gain) loss . . ... ... ... . i (147.2) 462  (150.8) 419
Benefitspaid . ........ooiiiiii (79.0) (72.4) (72.3) (66.9)
Other eXpenses .. ........ ittt rarrarnns 1.7
Foreign currency exchange rate changes ............... 31.9 235.2
Projected benefit obligation at end of year. .. ........... $2,284.5 $22029 $2,1774 $2,3463

U.S. Plans Non-1.5. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . ... ........ $1,892.6 $1,594.1 $1,902.2 §$1,504.0
Actual returnonplanassets . . ... ... . L.l 98.0 213.1 99.3 166.6
Employer contribution . . .............. ... ... ... 126.0 1134 1145 101.5
Plan participants’ contributions . . .................... 475 447 9.6 221
Benefitspaid .. ..... ... i (79.0) (72.4) {72.3) (66.9)
Business/contract acquisitions (disposition) ............. 3 (J3) (141.3) (3.1)
Plan settlement . ....... ... o i, (2.9) (29.6)
Other eXpenses . .......oevviirironanrannannnnns 1)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes ............... 55.3 187.1
Fair value of plan assets atend of year . . . ............. $2,082.5 $1,8926 $1,937.7 $1,902.2
Funded status .. ... ... ..o ciiuiniinnnnneannn $ (202.0) $(3103) $(239.7) $ (444.1)
Contribution adjustment . . . .. ....... ... ... ... .. 274 290 17.2 225
Funded status at Endof Year .. . ........ ... ... .. ... $ (174.6) $ (281.3) § (222.5) § (421.6)
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The following table provides the amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Non-current assets .. .................. $ 44 § 2 $ 188 § 84
Current liabilities . ... ... ... ......... (6.2) (5.0) (5.8) (6.5)
Non-current liabilities. . . ............... (172.8) (276.5) (2355) (423.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... .. 107.7 201.9 3289 471.3
Net amountrecorded ... ............... $ (669) $ (794) $1064 § 49.7

The accumulated benefit obligation at the end of 2008 and 2007 was $3,942.4 and $3,928.1,
respectively.

The following is a summary of amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 28, 2008
and March 30, 2007 that have not been recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as
components of net periodic pension cost:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Net transition obligation . . .. ............ $ (85) § (100)
Prior service credit(cost) ............... $ L1 § 143 3.1 2.9)
Net actuarial loss . .................... (108.8) (216.2) (317.3) (4584)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . . .. $(107.7) $(201.9) $(328.9) $(471.3)

As of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, the balance of minimum liability adjustments included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss was $283.1 {net of related taxes of $153.5) and $454.8 (net of
related taxes of $218.4), respectively.

The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used in the determination of the
Company’s pension plans’ benefit obligations for the years ended March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007:

U.S, Plans Non-U.S. Pians

LTI
Discountrate ............ ...t 66% 60% 5.6% S5.1%
Rates of increase in compensation levels . ... .. ... 42% 42% 3I5% 37%

The following table lists selected information for the pension plans as of March 28, 2008 and
March 30, 2007:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
End of Yeor 2008 2007 2008 2007
Projected benefi obligation .. ......... $2,2845 822029 $2,1774 $23463
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ... ... 2,1388 20371 18036 18910
Fair value of plan assets. . ............ 20825 1,8926 19377 19022
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

Plans with Projected Plans with Acrumalated
Benefit Obligation in Benefit Obligation in
Excess of Plan Assets Excess of Plan Assets

(U.S. and Non-US.) (U.S. and Non-US.)
End of Year 2008 2007 2008 2007
Projected benefit obligation . .......... $4,171.0 $4,4969  $467.6 $2,286.1
Accumulated benefit obligation ........ 3,688.7 3,8768 4290 2,104.6
Fair value of planassets. .. . . ...... ... 3,711.2  3,7346 2208 1,855.6

The net periodic pension cost for U.S. and non-US. pension plans included the following
components:

U.S, Plaas Noa-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

SEIVICE COSL. . oo vcveen i i ia e $1196 $1282 $1183 $ 579 § 642 $653
Interest cost .. .......iiiiv it 1300 1154 101.6 120.7 1022 817
Expected returnon assets. . ... ...... ... (152.6) (1326) (111.8) (143.7) (121.4) (93.0)
Amortization of transition obligation. . ... .. 1.3 1.2 11
Amortization of prior service costs .. ...... 4 34 34 3 (1.1) 1.0
Amortization of unrecognized net loss ... .. 14.6 16.0 235 21.2 15.4 16.2
Settlement/curtailment . ... ... ...... ... (.5) 3.0 7

Special termination benefits and other costs . 5.7 5.7

Net periodic pensioncost . . ... .......... $1120 $1299 $1350 § 669 § 669 § 783

The estimated net transitional obligation, prior service cost and actuarial loss for defined bencfit plans
that will be amortized from accurulated other comprehensive income into net periodic pension cost over
the next fiscal year are $1.2, $1.8 and $14.8, respectively.

The weighted-averages of the assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost were:

U.S. Plans Non-US. Plans
08 07 w6 WS 207 208
Discount or settlement rates. . ............c..... 60% 59% 59% 50% 49% 53%
Expected long-term rates of return on assets . . .. .... 85% 85% 85% 12% 70% 71%
Rates of increase in compensation levels . .. ........ 42% 4.4% 46% 36% 35% 37%

The discount rate assumption reflects the market rate for high-quality, fixed income debt instruments
as of our annual measurement date and is therefore subject to change each year. The required use of an
expected long-term rate of return on plan asscts may result in recognized plan income that differs from the
actual return on those plan asseis in any given year. Over time, the actual long-term rate of return on plan
assets is expected to approximate the return assumption utilized. Differences between expected and actual
returns are recognized in the calculation of net periodic pension cost. Rate of increase in compensation
levels and other assumptions, such as turnover and life expectancy, also impact pension calculations.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption is selected by first identifying the
expecied range of long-term rates of return for each major asset class. Expected long-term rates of return
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

are developed based on long-term historical averages as well as current expectations of future returns.
| Consideration is given to the extent active management is employed in each class. A single expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets is then calculated by weighing each class.

) The asset allocation of pension plans at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

U.S. Pians Non-U.S. Plans
Asse Coegory 26 27 2006
Equity securities ... ..... ... ... .. .. % T0% 63% 70%
Debtsecurities . .........o i ennennnn, 2% 21% 2% 20%
OthEr © .. et e e e L 3% _l_l% _19%
Total . ... e e e 100% m% 1_0_9% @%

The Company’s investment strategy for plan assets takes into account a number of factors, including
the time horizon of the pension plans’ obligations. For each of the largest plans, an allocation range by
assel class is developed. The allocation has a significant weighting for equity investments in part due to the
relatively long duration of the plans’ obligations. Third party investment managers are employed to invest
assets in both passively-indexed and actively-managed strategies. The Company’s allocation range for its
largest plan is 60-76% equities, 23-31% debt securities and 0-10% cash and other investments. The
Company has typically used cash flow from employer and employee contributions to keep allocations
within the range. The Company also has investments in insurance contracts to pay plan benefits in certain
countries. The allocation above does not include certain amounts that are included in the fair value of
assets such as cash awaiting investment or asset transfer receivable amounts from other plans.

[nformation about the expected cash flows for pension plans follows:
Peaslon Plans
US. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

Employer contributions

2009 (expected) .. ... . $117 $ 80

' Expected Benefit Payments

; 2009 .. e $100 $ 65
2000 . e e 100 65
2011 L e e 115 70
2002 e e e e e 125 75
2003 e 135 80
2004-2018 ... 910 505
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The following tables provide reconciliations of the changes in postretirement plans’ benefit obligations
and assets, and a statement of their funded status:
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 008 2007

Reconciliation of Benelit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year. . .. ... .. $1730 $1495 $96 $108
SEIVICE COSE ... v it iere e e 24 2.2 2 3
INterest Cost .. .. ..o in i e 10.0 8.8 5 S
Plan participants’ contributions .. ............. 20 1.7
AMEndments . ......ve i (.5)
Business combination . . ......... . ... 4
Curtailment ............ o i iiirainen s (-5) 21
Actuarial gain (loss) .......... . .o (127) 218 (:2)
Benefitspaid ..........cviiiiiat 95y (100) (1) (1)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes .. ....... 1.5 2
Benefit obligation atend of year . ............. $165.6 $173.0 S$115 § 96
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ... .. $ 82 § 766
Actual return on plan assets .. ............ ... 4.2 74
Employer contribution .. ........... ... ... 49 75 $ 1§ .1
Plan participants’ contributions ............... 20 1.7
Benefitspaid ...........c.cooiiiiiin 9.5 (100) (1) (1)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ......... $88 §8.2 % $
U.S. Plaps Non-U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Funded statis ..............c.ocuvnvnnriss $(80.8) $(89.8) $(11.5) $(9.6)
Contribution adjustment . . . . ............ ..., 13 6
Funded status atendof year . . .. .......... ... $(79.5) $(89.2) $(11.5) $(9.6)

The following 1able provides the amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007
Non-current assets .. ....c.0vrveeneannans
Current liabilities ... ... .. ... ... ... .... $(53) $(44) $ (2 $ (1)
Non-current liabilities . ... ... ... ... ot (74.2) (848) (11.3) (9.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ....... 54.1 70.3 1.5 1.8
Net amount recorded . .. ... ... ... ... $(25.4) $(18.9) $(10.0) $(7.8)
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The following is a summary of amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 28, 2008
and March 30, 2007 that have not been recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as
components of net periodic benefit cost:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Net transition obligation . .. ... .............. $(74) $(9.0) $ (4) $(03)
Priorservicecost .. ... ...... ..., {(16) (1.8 —
Netactuarial loss ... ....................... (45.1) (595) (1.1) (L.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive foss .. ........ $(54.1) $(70.3) $(1.5) $(1.8)

As of March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, the balance of minimum liability adjustments included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss were $34.8 (net of related taxes of $20.7), and $43.8 (net of related
taxes of $28.3), respectively.

The following table lists selected information for other postretirement benefit plans of March 28, 2008
and March 30, 2007:

Plans with Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit
Obligation in Excess of
the Fair Value of Plan

Assets
US. Plans Non-U.S. Plans (U.S. and Non-U.S.)
End of Year 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation . . ..................... 51656 $173.0 $115 %96 $177.1 $182.6
Fair value of plan assets ... ........... 84.8 83.2 — — 848 83.2

At March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007, the Company had no postretirement healthcare plan assets
outside the U.S. Benefits paid include amounts paid directly from plan assets and amounts paid by the
Company.

For U.S. plans, a weighted-average discount rate of 6.4% and 5.8% was used in the determination of
the Company’s postretirement benefit obligation for the years ended March 28, 2008 and March 30, 2007,
respectively. For non-U.S. plans, a weighted-average discount rate of 5.8% and 5.5% was used in the
determination of the Company's postretirement healthcare obligation for the years ended March 28, 2008
and March 30, 2007, respectively.

The assumed healthcare cost trend rate used in measuring the expected benefit obligation for U.S.
postretirement benefit plans was B.5% for fiscal 2008, declining to 5.0% for 2013 and subsequent years. For
the non-U.S. postretirement benefit plans, it was 8.8% for fiscal 2008, declining to 5.1% for 2018 and
subsequent years.
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Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans {Continued)

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
healthcare plans. A one-percentage change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have had the
following effect:

One Percentage Point
Increase Decrease

Effect on accumulated postretirement healthcare obligation as

of March 28,2008 . . . .. ... ... i $12.9 $(12.8)
Effect on net periodic postretirement healthcare cost for fiscal
P11, 1. $10 $ (1.2)

The net periodic benefit cost for U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plans included the
following components:

(LS. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
SEIVICE COSE 4 v v vt i et e c it ine et $24 $22 $14 $2 S$3 §3
IOEEPEST COSL. . o v v v v v e et mama s aemne e 10.0 88 6.8 S5 S A4
Expected return on asselS . .. .. .ot iie it (6.9) (64) (62)
Amortization of transition obligation . . ............. 1.6 1.6 1.6 1 1 .1
Amortization of prior service €osts . ....... ..o 1 1 N N
Recognized actuarial Joss . ........ .. ... .. oiatn 43 36 1 1 B | 1
Settlement/curtaitment . ... ... ... el (.2) o
Net provision for postretirement benefits. . . ......... $121 $103 $44 809 $1.0 S16

The estimated net transitional obligation, prior service cost and actuarial loss for other postretirement
benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic
benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $1.6, $.4 and $3.7, respectively.

The weighted-averages of the assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost were as follows.
See the above discussion of Pension Plans for how the assumptions are developed.

U.S. Plans Noo-U.S. Plans
Zos 2007 006 I8 2007 2008
Discount or settlement rates. . . ..o v ev et et ronsenn 59% 59% 59% 5.5% 52% 5.5%
Expected long-term rates of return on assets(1} .. ......... 85% 8.5% 85%

(1} The Company had no other postretirement benefit plan assets outside the U.S.

98




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts})

Note 11—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The asset allocation for U.S. other postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as

follows:
Percentape of Plan

Assels at Year End

Asset Category 2007 2006

Equity Securities. .. ... ...t i s 66% 59%
Debt securtties . . ... ... .. ittt e 27% 3%
Cash . oo e e et e e 1% _ 8%
13T [ 100% 100%

The Company’s investment strategy for its funded post retirement benefits is similar to the stsategy for
its pension assets. The Company'’s target allocation for these assets is in the range of 50-70% equities,
30-50% dcbt securitics and 0-10% cash and other investments.

Information about the expected cash flows for other postretirement benefit plans foliows. No
significant cash flow is expected for other postretirement benefit plans outside the U.S.

Employer contributions

2009 (expected) . ... e e 310
Expected Benefit Payments

200 . o e e e $10
2000, .. et 10
2 O DIt 15
201 e e e et s 15
2003 e e e e e e 15
20142008 . .. e e e 70

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company in the next fiscal year.

Other Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors several defined contribution plans for substantially all U.S. employees and
certain foreign employees. The plans allow employees to contribute a portion of their earnings in
accordance with specified guidelines. At March 28, 2008, plan assets included 8,431,175 shares of the
Company’s common stock. During fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, the Company contributed $157.3,
$140.0, and $139.7, respectively.

Effective August 14, 1995, the Company adopted the Computer Sciences Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan (the Plan). The Plan consists of two separate plans, one for the benefit of key
executives and one for the benefit of non-employee directors. Pursuant to the Plan, certain management
and highly compensated employees are eligible to defer all or a portion of their regular salary that exceeds
the limitation set forth in Internal Revenue Section 401(a)(17) and all or a portion of their incentive
compensation, and nonemployee directors are eligible to defer up to 100% of their compensation. Each
plan participant is fully vested in all deferred compensation and earnings credited to his or her account.

The liability under this Plan amounted to $89.1 at March 28, 2008, and $89.0 at March 30, 2007. The
Company’s expense under the Plan totaled $6.2, $6.0, and $5.8 for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006,

respectively,
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Note 12—Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

The Company has operating leases for the use of certain real estate and equipment. Substantially all
operating leases are non-cancelable or cancelable only by the payment of penalties. Al} lease payments are
based on the lapse of time but include, in some cases, payments for insurance, maintenance and property
taxes. There are no purchase options on operating leases at favorable terms, but most real estate leases
have one or more renewal options. Certain leases on real estate are subject to annual escalations for
increases in utilities and property taxes. Lease rental expense amounted to $321.3, $345.1 and $299.6 for
the years ended March 28, 2008, March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively. In addition, the
Company also has $52.2 of sublease income to be received through 2017.

Minimum fixed rentals required for the next five years and thereafter under operating leases in effect
at March 28, 2008 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Real Estate  Equipment
2000 . . e e $206.2 $ 624
1] 1 174.1 283
2 1) 143.7 14.7
2002 . et e 1119 39
1) G 74.2 1.5
ThErCafter . . o ot et e 134.5 '

$844.6 $110.8

The Company has signed long-term purchase agreements with certain software, hardware, telecom-
munication and other service providers to obtain favorable pricing and terms for services that are necessary
for the operations of business activities. Under the terms of these agreements, the Company is contractu-
ally committed to purchase specified service minimums over periods ranging from one to five years, If the
Company does not meet the specificd service minimums, the Company would have an obligation to pay the
service provider a portion or all of the shortfall. Minimum purchase commitments for each of the
subsequent five years, fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2013, are as follows: $330.9, $79.3, $16, $5.7 and none,
respectively.

Contingencies

The primary financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk are accounts receivable. The Company’s customer base includes Fortune 500 companies, the U.S.
Federal and other governments and other significant, well-known companies operating in North America,
Europe and the Pacific Rim. Credit risk with respect to accounts reccivable is minimized because of the
nature and diversification of the Company’s customer base. Furthermore, the Company continuously
reviews its accounts receivables and records provisions for doubtful accounts as needed.

In the normal course of business, the Company may provide certain clients, principally governmental
entities, with financial performance guarantees, which are generally backed by standby letters of credit or
surety bonds. In general, the Company would only be liable for the amounts of these guarantees in the
event that nonperformance by the Company permits termination of the related contract by the Company’s
client, which the Company believes is remote. At March 28, 2008, the Company had $579 of outstanding
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letters of credit and surety bonds relating to these performance guarantees. The Company believes it is in
compliance with its performance obligations under all service contracts for which there is a financial
performance guarantee, and the ultimate liability, if any, incurred in connection with these guarantees will
not have a material adverse affect on its consolidated results of operations or financial position,

The Company generally indemnifies its software license customers from claims of infringement on a
United States patent, copyright, or trade secret. CSC’s indemnification covers costs to defend customers
from claims, court awards or related settlements. The Company maintains the right to modify or replace
software in order to eliminate any infringement. Historically, CSC has not incurred any significant costs
related to customer software license indemnification. Management considers the likelihood of incurring
future costs to be remote. Accordingly, the Company has not recorded a related liability.

In the course of business, discrepancies or claims may arise as to the use or reliability of various
software products provided by the Company for its customers. During 2005, the Company was named,
along with other vendors to the insurance industry and dozens of insurance companies in Hensley, et al. vs.
Computer Sciences Corporation, et al., filed as a putative nationwide class action in state court in Miller
County, Arkansas shortly before President Bush signed the Class Action Faimess Act into law. The
plaintiffs allege the defendants conspired to wrongfully use software products licensed by the Company
and the other software vendors 10 reduce the amount paid to the licensees’ insured for bodily injury ¢laims.
Plaintiffs also allege wrongful concealment of the manner in which these software programs evaluate
claims and wrongful concealment of information about alleged inherent errors and flaws in the software.
Plaintiffs seek injunctive and monetary relief of less than $.075 for each class member, as well as attorney’s
fees and costs, The Company is vigorously defending itself against the allegations. The case is currently in
the discovery phase and it is expected that discovery will continue at least through the remainder of fiscal
year 2009. The court has not issued a scheduling order for the case. Therefore, there is no deadline for
completion of discovery in the case nor has a date been set for a hearing on class certification.

Litigation is inherently uncertain and it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of the matters
discussed above. Considering the early stage of the Hensley case, the complicated issues presented by that
matter, and the fact that no class has been certified, it is not possible at this time to make meaningful
estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from this matter. It is possible that the
Company’s business, financial condition, resulis of operations, or cash flows could be affected by the
resolution of this matter. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from this
proceeding could reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results
of operations, or cash flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and
amount of such losses or damages, if any, and the structure and type of any such remedies. Depending on
the ultimate resolution of these matters, some may be material to the Company’s operating results for a
particular period if an unfavorable outcome results, although such a material unfavorable result is not
presently expected, and all other litigation, in the aggregate, is not expected to result in a material adverse
impact to the consolidated condensed financial statements,

As reflected by Form 8-K filings made by Sears Holdings Corporation (SHC) on May 13, 2005
(following merger with K-Mart Holding Corporation), and by the Company on May 16, 2005, SHC's
subsidiary, Sears, Roebuck and Co. (Sears), and the Company were in dispute over amounts due and owing
following Sears’ termination of its Master Services Agreement (Agreement) with the Company on May 11,
2005. The dispute has been settled as reflected in an 8-K filed October 25, 2007. Under the settlement
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Sears paid the Company $75, which was received by the Company on January 8, 2008, as scheduled, and
provides for the recovery of the Company’s net asset position, with no material impact to income.

CSC is engaged in providing services under contracts with the U.S. Government. The contracts are
subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.s.
Government investigate whether the Company’s operations are being conducted in accordance with these
requirements. U.S. Government investigations of the Company, whether related to the Company’s federal
government contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal
liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon the Company, or could lead to
suspension or debarment from future U.S. Government contracting. The Company believes it has
adequately reserved for any losses which may be experienced from thesc investigations.

The Company has converted the 16 submitted Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) to interest
bearing claims under the Contract Disputes Act (CDA) totaling approximately $900 on two U.S. Federal
contracts. Included in current assets on the Company’s balance sheet are approximately $449 ($414 of
which is subject to the claims) of unbilled receivables and $408 of deferred costs related to the claims
associated with the two contracts. The Company does not record any profit element when it defers costs
associated with such REAs/claims. CSC has requested payment for customer-caused delays and certain
related out-of-scope work directed or caused by the customers in support of their critical missions.
Notwithstanding the Government’s breaches and delays, CSC was obligated under applicable federal
acquisition law to continue performance as directed by the Government; otherwise, refusal to perform
would have placed CSC at risk for a termination for default under the applicable provisions of the Federal
Acquisition Regulations. The Company believes it has valid bases for pursuing recovery of these REAs/
claims supported by outside counsel’s evaluation of the facts and assistance in the preparation of the
claims. The Company remains committed to vigorous pursuil of its claimed entitlements and associated
value, and continues to believe based on review of applicable law and other considerations that recovery of
at least its net balance sheet position is probable. However, the Company’s position is subject to the
ongoing evaluation of new facts and information which may come to the Company’s attention during the
discovery phase of the litigation.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the U.S. federal contracting officer for the contract with the
larger set of claims denied the claims and issued a $42.3 counterclaim. The Company disagrees with the
Government’s denials both factually and contractually. In contrast to the Company’s claims’ submission,
the Government’s counter-claim was submitted with no verifiable evidence, no citation to any supporting
evidence and no explanation of its method for calculating value. Because of these disputes, the Company
initiated litigation at the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (ASBCA), one of the two forums
available for litigation of CDA claims, on September 11, 2007, with regard to the larger of the two sets of
claims and the counterclaim. Decisions of the ASBCA may be appealed to the Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit and that court’s ruling may be appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court. During the third
quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company and its litigation team undertook a standard review of the value of the
claims associated with this contract. Value is subject to periodic, routine adjustment as new facts are
uncovered, because of contract modifications and funding changes, ordinary rate adjustments, and/or
estimated cost data being replaced with actual costs. On December 21, 2007, as a result of the review, the
Company amended the complaint it filed with the ASBCA on September 11, 2007, and adjusted its value
downward, with such reduction reflected in the approximately $900 total value for both sets of claims noted
above. This adjustment is solely to the amount of damages claimed and does not affect the amounts
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recorded in the Company’s balance sheet. The discovery phase of this litigation is expected to begin in the
first half of fiscal 2009, Discovery in the litigation could continue for a period of one to two years.

With respect to the second set of claims, the Government issued its denial on November 15, 2007. As
with the larger set of claims, the Company disagrees with the Government’s denial both factually and
contractually and initiated litigation a1 the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals on February 12,
2008. The discovery phase of this litigation will begin in the first half of fiscal year 2009 and could continue
for a year or more.

Interest on the claims is accruing but will only be recognized in the financial statements when paid.
Resolution of the REA claims/amounts depends on individual circumstances, negotiations by the parties
and prosecution of the claims. The Company will pursue appeals as necessary and is unable to predict the
timing of resolution of recovery of these claims; however, resolution of the claims may take years.

Several shareholders of the Company have made demands on the Board of Directors of the Company
or filed purported derivative actions against both the Company, as nominal defendani, as well as certain of
CSC’s executive officers and directors. These actions generally allege that certain of the individual
defendants breached their fiduciary duty to the Company by purportedly “backdating” stock options
granted to CSC executives, improperly recording and accounting for allegedly backdated stock options,
producing and disseminating disclosures that improperly recorded and accounted for the allegedly
backdated options, engaging in acts of corporate waste, and committing violations of insider trading laws.
They allege that certain of the defendants were unjustly enriched and seek to require them to disgorge
their profits. These actions have been filed in both federal and state court in Los Angeles. The federal
action was dismissed with prejudice for failure adequately to allege that a pre-suit “demand” on the Board
was excused, and that matter is now on appeal. A similar suit filed in state court was dismissed on the same
grounds, with leave to amend. The plaintiffs thereafter amended the complaint and the motion to dismiss
the amended complaint is pending. The Company and certain directors and other individuals have also
been sued in a class action proceeding alleging violations of the ERISA statute related to claims of alleged
backdating of stock options. That case was initially filed in federal court in New York, but was recently
transferred to Los Angeles at the request of the Company. There have been no substantive proceedings in
that case. At this time it is not possible to make reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could
result from any of these actions.

In addition to the matters noted above, the Company is currently party to a number of disputes which
involve or may involve litigation. The Company consults with legal counsel on those issues related to
litigation and seeks input from other experts and advisors with respect to such matters in the ordinary
course of business. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from such matters could
reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation, or
cash flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such
losses or damages (if any) and the structure and type of any such remedies. For these reasons, it is not
possible to make reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could resuit from these other
matters at this time. Company management does not, however, presently expect any of such other matters
to have a material impact on the consoclidated financial statements of the Company.
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Employee Incentives

The Company has four stock incentive plans which authorize the issuance of stock options, restricted
stock and other stock-based incentives to employees upon terms approved by the Compensation Commit-
tee of the Board of Directors. The Company issues authorized but previously unissued shares upon the
exercise of stock options, the granting of restricted stock and the redemption of restricted stock units
(RSUs). The Company's standard vesting schedule for stock options and stock awards (restricted stock and
RSUs) is one third on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, except for certain stock awards
where one third of the shares vest on each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant date.
Prior to April 2001, the Company’s standard vesting schedule for stock options and awards was one fifth of
the shares vested on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. Stack options are generally
granted for a term of ten years.

At March 28, 2008, 14,085,267 shares of CSC common stock were available for the grant of future
stock options, restricted stock or other stock-based incentives to employees.

Stock Options

Information concerning stock options granted under stock incentive plans during fiscal 2008, fiscal -
2007 and fiscal 2006 is as follows:

Weighted

Weighted Avcrage

Average Remaining te
Number of  Exercise  Contractual  lntrinsic

Shares Price Life Valne

Qutstanding at April 1,2005. .. ............... ... 17,826,266 $40.78

Granted . . ... . e i 3,084,300 44.49

EXErCised . .. oo v i it iiir i e e et (2,777,353) 3471

Canceled/Forfeited/Expired ... .................. (883,772) 44.45
Outstanding at March 31,2006 . ................... 17,249,441 42.36 6.11 $185.3

Granted . . ... ... et e 3,164,075 55.20

EXercised . . i i vt i ir e (2,567,074)  36.97

CanceledfForfeited . ....... ..o, (488,658) 47.64

Expired . ... ..ot s (297,702) 5233
Outstanding at March 30,2007 . ............ .. ...... 17,060,082 4523 5.86 140.2

Granted . . ... ... i e e 3,553,466  54.68

Exercised . ... .o e e e (2,141,400) 40.18

Canceled/Forfeited .. .. .......... .. cihiinn.n. (465,562) 52.53

Expired . ... (251,572) 54.03
Outstanding at March 28,2008 . . . ................. 17,755,014 47.38 5.79 278
Vested and expected 1o vest in the future at March 28,

2008 ... e e e e 17,505,299  47.28 5.79 278
Excrcisable at March 28,2008 .................... 12,094,576 44.50 4.44 27.7
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March 18, 2008
Options Outstanding Options Excrcisable
Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted
Average Remaining Average
Number Exercise  Conlractusl Number Exercise

Range of Option Exercise Price Outstanding Price Life Exercisable Price
$8.20-84168 ... ... ..., 4,569,301 $34.74 4.80 4,490,801 $34.66
$4169-84690 .. ... ... ... ... .. 5,033,700 45.33 513 4,285,612  45.49
$4695-585535 .. ... ... 6,427,635 54.80 7.94 1,797,093 54.23
$5588-37894 .. ... ... ... ... ... 1,724,378 59.18 235 1,521,070 59.26

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 was $35.1,
$43.1 and $48.3, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options is based on the difference between
the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at March 28, 2008 (for options outstanding), or date
of exercise, for options exercised during the period less the applicable exercise price. The total grant date
fair value of stock options vested during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 was $22.6, $36.5 and $48.0,

respectively.

The cash received from stock options exercised during fiscal 2008 was $86.0. During fiscal 2008 the
Company realized income tax benefits of $25.1 and an excess tax benefit of $10.7 related to the exercise of
these stock options.

As of March 28, 2008 there was $59.9 of 1otal unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
stock options, net of expected forfeitures. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 2.01 years.

Stock Awards

Stock awards consist of restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”). Restricted stock awards
consist of shares of common stock of the Company issued at a price of $0. Upon issuance to an employee,
shares of restricted stock become outstanding, receive dividends and have voting rights. The shares are
subject to forfeiture and to restrictions which limit the sale or transfer during the restriction period. The
restrictions on shares of CSC restricted stock normally lapse on the first, second and third anniversaries of
the date of issuance for awards issued in lieu of cash bonuses and on the third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries for all others. The restrictions on RSUs vest on the first, second and third anniversaries of
the date of issuance for those issued in lieu of cash banuses, and on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries
for all others. Upon the vesting date, the RSUs are automatically redeemed for shares of CSC common
stock and dividend equivalents.
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Information concerning stock awards granted under stock incentive plans during fiscal 2008, fiscal
2007 and fiscal 2004 is as follows:
Number of  Weighted Average

Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at April 1,2005..................... 333,652
Granted . . ... .o i e 505,928
Released/Redeemed . ........................ (10,589)
Forfeited/Canceled ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ....... (33,000)
OQutstanding at March 31,2006 . .................. 795,99 $42.48
Granted . ... ... .. e e 560,752 55.35
Released/Redeemed ......................... (193,584) 45.13
Forfeited/Canceled ... ............. . ... .. ... (20,142) 45.22
QOutstanding at March 30,2007 . .................. 1,143,017 48.30
Granted . ... ... . e s 234,462 52.51
Released/Redeemed . .......... ... .. ... ... (594,025) 47.69
Forfeited/Canceled . ... .. ... .. ............. (44,206) 49.95
Qutstanding at March 28,2008 .. ................. 739,248 50.03

As of March 28, 2008 there was $24.3 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 3.03 years.

Nonemployee Director Incentives

The Company has two stock incentive plans which authorize the issuance of stock options, restricted
stock and other stock-based incentives to nonemployee directors upon terms approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors. At March 28, 2008, 71,100 shares of CSC common stock remained available for the
grant to nonemployee directors of future RSUs or other stock-based incentives.

Generally, RSU awards to nonemployee directors vest in full as of the next annual meeting of the
Company’s stockholders following the date they are granted and are issued at a price of $0. Information
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concerning RSUs granted 1o nonemployee directors during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 is as
follows:
Number of Weighted Avernge

Shares Fair Value

Qutstanding at April 1,2005 ..................... 69,285
Granted ....... ... .00t 11,400
Redeemed............... ... oo (21,164)
Forfeited/Canceled . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ...,

Outstanding at March 31,2006 ... ................ 59,521 $42.45
Granted . .. ... ... . e e 14,400 52.39
Redeemed. .. ... . ... ... . o i, (600} 3781
ForfeitedfCanceled . . . .. ......................

Qutstanding at March 30,2007 ................... 73,321 44.44
Granted . ........ . . i i e e 19,300 50.61
Released/Redeemed . ... . ...... ... ... ... ..... (600) 37.81
Forfeited/Canceled . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ...

Outstanding at March 28,2008 ................... 92,021 45.78

When a holder of RSUs ceases to be a director of the Company, the RSUs are automatically
redeemed for shares of CSC common stock and dividend equivalents with respect to such shares. The
number of shares to be delivered upon redemption is equal to the number of RSUs that are vested at the
time the holder ceases to be a director. At the holder's election the RSUs may be redeemed (i) as an
entirety, upon the day the hotder ceases 10 be a director, or (ii) in substantially equal amounts upon the
first five, ten or fifteen anniversaries of such termination of service.

As of March 28, 2008 there was $0.6 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
nonemployee director RSUs, The cost is expected to be fully recognized as of the annual stockholders’
meeting on August 4, 2008.

Note 14—0ther Income

2008 2007 2006

Foreign currency (gains)flosses. . ................ ..., $(31.2) $(45.5) S$15.8
{Gain)/loss on sale of non-operating assets . . ... ........ (17.2} 4.2 5.5
Total Other (Income)/Expense .. . ......cvnvvnennnn. $(48.4) $(41.3) $21.3

The Company reported other (income)/expense of ($48.4} in fiscal 2008, $(41.3} in fiscal 2007, and
$21.3 in fiscal 2006. Other (income)/expense is comprised of foreign currency (gains) and losses on
intracompany balances, and the sale of non-operating assets. The gains on sale of non-operating assets of
$17.2 during fiscal 2008 included the pre-tax gain on the sale of a building in Austin, TX of $11.2 and the
pre-tax gain on the sale of available for sale securities of $4.4. The foreign currency gain of $31.2 was
primarily due to the effect of currency rate movements between the U.S. dollar against the Euro, British
pound sterling, and Australian dollar, and currency rate movements between the Euro against the Danish
Kroner and British pound sterling. During fiscal 2008 the Company implemented a foreign currency
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exposure hedging program. The program utilized foreign currency forward contracts to offset the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates on foreign currency intercompany balances. This program
oftsets foreign currency gains and losses during fiscal 2008 at a cost of $5.8 in forward points which was
also recorded in other income.

Other (income)/expense in fiscal 2007 and 2006 were the result of currency rate movements between
the U.S. dollar against the Euro, British Pound Sterling, and Australian dollar, and currency rate
movements between the Euro against the Danish Kroner and British Pound Sterling.

Note 15—Segment and Geographic Information

All of the Company’s business involves operations which provide I/T outsourcing, consulting and
system integration services and other professional services. Although the Company presents estimates of
revenue by business service and geography, the Company’s expenses and assets are not identified or
accumulated in this manner due to, among other reasons, cross-utilization of personnel and assets across
the Company. Based on SFAS No. 131 criteria, the Company aggregates operating segments into two
reportable segments that consist of the North American Public Sector (formerly U.S. Federal Sector) and
Global Commercial. The Company organizes Global Commercial operating segments by geographies and
vertical operations. These operations serve large-scale corporations and organizations in a wide array of
industries. The operating segments provide outsourcing, systems integration, consulting, and professional
services within their assigned target geographic or vertical market, Further, operating segments’ service
offerings and clientele overlap and the Company draws on multiple operating segments to serve clients.

As a result, the aggregated operating segments have similar economic characteristics, products,
services, customers and methods of operation. The North American Public Sector operates principally
within a regulatory environment subject to governmental contracting and accounting requirements,
including Federal Acquisition Regulations, Cost Accounting Standards and audits by various U.S. federal
agencies. The Company utilizes uniform accounting policies across all of its operating units (see Note 1).
Prior fiscal year reportable segments have been restated to reflect a change in the composition of the
Global Commercial and North American Public Scctor segments as a result of realigning certain consult-
ing and systems integration business lines. In addition, the Company has changed the measure of profit or
loss disclosed by reportable segment to operating income from earnings (loss) before special items, other
income (expense), interest and taxes. Operating income is currently the predominant metric that the chief
operating decision maker utilizes to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the scgments and
for assessing performance of the reportable segments. The table below presents financial information for
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amounts)

the three fiscal years ended March 28, 2008, for the two reportable segments, and for financial items that

cannot be allocaled to either operating segment:

Global
Commercial North American
Sector Public Sector Corporate Toal

2008

REVENUES . ..\ oottt $10,718.4 $5,781.1 $16,499.5

Operating income (loss). .. ................. 962.1 408.7 $(54.4) 1,3164

Depreciation and amortization . . . ............ 1,032.6 152.3 13.7 1,198.6

ASSEES . . . e 11,555.7 3,591.7 627.4 15,7748

Capita! expenditures for long-lived assets . . ... .. 1,084.4 129.2 1,213.6
2007

REVENUES . ..ttt it et ie et e $ 9,408.4 $5,446.5 $148549

Operating income (loss). . .................. 806.1 437.3 $(56.2) 1,187.2

Depreciation and amortization . . . ............ 915.0 141.2 17.4 1,073.6

ASSBIS. ot e 9,424.2 3,734.0 5820 13,740.2

Capital expenditures for long-lived assets . ... ... 8378 741 409 952.8
2006

REVENUES . . ..ottt ettt iiein e $ 9,504.9 $5,139.9 $14,644.8

Operating income (loss) . ..., ............... 690.8 400.3 $(21.4) 1,069.7

Depreciation and amortization . . . ............ 931.6 142.9 173 1,091.8

ASSELS . . oL 8,573.5 3,554.6 8354 12,963.5

Capital expenditures for long-lived assets ....... 1,105.6 85.0 299 1,220.5

Note: The capital expenditures for long-lived asscts disclosed above are reported on a continuing
operations basis and therefore may not agree to amounts disclosed in the consolidated statement of

cash flows.

A reconciliation of operating income to income before taxes

Operatingincome . . ... ... ... ... ...
Corporate G&A . .. ... ... .. .. ... ...
Minority interest expense. . .. ......... 0.
Earnings from equity method investments. ........
Interest expense . ............. s
Interestincome . . . .......... ...,
Special items . ........... ... ... ... .. ..
Other (income)fexpense. . ... ... o.vinaeen....

Income beforetaxes. . ......... ... ... ...

is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2008 007 2006

$1,316.4 $1,187.2 $1,069.7
(1412)  (136.0)  (105.5)
(143)  (148)  (10.6)
127 13.1 11.1
(185.4) (2179) (145.1)
37.1 495 408
(1558)  (316.1)  (71.3)
(484) (413) 213

$ 9179 $§ 6063 $ 761.8

Operating income provides useful information to the Company's management for assessment of the
Company’s performance and results of operations. Components of the measure are utilized to determine

executive compensation along with other measures.
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Enterprise-wide information is provided in accordance with SFAS No. 131. Revenue by country is
based on the location of the selling business unit. Property and equipment information is based on the
physical location of the asset. Geographic revenue and property and equipment, net for the three years
ended March 28, 2008 is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Property and Property aod Property and
Revenues  Equipment, Net Revenues  Equipment, Nel Revenues  Equipment, Net

United States ........ $£9909.7 $1,370.7 $ 92232  $1,3928 $9,101.7 $13722
Europe:

United Kingdom . ... 2,189.4 571.7 1,900.3 533.2 2,005.1 393.5

Other Europe ...... 2,635.2 3559 2,2443 281.1 2,175 2441
Other International . . .. 1,765.2 466.3 1,487.1 3320 1,360.5 3103

Total ............. $16,499.5 $2,764.6 3148549  $£2,539.1 $146448  $2,320.1

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from departments and agencies of the
United States government. U.S. Federal government revenue accounted for 35%, 36% and 35% of the
Company’s revenues for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At March 28, 2008, approximately 42% of
the Company’s accounts receivable were due from the federal government. No singte commercial customer
exceeded 10% of the Company's revenues during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2006,

Note 16—Agreements with Equifax

The Company has an agreement (the Operating Agreement) with Equifax Inc. and its subsidiary,
Equifax Credit Information Services, Inc. (ECIS), pursuant to which certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
(collectively, the Bureaus) are affiliated credit bureaus of ECIS and utilize ECIS’ credit database to
provide credit reporting services from the ECIS system for resale to their customers. The Bureaus retain
ownership of their credit files stored in the ECIS system and receive revenues generated from the sale of
the credit information they contain. The Bureaus pay ECIS a fee for the services it provides to them, and
for each report supplied by the ECIS system.

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Company has an option to require ECIS to purchase
CSC’s credit reporting business (Credit Reporting Put Option). The option requires six months’ advance
notice and expires on August 1, 2013, The exercise price of the option is equal to the appraised value of the
credit reporting business.

The Operating Agreement has a 10 year term, which will automatically be renewed indefinitely for
successive 10 year periods unless the Company gives notice of termination at least six months prior to the
expiration of any such term. In the event that on or prior to August 1, 2013 (i) the Company gives such
notice of termination and does not exercise the Credit Reporting Put Option prior to the termination of
the then-current term or (ii) there is a change in control of the Company, then ECIS has an option for
60 days thereafier to require the Company to sell to it the credil reporting business at the Credit Reporting
Put Option exercise price.

Note 17—Subsequent Events
During April, 2008 the Company redecmed the $300 3.50% term notes, due April, 2008.
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Fiscal 2008
1st Quarter

In millions except per-share amoumnt (1}2) 2nd Quarter(l) 3rd Quarter(l} 4th Quarter(l)
Revenues. . ..o vttt it i $3,837.9 $4,017.2 $4.1600 $4,484.4
Cost of services (excluding depreciation and

amortization) ... ........... .. 3,098.1 3,253.8 33016 3,498.4
Income from continuing operations before

TAKES Lo e s 169.7 171.6 266.3 310.2
Income from continuing operations . .. ...... 108.1 75.8 179.0 181.7
NetIncome ......... ... i, 108.1 75.8 179.0 181.7
Earnings per common share:
Basic....... ... .. . $ 062 $ 044 $ 107 $ 116
Diluted .. ... ... ... ... .. .ol $ 06l $ 043 $ 105 $ LIS

Fiscal 2007
1st Quarter

In millions except per-share amount {(3N4) 2nd Quarter(3} 3rd Quarter())  4th Quarter(})
REVENUES. . . vt i i ittt i e cnnenens $3,561.1 $3,609.1 $3,640.6 $4,044.1
Cost of services (excluding depreciation and

amortization) . ........ .. 2,879.3 2.893.7 2,901.0 3,139.5
Income from continuing operations before

TAXES .ottt i, (21.1) 1414 1742 311.8
Income from continving operations . . .. ... .. (59.9) 89.5 1135 254.2
Netlncome .......................... (59.9) 89.5 113.5 254.2
Eamnings per common share:
Basic.......... .. i $ (032) §$ 052 $ 066 $ 147
Diluted ......... ... ... o it $ (0.32) $ 051 $ 065 $ 144

A discussion of “Special ltems” is included in Note 6.

(1) Includes pre-tax restructuring charges of $26.6, $25.9, $17.5, and $63.5 million for the 1st, 2nd, 3rd,
and 4th quarters, respectively.

(2) Includes pre-tax charge of $22.4 related to the retirement of the Company’s former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

(3) Includes pre-tax restructuring charges of $215.0, $40.2, $42.0, and $36.2 million for the 1st, 2nd, 3rd,
and 4th quarters, respectively.

(4) Includes a pre-tax $18.3 million gain from the redemption of DynCorp International preferred stock
recorded during the 1st quarter of fiscal 2007.
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 11, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Three Years Ended March 28, 2008
(Dollars in Millions)

Additions

Balance, Charged to Balance,

beginning cost and end of
In millions of period expenses Other(1) Deductions  period
Year ended March 28,2008 ................. $58.0 $ 3.1 $2.4 $204 $43.1
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Year ended March 30, 2007
Allowance for doubtful receivables .. .......... 68.4 55 1 16.0 58.0
Year ended March 31, 2006
Allowance for doubtful receivables .. .......... 531 28.7 25 159 68.4

(1) Includes balances from acquisitions, changes in balances due to foreign currency exchange rates and
recovery of prior-year charges.
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PART 11 (Continued)
ftem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

“Disclosure controls and procedures” are the controls and other procedures of an issuer that are
designed to ensure that information required 1o be disclosed by the issucr in the reports filed or submitted
by it under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms. “Disclosure controls and procedures” include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in its Exchange Act reports is
accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its principal executive and financial
officers, as appropriate to atlow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the direction of the éompany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the
Company has evaluated the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of March 28, 2008.

+ In the course of the Company's assessment, it has identified the following material weakness in
internal control over financial reporting: there are insufficient knowledgeable and competent
personnel in certain key positions within the tax function and processes and procedures over
accounting for income taxes are not adequate for the Company’s size and complexity.

As a result of this material weakness, the Company has concluded that its disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of March 28, 2008. See “Management Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting” and “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm™ on pages 52 and
53 through 55 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controis

“Internal controls over financial reporting” is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
issuer’s principal executive and financial officers, and effected by the issuer’s board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the issuer;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the issuer are being made only in accordance with
authorization of management and direciors of the issuer; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use¢ or disposition of the issuer's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated

financial statements.

During the fiscal quarter ended March 28, 2008, the Company fully completed remediation of the material
weakness in controls and procedures over accounting for re-measurement of foreign currency denomi-
nated intracompany loans.

Although the Company has initiated remediation measures it has not yet remediated the material
weakness over the accounting for income taxes. Remedial measures undertaken during fiscal 2008 include
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recruitment of executive tax personnel, re-evaluation of the overall organization structure and reassign-
ment of responsibilities within the function, recruitment of additional staff personnel with tax, accounting
and financial reporting expertise and improvement in the tax provision process and the underlying
procedures and internal controls. In 2009, the Company will continue 1o address these areas and other
remediation activities of a longer term nature, such as further process improvement, realignment of
financial reporting systems and chart of accounts to better capture tax/legal eniity information and
implementation of tax applications systems to further automate the year-end tax provision, compliance
activities and management of tax audits and settlement activity.

Item 9B, Other Information

None.
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PART 111
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The following table gives information about our Class A Common Stock that may be issued under our
equity compensation plans as of March 28, 2008. See Note 13, “Stock Incentive Plans”, to the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements included herein for information regarding the material features of these plans.

Number of secarities

Number of securilies remaining availabie for
to be issued Weighted-average futare Issuance under
upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
ountstanding options, outsiznding options, (excluding securliies
Plan category(a) warrants and rights{b}  warrants and rights(c) reflected in column(b})(d)

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders . ... ........ 18,332,094 45.89(1) 14,156,367(2)

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . . ..

Total ........... ... 0oL, 18,332,094 14,156,367

1. Includes an aggrepate of 12 shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options with a
weighted average exercise price of $46.43 per share that were granted under a plan the Company
assumed in connection with the acquisition of Nichols Research Corporation. This plan did not permit
grants or awards subsequent to the date of acquisition.

2. Includes shares issuable under the 1997 Nonemployee Director Plan and 2001, 1998, and 1984 Stock
Incentive Plans. Each of these plans permits shares to be issued pursuant to any type of arrangement
that by its terms involves or might involve the issuance of Common Stock or derivative securities with
an exercise or conversion privilege at a price related to the Common Stock or with a value derived
from the value of the Common Stock, including, without limitation, sales, bonuses and other transfers
of stock, restricted stock, stock options, reload stock options, stock purchase warrants, other rights to
acquire stock, RSUs, other securities convertible into or redeemable for stock, stock appreciation
rights, limited stock appreciation rights, phantom stock, dividend equivalents, performance units and
performance shares, and any two or more of the foregoing in tandem or in the alternative.

Also includes shares issuable under the 2006 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan, and the 2007 and
2004 Incentive Plans. Each of these plans permits shares to be issued pursuant to stock oplions,
restricted stock or RSUs, or pursuant to performance awards payable in shares of CSC stock,
restricted stock, RSUs, or any combination of the foregoing,

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding executive officers of the Company is included in Part 1. For the other
information called for by Items 10, 11, 13 and 14 reference is made to the sections entitled “Stock
Ovmership,” “Proposal 1—Election of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in the Registrant's
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after March 28, 2008. Such sections are incorporated
herein by reference in their entircty, except for the material included in the “Executive Compensation”
section under the caption “Compensation Committee Report.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(1) and (2) Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

These documents are included in the response to Item 8 of this report. See the index on page 51.

(3) Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed with this report:

Exhibit

Number

Description of Exhibit

21

31

32

33

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9
10.10

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 25, 2007, by and among Computer Sciences
Corporation, Surfside Acquisition Corp. and Covansys Corporation (incorporated by reference
1o Exhibit 0.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 30, 2007)

Restated Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on June 11, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended March 28, 2003)

Certificatc of Amendment of Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 3, 2003)

Bylaws, amended and restated effective November 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
September 28, 2007)

1998 Stock Incentive Plan(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter cnded July 3, 1998)

2001 Stock Incentive Plan(1) (incorporated by reference 1o Appendix B to the Company's Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 13, 2001)

Schedule to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan for United Kingdom personnel(1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report on form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended April 2, 2004)

2004 Incentive Plan(1) (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 9, 2004)

2007 Employee Incentive Plan{1) (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on July 30, 2007)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for employees(1)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreements for employees(l) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
July 1, 2005)

Form of Service-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Employees(1)
Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Employees(1)

Form of Career Shares Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Employees(1)

16




Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Form FY2006 Annual Management Incentive Plan 1 Worksheet(1) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
July 1, 2005)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended and restated effective December 3, 2007(1)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 4, 2007)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan No. 2, effective December 3, 2007(1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 4,
2007)

Excess Plan, effective December 3, 2007(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 4, 2007)

Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated effective December 3, 2007(1)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 4, 2007)

Severance Plan for Senior Management and Key Employees, amended and restated effective
October 28, 2007(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November i, 2007)

Severance Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective February 2, 1998(1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended December 26, 1997)

Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective May 1, 1999(1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 1999)

Amendment of Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycunt, effective February 3, 2003(1)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended December 27, 2002)

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective December S5,
2005(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 6, 2005)

Retirement Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective May 21, 2007(1) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 25, 2007)

Management Agreement with Michael W. Laphen, effective September 106, 2007(1)
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 10, 2007)

Senior Management and Key Employee Severance Agreement dated August 11, 2003, with
Michael W. Laphen(1) (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 12, 2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Senior Management and Key Employee Severance Agreement dated
December 10, 2007, with Michael W. Laphen(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 12, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

21

311
31.2
32.1
322

General Release of Claims, effective January 30, 2008, with Michael E. Keane(1) (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31,

2008)

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1995)

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit X(xxvi)
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Aprif 1, 1988)

1997 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to
the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 11,
1997)

2006 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on July 31, 2006)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for directors (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
July 1, 2005)

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Agreement with directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6,
2005)

Credit Agreement dated as of July 12, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 5, 2007)

Indenture dated as of March 3, 2008 for the 5.50% senior notes due 2013 and the 6.50% senior
notes due 2018.

Accelerated Share Repurchase Transaction—VWAP Pricing Agreement and Supplemental
confirmation dated June 29, 2006 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. and the Company(2)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 1o the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2006)

Collared Accelerated Share Repurchase Transaction Agreement and Supplemental confirmation
dated June 29, 2006 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. and the Company(2) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2006)

Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Repistrant
Section 302 Certification of the Chief Exccutive Officer
Section 302 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Section 906 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Section 906 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement

(2) Confidential treatment has been requested pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, for portions of this exhibit that contain confidential commercial and financial
information.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Dated: May 27, 2008 COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION -

By: s/ MICHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W. Laphen,
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature % %
s/ MICHAEL W. LAPHEN Chairman, President and
- Chief Executive Officer May 27, 2008
Michael W. Laphen (Principal Executive Officer)
Js/ DONALD G. DEBUCK Vice President, Controller and
Chief Financial Officer May 27, 2008
Donald G. DeBuck (Principal Financiat Officer)
s/ IRVING W. BalILEY, Il
- Director May 27, 2008
Irving W. Bailey, 1]
/s/ DAVID 1. BARRAM .
- Director May 27, 2008
David J. Barram
/s/ STEPHEN L. BAUM Direct Mav 27. 2008
Stephen L. Baum trector e
/s/ RODNEY F. CHASE DI Mav 27, 2008
1 s
Rodney F. Chase rector a
fs/ JUDITH R. HABERKORN Di May 27. 2008
Judith R. Haberkorn rector yeh
/s! F. WARREN MCFARLAN )
Director May 27, 2008
E. Warren McFarlan
/s/ CHONG Sup PARK Di Mav 27. 2008
Chong Sup Park Irector ay &b
/s/ THoMmas H, PATRICK .
Director May 27, 2008

Thomas H. Patrick
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Exhibit 21

COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates
As of March 28, 2008

Name Jurisdiction of Organization
AdvanceMed Corporation .. ......... ..cotrinn i Virginia

Alliance-One Services, IRC. . ... ... .o arranan. Delaware

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd. ........... ..., Thailand

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd. . ................ Thailand

Automated Systems (HK) Limited . . ... ................., Hong Kong

Beijing CSA Computer Sciences Technology Company Limited .. The People’s Republic of China
CBSI Financial Services Corporation . ................ ... Michigan

Century Capital Services Corporation .................... Nevada

Century Corporation. .. ........ovuuinuin e, Nevada .
Century Credit COrporation .............cceevruenrnoan Nevada

Century Leasing Corporation . ........covvvvreaeannan. Nevada

Computer Sciences CanadaIne. . ... .. ..o viinnninn Canada

Computer Sciences Corporation India Private Limited ........ [ndia i
Computer Sciences Corporation CSCEcuador SA. . .......... Ecuador i
Computer Sciences Espafia, S.A. . ... .. ... ...t Spain

Computer Sciences Corporation d.0.o. . ... .....coovun. Serbia

Computer Sciences Parsons LL.C. ...............cvoven Oklahoma

Computer Sciences Raytheon (Partnership) ................ Florida

Computer Systems Advisers (M) Bhd . ... ............. ..., Malaysia

Continental Grand, Limited Partnership. . ................. Nevada

Covansys (Asia Pacific) Private Limited . .................. Singapore

Covansys Deutschland GmbH .. ........... ... .. .ot Germany

Covansys (India) Private Limited . . .. ... ... ... ... India

Covansys Netherlands B.V. .. ..... ... ... Netherlands

Covansys S.L. ... . . s Spain

Covansys Software Technology (Shanghai) Company Ltd. .... .. The People’s Republic of China
Covansys UK Limited . ... ... cvveirnnio e, United Kingdom

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited . . . ........ .. coonvnn. Macau

CSA Automaled Private Limited ... ........ ... ... ..., Singapore

CSAMSCSAnBhd ... ... i Malaysia

CSA Private Limited . . .. .. ... .. i i Singapore

CSA (PRC) Company Limited. . . ..............coonint. Hong Kong

CSC Airline Solutions AJS . ... ... i Denmark

CSC Airline Solutions Denmark A/S ............. ..., .. Denmark

CSC Airline Solutions Norway AS . . .. .. ... vt Norway

CSC Airline Solutions Sweden AB. . .............c vt Sweden

CSCArabiaLtd. ....... . civviriiienenrnrranrvaies Saudi Arabia

CSC Applied Technologies LLC ... ... ...oviviiinnn Delaware

CSC Australia Finance Pty. Limited . . . . ... ........ ... .0, Australia

CSC Australia Pty. Limited . ... ...... ... .ot Australia

CSC Business Systems Limited .. .......... .. ... ... United Kingdom

CSC Computer Sciences Argentina SRL. ................. Arpentina

CSC Computer Sciences BV, ... ... ... o Netherlands

CSC Computer Sciences Colombia Ltda. . ... .............. Colombia

CSC Computer Sciences Consulting Austria GmbH . ......... Austria

CSC Computer Sciences Corporation Chile Limitada .. ....... Chile




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates {Continued)
As of March 28, 2008

Name Jurisdiction of Organization
CSC Computer Science Corporation (Costa Rica), S.A. . ...... Costa Rica

CSC Computer Sciences do Brasil Ldta. .................. Brazil

CSC Computer Sciences Egypt Ltd .. ... .. ... .......... Egypt

CSC Computer Sciences Finland QY .. .. .............. ... Finland

CSC Computer Sciences Ghana Limited .................. Ghana

CSC Computer Sciences HK Limited . . ... ................ Hong Kong
CSC Computer Sciences Ireland Limited .................. Ireland

CSC Computer Sciences Italia SpA. ................. ... laly

CSC Computer Sciences Japan Co, Ltd . .. ................ Japan

CSC Computer Sciences Korea YH . . . ................... Korea

CSC Computer Sciences Limited . . . ..................... United Kingdom
CSC Computer Sciences Luxembourg SA . . .. .............. Luxembourg
CSC Compuier Sciences Nicaragua, Sociedad Anomia ........ Nicaragua

CSC Computer Sciences Peru SRL. ..................... Peru

CSC Computer Sciences Polska Sp.z0.0.................. Poland

CSC Computer Sciences (Portugal) Lda . . ... .............. Portugal

CSC Computer Sciences Pte Limited ..................... Singapore

CSC Computer Sciences, S. de RL.deCV. ............... Mexico

CSC Computer Sciences S.A. .. ... it Luxembourg
CSC Computer Sciences SAS. . ... .. ... o L. France

CSC Computer Sciences Sdn Bhd .. .. ...... ... ... ... .... Malaysia

CSC Computer Sciences (South Africa)(Pty) Limited ......... South Africa
CSC Computer Sciences Spol. S.1.0. . .. ..o i e v, Slovakia

CSC Computer SCIENCES S.1.O. . ... ..o ot iiinnniannann Czech Republic
CSC Computer Sciences Taiwan Limited . ................. Taiwan

CSC Computer Sciences (Thailand) Limited. .. ............. Thailand

CSC Computer Sciences VOF/SNC (Partnership) . ........... Belgium

CSC Consular Services Inc. ... ... ... ... .. . et Nevada
CSCConsulting Group A/S . ... .. .o i Denmark

CSC Consulting, Inc. .. .. ... .. . ... ... Massachusetts
CSC Corporation Limited . ............ ... ... .. ...... United Kingdom
CSC Covansys Corporation . .. .......voueeieunnnnennn. Michigan

CSC Credit Services, InC. . .. ... v vt i e et naanen Texas

CSC Cybertek Corporation . ........ouii i Texas

CSC Danmark A/S ... oo e e Denmark
CSCDatalab A/S ... ... i i Denmark

CSC Deutschland Akademie GmbH .. ................... Germany

CSC Deutschland Servicess GmbH . .. ..., ...... ... ....... Germany

CSC Deutschland Solutions GmbH . .. ................... Germany

CSC Enformasyon Teknoloji Hizmetleri Limited Sikreti . ... ... Turkey

CSC Enterprises (Partnership) . ... ...................... Delaware
CSCFinancial GmbH . . ... ... ... i Germany

CSC Financial Services (Pty) Limited . . . . . ................ South Africa
CSC Financial Services S.AS. .. ... ... ... . .. ... France

CSC Financial Services Software Solutions Austria GmbH . .. .. Austria

CSC Financial Solutions Limited ... ..................... United Kingdom
CSCFSG Limited .......cv vttty United Kingdom

CSC Hungary Information Technology Services Kft. .......... Hungary




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates (Continued)
As of March 28, 2008

Name Jurisdiction of Organization
CSC Information Systems LLC .. .......... ...t Delaware

CSC International Systems Management Inc. . .............. Nevada

CSCItalia Srl. .ot i it a i e Italy

CSClapan, Ltd. ... ...ttt Delaware
CSCLogic, INC. . ... i s Texas
CSCLogic/MSALLLE . ... ... i Texas

CSC Managed ServicesInc. . ....... ...l Nevada

CSC New Zealand Limited . ... ... ..o, New Zealand
CSCOTN LLC ... ettt et e e i Nevada

CSC ProdukiSystems GmbH . . ...... ... .. ot Germany

CSC Property UK Limited . .............oviviiiinnn United Kingdom
CSC Retail Services, LLC .. ... e Nevada

CSC S A, L.ttt France

CSC Scandihealth A/S . ... . o Denmark

CSC Services Management Ireland Limited . ............... Ireland

CSC Services No, 1 Limited ............ ... coiiiieenn. United Kingdom
CSC Services No. 2 Limited . .............coovvoanan.. United Kingdom
CSC Solutions Norge AS . .. ... ...t Norway

CSCSverige AB . ... ... .ot Sweden
CSCSwitzerland GmbH . ... ... ... ... ... i, Switzerland

CSC Systems & Solutions LLC ......... ...t Delaware

CSC Technologies Deutschland GmbH . .. .......... .. ... Germany

CSC Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. .. ......... ..o The People’s Republic of China
CSCUKD 4 Limited .......coutirriinmraeeeereannnnns United Kingdom
Datatrac Information Services, Inc. . ........ ... ... Texas

Dekru BV, .. e Netherlands
DYRCOTP . . oot Delaware

DyaCorp of Colorado, Inc. . ... ... Delaware
DmKePROLLC. ... ... e Delaware
DynMcDermott Petroleum Operations Company . ........... Louisiana
DynMeridian Corporation . . ... ... ... ..ol Virginia

DynPort Vaccine Company LLC .. ................oiunn Virginia

ELM Computer Technologies Limited ... ................. Hong Kong

EURL CSC Computer Sciences Corporation Algeria . ........ Algeria

Experteam SA/MNV. ... ... . i Belgium

Express Profits Development Limited .................... British Virgin Islands
Express Returns Limited . . .. .............ovhei i British Virgin I[slands
Express Success Limited .. ... British Virgin Islands
Everlasting Properties Limited . . . . ... ........ oo ns British Virgin Islands
Federal Support Solutions, LLC .. ... ........ ..ot Nevada

FCG CSLINC. .. ittt ittt aaaens Delaware

FCG Investment Company, Inc. . ...... ... ..o Delaware

FCG Software Services, InC. . ... ..o ininenn. Delaware

FCG Software Services (India) Private Limited . . . ... ........ India

FCG Ventures, Inc. . ... ... i, Delaware

First Consulting Group. Inc. . ... ... ... .., Delaware

First Consulting Group GmbH ... ... ....... ... vutu, Germany

First Consulting Group (UK) Limited . ................... United Kingdom




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates (Continued)
As of March 28, 2008

Name Jurisdiction of Organization
First Consulting Group Vietnam Ltd. .. ... . ... .......... Victnam
Fortune Infoscribe Ltd. .. ... ... ... .oty India

Fortune InfoTech Ltd. . ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... India

Fortune InfoTech (USA)Inc. ........ . ... ... oot New Jersey
Grand Global Insurance Itd, .. ... .. . oLt Bermuda
Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited .................. The People’s Republic of China
Innovative Banking Solutions AG .. ..................... Germany

ITS Medical Systems LLC . ... ......... ... ... . ... ... Virginia
Merrill Lynch CICG, Limited Partnership ................. Delaware
Merrill Lynch Partnership Holdings, LLC. . ................ Delaware
Mississippi Space Services (Partnership) . .................. Mississippi
Mynd Asia Pacific Pty Limited. . . .. ...... ... .. ... ..., Australia
Mynd Corporation .. .......... ... iiiiiiiiiirienan South Carolina
Mynd International, Ltd. ... ... ... ... L oL Delaware
Mynd Partners f/k/a Legalgard Partners, LE ... ... ......... Pennsylvania
Mynd Partners, L.P. f/k/a Cybertek Solutions, LB .. ......... Texas

Packing Products Pvt. Ltd. .. ....... .. ... ... ...l India

Paxus Australia Pty. Limited . ........... ... .... ... ... Australia
Paxus Financial R&D Pty. Limited .. .................... Australia

PDA Software Services, Inc. . ... ...... ... ... .. ... ... ... Delaware
PTCitaSimas Artha. . ... ... .. . it Indonesia

PT. CSC Computer Sciences . ....................c0n... Indonesia
Supreme Esteem Limited ... .............. ... ........ Hong Kong
Space Coast Launch Servicess LLC .. ... ................. Nevada
Taiwan Automated Systems Limited . . .. ... ............. Taiwan
Technology Service Partners, In¢. . ...................... Florida

Test & Experimentation ServicesCo. ..................... Texas

The Eagle Alliance (Partnership) . ....................... Maryland
Tianjin CSA Computer Sciences Technology Company Lid. . ... The People’s Republic of China
UABCSC Baltic. .. ... oo e Lithuania
Welkin Associates, LI .. ..., .. ..ottt Virginia

Zorch, Inc. .. ... . e Delaware




Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-26977, 33-36379,
33.50746, 333-00733, 333-00749, 333-00757, 333-09387, 333-33327, 333-75383, 333-92155, 333-58526,
333-67472, 333-103653, 333-149500 and 333-149501 on Forms $-8 and 333-72034 on Form S-3 of our report
dated May 23, 2008 relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedule of Computer
Sciences Corporation (the Company), which report expresses an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements and financial statement schedule, and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the
Company's adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment on April 1, 2006, SFAS No. 158, Employer's Accouniing for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R on March 30, 2007 and
FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncentainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 on March 31, 2007 and of our report dated May 23, 2008 relating to internal control
over financial reporting (which report expresses an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting because of a material weakness) appearing in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended March 28, 2008.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
May 23, 2008




Exhibit 31.1

I, Michael W. Laphen, certify that:
1. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Computer Sciences Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 10 make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has matenially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committce of
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivatent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely 10 adversely affect 1he registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s intermal controls over financial reporting.

Date: May 27, 2008 By: /s/ MICHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W. Laphen
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

1, Donald G. DeBuck, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Computer Sciences Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omil to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15({f)) for the
registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controts and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
rcasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and T have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: May 27, 2008 By: /st DONALD G. DEBuUCK

Donald G. DeBuck
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Michael W. Laphen, Chief Executive Officer of Computer
Sciences Corporation (the Company), hereby certify that:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 28, 2008 (the
Report) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2} The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated May 27, 2008 s/ MICHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W, Laphen
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Donald G. DeBuck, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

of Computer Sciences Corporation (the Company), hereby certify that:

(1) The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 28, 2008 (the Report)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicabie, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 27, 2008 /s/ DonaLD G. DEBUCK

Donald G. DeBuck
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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STOCK INFORMATION

Common Stock Symbol: CSC, listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE).
Shares Qutstanding as of June 6, 2008: 151,253,347
Shareholders of Record as of June 6, 2008: 8,097

MARKET PRICE DATA PER QUARTER

The table below shows the high and low intra-day stock prices of CSC’s common stock on the
composite tape of the New York Stock Exchange for each quarter during the last two calendar

years and to date in 2008.

2008 2007 2006
Calendar Quarter High Low High Low High Low
Ist 49.50 36.91 56.25 50.38 59.09 48.01
2nd 50.52* 3799 60.00 51.55 60.39 48.26
3rd 63.76 46 .95 53.80 46.23
4th 60.00 49.21 5413 47.48

* Through June §, 2008.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

All inquiries concerning registered shareholder
accounts and stock transfer matters, including
address changes and consolidation of multiple
accounts, should be directed to CSC's transfer
agent and registrar;

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900
800.676.0654 or 201.680.6578

TOD: 800.231.5469 or 201.680.6610
www.BNYMellon.com/shareowner/isd

FINANCIAL COMMUNITY INFORMATION
Institutional investors, financial analysts, and
portfolio managers contact:

Bill Lackey
Director, Investor Relations
310.6151700

Individual investors and registered representa-
tives contact:

Lisa Runge
Manager, Investor Relations
310.615.1680

For shareholder inquiries and requests, please
call C5C at 800.542.3070. Written requests,
including requests for Company filings with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), should be directed to:

Investor Relations

Computer Sciences Corporation
2100 East Grand Avenue

El Segundo, California 90245

E-mail: InvestorRelations@csc.com

COMPANY INTERNET WEBSITE

An extensive amount of CSC information is
available on www.csc.com, including all of the
documents the Company files with or furnishes
to the SEC, which are available free of charge.

CERTIFICATIONS

The Company has included as Exhibits 311 and
31.2 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal
Year 2008 filed with the SEC, certificates of
CSC's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer certifying the quality of the Company’s
public disclosure. The Chief Executive Officer
has also submitted to the NYSE a certificate
certifying that he is not aware of any violations
by CSC of the NYSE Corporate Governance
Listing Standards.

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders is sched-
uled for 10 a.m. on Monday, August 4, 2008, at
the Fairview Park Marriott hotel, 3111 Fairview
Park Drive, Falls Church, VA 22042, Proxies
for the meeting will be solicited in a separate
Proxy Statement.

DIVIDEND POLICY

It has been the Company's policy to invest
earnings in the growth of the Company rather
than distribute earnings as dividends. This policy,
under which cash dividends have not been paid
since fiscal 1269, is expected to continue, but is
subject to review by the Board of Directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche LLP

350 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, California 80071
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